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VISION FES

Becoming a global circular economy solution partner.

AR RBIREERRT R IERBH -

\ MISSION fE#

To be a global market leader in resources recycling and
environmental protection, earning a quality return to shareholders
through the provision of quality products and services, by a group of
motivated and diversified staff force.

BN EHENEFERRUEBEERKRT  BMOMARIKELE
BREIRRITENTHEESE  WARREEIREEIR -

CULTURE X1t

We are committed to building a long-term and win-win partnership
with our customers including suppliers.

BMPERAEROEHERRLRASIFRELHFEMRE

We provide a safe workplace and career development opportunities

for our employees.
HAERAETREZENITFRBETASEHEIERETM

We are devoted to achieving a quality, stable and continuous return
for our shareholders.

HPERABRRISEE - BENFANER-

We meet our corporate social responsibility by making continuous
contributions to social well-being and environmental protection.

RPEREELEEE HHEEURIRBRETEHFHER
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Key Figures

FTEHF
REVENUE 33% GROSS PROFIT
Wit g EXY
64°%
0
0
21,9504 1 00 A) 7'
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TEEEF (E5HH) BifaiFliHE

2021 692.0 2021 1 1 1 7 5
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GEARING RATIO CURRENT RATIO

FEMELEE BN EEE

2021 16_7% 2021

2020 23.3% 2020

TONNAGE 0
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(Tonnes) (Mg) g/ 0.8 /0 7I

2021 2020

4,327,171
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About Chiho
R ES

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”, and together ZH&EBFREEARAS (RAS EREHTF
with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Chiho”) is China’s largest and ABKBIAER = HEE) 2TEEAHN
one of the world’s largest publicly listed metal recycling corporation &BEIWAT  HNEEKEANWESBRLEW E

with geographical presence covering Asia, Europe and North America.

Our extensive global operations comprise:

Metal Scrap
Recycling Sourcing, processing and
BEE£ERI trading of ferrous and
non-ferrous metals
FE-MIKEEEGEEM
EEE

@

End-Of-Life Vehicle
(ELV) Processing

AR EIRAE

9,

Recycling, dismantling and
remanufacturing of ELV
with advance post shredding
technologies
5] 45z ~ 5 % e F) FA S0 3 B B B 12
BRI T ETHRESENBRE

Electronic Waste

Recycling
BFEE B electronic equipment and data
destruction
EBEEFERIHBEK
VE%) BB NS
Waste
0il Recycling Purification, distillation and
[B% Sth [B] Uk additions of lubricant additives
to produce lubricant base oil
Eﬁﬁ SFAE~ A R0 A R »

W& E R R hE

=

Retired Lithium

Batteries Recycling Recycling of retired electric

BRI AE vehicle lithium batteries
[ijj:} [E] U BE S B 7 2 B 5t
D)
Process
Optimisation
Service Advisory service on waste
IFE{CR management and

recycling process optimisation
EE¥ E 32 K [0 TR 1B 16
A sH AR 75

i

HAB T — HIRFEMEEDIN BN R
SES T

BANEZ2IREREE .

We use state of the art processing technologies to
disassemble and sort mixed metal scrap into useful recycled
metals, such as copper, aluminum, and ferrous metals,

within a closed loop system
A B ST EMN R ER M ERAR AR AR
RETBERNDBEDERUNBAELETE
Mif~ R B BT B

Our facilities achieve a total recovery rate for ELV and other
scrap materials of approximately 97%, greater than the
existing recovery target rate of 95% under the EU directive
FAPIBY = 1 1E BE IR 2R BE /R EE R0 HLAth BF EE A} 75 E RO 4R [B] Lk
KL 797 % » BB IRTEN BT EBB R R E 1995 % B =€

LEAd T R A R LG IEIREL TR As one of the most diversified and comprehensive e-waste
recycling centre in Hong Kong, we recycle materials within a

closed loop system
ERBEBRZTIENGEETFER
Bl ARz — > FAPIRR BRIR R 4% A9 Bl U Akt

We have advanced technology and well equipped
production line to produce various high quality lubricant

oil
RMER LERT R ER RN EEFRER
FESESEENEEM

Actively cooperating with European research institutes and
universities to jointly develop power lithium battery recycling
technology, which is suitable for the recycling of different

SBUMB I AE e K BB S F > HFIA B AR RIS

types and models of lithium batteries

{E1 A 48 5o 2 5% R 22 28 th o] Wi e i

As an expert in recycling process management and
optimisation, we help our customers to achieve sustainable

development in operation and business
ERERTFEEREBIENESR
BROENE R EREEREGNIFERE

BEBFRERBRAT —S—F£H 3



Our Worldwide Operations

AR E

HONG KONG &#

& A diversified, comprehensive and highly automotive e-waste
recycling centre

Zn 2EASEBIENEFEYLOIF L

MAINLAND CHINA HE Rt

€ Engaged in recycling and trading of metal scraps

HEBLETBRINKRES

& A major metal importer and domestic metal trader

TEEBENBRENEEEZE

& Investments in new end-of-life vehicles and electric vehicle
batteries recycling facilities which is expected to commence
operations in 2022

BN IRES S E N B DB EMEIKEE M, HFEAR S
T HHREE

Yantai {2 &

€ Engaged in recycling and domestic trading of metal scraps, and
recycling of waste oil

REBESBRIKKRERNE S UKREE AR

.|'|I“1

mﬂl‘ﬁ iulj
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Our Worldwide Operations

AR EE

L 2 J1c1]

Binzhou & M

€ Joint venture with Honggiao Group, engaging in end-of-life
vehicle dismantling, scrap metals recycling, secondary aluminium [&&
production and electric vehicle lithium batteries recycling
HERBEEMISERE REREAERFE ETELW B
iRt ERE IR E MBI

Shanghai L5

¢ Trading hub with focus on import of recycled metals
EARBEEBEONZZF 0

GERMANY {Z[

& Operating 80 yards, including joint ventures, covering South-
West, Central and Eastern Germany
EEE L% (BEGER¥)  BEEEEAm  PaEikR

2B

& Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing with
all types of equipment including the most advanced post-
shredder material recovery technology
REE L (BERENKE BRI B HEEEN
WOEE ~ D48 e BR IR AR TS
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Our Worldwide Operations

AR E S

CZECH REPUBLIC }E5x X1

& Operating 40 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and
Prague area
EEF EUMNEA KD ICE R A& i & 4018 T

€ With a very strong market share in ferrous market, covering
both old scrap and new scrap market
REBEEEMBAEHSMHEEGLER REEERHEL
M5

ROMANIA ZE K Em

& Operating 31 yards, joint venture with two experienced local
business partners

EHEE TS EMNEMERSENEBBHRIUIGERFE

& Covering the heavily populated and well industrialised areas in
this country

BEZEANBEKRSEIEENME
& Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap export
#far - HH > PR O RE

© High non-metals share of sales, including significant portion of
paper and plastics

FEB (BEAERRRER) NHERGLS

SLOVENIA Hi:&4fE5a

& Operating 18 yards
EiE 18815

€ Well equipped with yard network, transportation assets and
processing capabilities to cover all suppliers (industry and old
scrap)
o RENTHEE ERRERMIRMEUABESHHEER A
(T ERER R EEBERD |

& Strong non-ferrous operations, including paper and plastic
recycling

BREBRFEY (QEMRKREREI BE
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Our Worldwide Operations

AR EE

AUSTRIA BEitifl

& Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group, operating 12
yards with sourcing subsidiary in Hungary
S SRR ER NI S E % BURATFREFA
BEE12E TS

&€ Market leader for ferrous scrap trading in the country with
strong track record in project business (e.g. power plant
dismantling)

ENMBLERCEEEENTHEEE TEEXED BIN#ES
P4 ) IR AR

& Sourcing subsidiary in Hungary
AL &) SRRV ER g T2 5

POLAND ;&8

& Operating 5 yards covering central and southern Poland, the
most industrialised and scrap rich areas
SESMELS BB IECEERS BEBEEYRSNHE
T ra Ef

& Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing with all

types of equipment
RELL SEHERELSENKE - DB REIERT

USA EBE]

& Divestment of most of the loss-making operations in 2020 and
2021
ABAGEEBCN S SER S FHE

& Future focus towards brokerage business

RREHR B EEREF L

BABREEERAS —S-—FER 7



Our Worldwide Operations

AR E S

SOUTHEAST ASIA 5
India EDE

€ Joint venture with Century Metal Recycling Group, engaging in
dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed scrap metal e
EACentury Metal Recycling GroupFiiL &= 2 > L BEEEE B
REMBEERE S BITE

& Ferrous and non-ferrous scraps are sold domestically

BERENAEEBHEEERNHEE

Thailand Z=E

€ Joint venture with Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited and
Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited, engaging in dismantling of scrap
motors and other mixed scrap metal
BidHidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited 5 Suzuki Shokai Co.
Limited&F> It EEESH R AMBEEES T BIFE

& Ferrous scraps are sold domestically while non-ferrous scraps are
exported to other Asian markets
BAEESEEEANHE MELEAEEBEOEHMEMNT

%

Malaysia B2k fE o

& Joint venture with Heng Hup Group, engaging in dismantling of
scrap motors and other mixed scrap metal Jax

HESEERGF NEEESHKEMBEE RS BIFE

& Ferrous scraps are sold domestically while non-ferrous scraps are
exported to China markets

BERCEZRERANFEE MBEECEBLOERETS
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Amid the continuation of the Coronavirus pandemic and its variants,
businesses and society pushed ahead with a recovery as vaccines
became available in most countries across the globe. During the year
in review, the Group demonstrated continuous resilience and achieved
significant growth in business. We are pleased to announce that Chiho
recorded a very strong performance and has made both a top-line and
bottom-line turnaround in the fiscal year of 2021.

The rebound of global industrial activities led to a strong growth in
demand for ferrous and non-ferrous metals, which resulted in direct
benefits for Chiho. Our staff returned safely to work as most countries
implemented vaccination programs to contain the pandemic, and
alongside herd immunity, people are learning to live with the pandemic
and are creating a “new normal”.

Our operations in Europe, North America and Asia all resumed to close-
to-normal levels in 2021. While our business activities started to once
again make a profit, as the world entered a “new normal”, the Group
made some structural changes to the business model and operations
to enhance our overall efficiency and profitability. Certain loss-making
units, including our Northeastern US businesses, were divested as part
of a business transformation process. At the same time, a new business
strategy was rolled out to strengthen our existing business and capture
new growth opportunities arising from global efforts to achieve carbon
neutrality.

During the year, we heavily invested in our business operations in
China, one of our key growth markets in the coming years. The
Chinese government stated in its 14th Five-Year Plan that a circular
economy would be a priority for the country’s future development. The
favourable policies and active discussions on achieving carbon neutrality
have offered immediate growth opportunities for us. As a leading player
in the recycling business, we made a head start by collaborating with
China’s largest aluminum producer, China Honggiao Ltd. (“Honggiao”),
to establish a new industrial recycling facility in Binzhou, China, as well
as investing in a new end-of-life vehicle (“ELV") and electric vehicle
("EV") battery recycling facility in Taizhou, China. Both facilities are
expected to bring tremendous, long-term revenue growth to the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBHS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group's total tonnage and revenue in the fiscal year of 2021 was
4.33 million tonnes and HK$21,950.4 million respectively, an increase
of 0.8% and 64.2% compared to 2020. Gross profit for the year rose
99.5% compared to 2020, with the gross profit margin increasing from
7.1% in 2020 to 8.6% in 2021.

The European operations continue to remain as our core business and
have performed consistently well. Building on our century-old roots in
the region, the Group not only has maintained good relationships with
our established local customer base, but also continued to have strong
ties with certain global automobile brands to maintain stable source of
scraps. Our European operations have been enhancing their technical
know-how and have taken further action to protect its technology
by conducting patent applications; as well as deploying additional
resources to upgrade the core equipment, expand our fleet size and
modernise our yard facilities. All these measures enable the Group
to establish a unique proposition and strengthen its leading position
among its industry peers in Europe. Currently, the European operations
alone continue to account for more than 80% of our group revenue.
The tonnage and revenue for the region generated in 2021 was 3.93
million tonnes and HK$19,150.0 million respectively, an increase of
6.7% and 78.8% compared to 2020.

In North America, we restructured the operations by selling our loss-
making facilities and diverted resources to support our North American
brokage and Mexican yard businesses. As such, the tonnage and
revenue generated in North America saw a temporary drop of 43.4%
and 6.8% year-on-year. However, the gross profit and gross profit
margin significantly improved to HK$191.4 million and 18.9%, an
increase of 142.3% and 11.6% compared to 2020. Furthermore, the
North American segment made a turnaround in net profit in 2021.

Our Asian operations maintained stable growth in 2021. We have
been ramping up the operations in Southeast Asia with a focus on
the profitable e-motor recycling business . While the lift of the import
restrictions imposed by the Chinese government has benefited our
Asian operations, the significant volatility in the steel prices in the
second half of the year and the power rationing in industrial centers
in China have impacted the demand of scrap ferrous. As such, the
tonnage of the Asian operations slightly decreased by 0.05 million
tonnes to 0.20 million tonnes in 2021 compared to 2020. However, the
increase in the sales proportion of the non-ferrous metals has driven the
growth in the revenue for the region, leading to an increase of 24.6%
in revenue compared to 2020. The gross profit and gross profit margin
also improved to HK$94.0 million and 4.4%, an increase of 92.2% and
1.5% compared to 2020.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Automobile ownership has been growing steadily in China over recent
years and increasingly more vehicles need efficient recycling to help
enhance the country’s circular economy models. The current percentage
of cars being recycled remains far lower than many developed
countries, hence the demand for recycling of ELV and EV batteries in
China is on the rise. In addition, it is estimated that in 2025, roughly
20% of new cars will be EVs in China. With all of these vehicles
containing lithium-ion batteries that require suitable recycling, there
is no doubt that there will be huge short-term and long-term growth
potentials for Chiho and the broader recycling industry.

To maximise the tremendous opportunities in China, the Group
established a joint venture with Honggiao, to build a flagship recycling
park in Binzhou, China in late 2020. The facility had a processing
capacity of up to 100,000 ELVs and mixed metals, as well as 500,000
tonnes of secondary aluminum production per annum. The project has
been extended to include the construction of a recycling facility for EV
lithium-ion batteries in 2021. The trial run of the secondary aluminum
production will be commenced shortly.

In addition, the Group has announced its plan to invest in a new ELV
and EV battery recycling facility in Taizhou, China, in November 2021.
The projected 100-acre recycling facility is designed to process up to
50,000 ELVs and 10,000 tonnes of EV batteries per year. This project
will combine the competitive, advanced technology from Scholz and
our extensive network in the local region to transform our existing
production base in Taizhou, China, into a leading recycling center for
ELV and EV batteries. The first phase of ELV and mixed metals recycling
is expected to go live in the second half of 2022.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EBHS

PROSPECT

As Scholz celebrates its 150th anniversary in 2022, Chiho is proud to
witness this remarkable milestone of one of the most promising trading,
processing and recycling enterprise in Europe. Chiho will continue
to support and empower all of its subsidiaries to work as one group
towards a common goal — to achieve carbon neutrality and build a
sustainable future.

Moving forward, Chiho is optimistic about the prospect of our
recycling business and confident that we can capture the tremendous
opportunities brought about by the post-COVID economic reset
and a global shift towards recycling and sustainability. At the same
time, fueled by a transformation that is currently underway, Chiho is
positioning itself for new growth. With our vision to continue providing
global, first-class circular economy solutions to our customers over
the long-term, and to further our commitment to the responsible
management of the environment and sustainability efforts, the Group
will continue with a three-pillar strategy, focusing on strengthening
our core competencies and businesses, concentrating on high margin
businesses and tapping into fast growing markets.

Our core business in Europe, where we have always had a strong
presence, will continue to grow and strengthen at a healthy and
steady pace. Our European operations will remain as our research and
development hub with its expertise in recycling technology to support
our operations across the globe. Elsewhere, we expect our operations in
North America to become leaner and focus on achieving higher overall
efficiency.

12 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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PROSPECT (continued)

Chiho is ready to expand our suite of offerings and venture into higher
margin businesses that include the recycling of EV batteries and plastic.
The Chinese market, in particular, presents huge potentials as the
country possesses 44% of the world’s EVs. New policies have been
implemented in this area, including the Measures for the Management
of End-of-Life Vehicle Recycling in 2020. Together with stricter carbon
emission policies, growing demand for EVs and the current absence
of a structured recycling system for retired batteries in China presents
many opportunities for our business. We expect that both our Binzhou
and Taizhou facilities will help us expand in this space and maximise
our growth opportunities by providing a combined capacity to recycle
approximately 60,000 EV batteries per annum. In Europe, as the
demand for the safe and efficient recycling of lithium-ion batteries
continues to grow, we will further strengthen our technology and
capacity to fulfill the market need.

Our operations in Southeast Asia will continue to expand and support
our Chinese business. As countries open up their ports and borders
again, logistics are expected to improve and global trade volumes are
expected to rise. Local partners will remain part of our wider network
in sourcing and trading ferrous metals, while local facilities will ensure a
stable export supply of non-ferrous recycled materials to China.

Aligning with the management changes within Chiho, the board of
directors of Chiho (“Board”) and | firmly believe that with the new
management team on board, we will be in a stronger position to make
significant progress and develop even further. | have full confidence
that our global recycling business will continue to perform exceptionally
in this carbon neutral era. | would like to take this chance to extend
my heart-felt gratitude to the members of the Board and all of our
staff worldwide for their loyalty, dedication, continuous efforts and
valuable contributions, and also to our customers and partners for their
unwavering support and trust. | hope you all stay safe and healthy.

Li Linhui
EME
Chairman of the Board

EFETE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE w2

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MR E
Increase/
2021 2020 (Decrease)
—E-—F T HE M R
Operating results (HK$M) REZE (BERBTT)
Segment revenue pag= 1 E
Asia EED 2,130.8 1,710.5 24.6%
Europe BUM 19,150.0 10,708.9 78.8%
North America JE=M 1,012.4 1,086.1 (6.8%)
Inter-segment sales DEPEIHE (342.8) (137.4) 149.5%
Revenue U &= 21,950.4 13,368.1 64.2%
Gross profit EF 1,888.5 946.5 99.5%
Segment profit/(loss) DEGEF (B518)
Asia =D 18.9 (49.6) 138.1%
Europe B 994.0 2185 354.9%
North America 6 182.3 (62.7) 390.7%
Unallocated ROEC (77.7) (683.5) (88.6%)
Profit/(Loss) before interest bR B R FR I8 AT
and tax (EBIT) wmAL (B518) 1,117.5 (577.3) 293.6%
Finance costs, net R (233.8) (232.5) 0.6%
Income tax expense FriSiRBE s (191.7) (54.4) 252.4%
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF] (E518) 692.0 (864.2) 180.1%
Financial position (HK$M) MHEitR (BEEET)
Cash generated from operations KERTSIRS 653.0 953.7 (31.5%)
Cash, pledged and restricted Re - BIEHRZ RS
bank deposits RITE™R 924.7 1,036.5 (10.8%)
Total assets EEHSE 9,958.5 9,872.9 0.9%
Equity attributable to KAB R EELE R
shareholders of the Company 4,873.9 4,477.6 8.9%

14 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis

EBE R

MBHE (8

Increase/
2021 2020 (Decrease)
% ZETTE M R
Per share data (HK$) BRER (B
Earnings/(Loss) per share KRB RREEER
attributable to shareholders of BH (F518)
the Company 0.44 (0.53) 183.0%
Shareholders’ funds per share SRKRRES 3.04 2.79 9.0%
Key ratios (%) FTEHFELEER(%)
Gross profit margin ESTIES 8.6 7.1 1.5%
Net profit margin’ aF) = 3.2 (6.3) 9.5%
EBIT/Revenue BA B R IERER
U &= 5.1 (4.3) 9.4%
Return on shareholders’ funds? fR B & (o] ¥R %2 15.0 (18.0) 33.0%
Revenue in Last 5 Years Gross Profit and Gross Profit Net Profit (Loss) and Net Profit
BELFEWS Margin in Last 5 Years (Loss) Margin in Last 5 Years
BEARFENR BEAREFEF (BB K
EF= FimF (B518) X
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT
25,000 2,000 10% 800 5.0%
9.7%
- 40%
3.0%
20,000 1,600 o | 9% 400 .
8.1% 200 1.0%
15,000 1,200 8% . OEE
-1.0%
200)
10,000 800 n 7% 20
v, @ (400) 30%
5,000 400 6% 500} "
-5.0%
57% (800) - -6.0%
6.3%
0 0 5% (1,000) 7.0%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Asia G5l ® Europe BUM Gross Profit 7l
® North America J63EM —— Gross Profit Margin &

Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

as a percentage of revenue

shareholders of the Company as a percentage of average shareholders’ funds

Return on shareholders’ fund is calculated based on the profit attributable to

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Net Profit/(Loss) 5#i#,/ (A518)
—— Net Profit/(Loss) Margin ;®3%],/ (518) =

AR ERRBEARBDREEGEBRERDOE D

EE5HE

REE S EREZRIEAA B RRE(EEF G T

HRRESHEDLEEE

ERIRREEERAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE iR R 2T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group sold 4.33 million tonnes of recycled products in 2021. While
the tonnage sold showed a marginal increase of a 0.8% comparing to
4.30 million tonnes sold in 2020, revenue for the year has increased
64.2% from HK$13,368.1 million in 2020 to HK$21,950.4 million in
2021.

While the COVID-19 pandemic continues, the negative impact brought
about by the pandemic on economic activities has eased substantially
in 2021. The Group's business operations have returned to grounds
comparable to pre-pandemic with minor occasional disruptions in
certain regions. Demand for scrap products were strong as the global
economies are recovering, and led to sharp increase in commodity
prices in the first half of 2021, and remained volatile for the rest of the
year. Furthermore, the Group’s trading volume started to benefit from
the ease of restrictions over import of recycled metals into China with
reinstituted new standards for imports of both ferrous and non-ferrous
scrap metals.

The European segment continues to be the key contributor in terms of
revenue. The contribution from the Asian and North American segments
have dropped relatively as businesses and assets in these regions were
under the divestment process, reflecting the continuous restructuring of
the Group's businesses for more efficient use of our resources.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for the year was HK$1,888.5 million, an increase of 99.5%
compared to the previous financial year with a gross profit margin of
8.6% (2020: 7.1%). The improvement in the gross profit margin is a
result of margin management in a time of rising scrap prices, focusing
on high margin businesses and the continuing portfolio review and
clean up. However, the increasing freight cost has eroded the margin
as there was a lack of cargo vessels and containers and higher energy
costs resulted from the global logistic bottleneck.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Operating expenses

Total operating expenses for the year were HK$1,245.7 million, an
increase of 9.4% over the previous financial year, but as a percentage
of revenue, it has decreased to 5.7% (2020: 8.5%). The transformation
initiatives and optimisation programs implemented last year are bearing
fruit in allowing the Group become leaner and more efficient. Current
year's administrative expenses were influenced by costs related to
refinancing activities.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Shareholders and Earnings/
(Loss) Per Share

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 was HK$702.0 million, as compared to a loss of
HK$848.1 million in the last financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
HK$0.44 as compared to loss per share of HK$0.53 in the previous
financial year.

Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group’s cash generated from operations before changes in working
capital for the year was HK$1,195.2 million, more than three-fold
increase as compared to last year as operating profit increased. The
Group has been carefully managing the working capital in response to
the uncertainties in the market conditions due to the pandemic.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2021 were HK$4,873.9 million,
an increase of 8.9% from 31 December 2020. Shareholders’ funds per
share increased from HK$2.79 as at 31 December 2020 to HK$3.04 as
at 31 December 2021.

The Group’s financial resources remain steady. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had cash, various bank balances, pledged and
restricted bank deposits amounting to HK$924.7 million (2020:
HK$1,036.5 million), used mainly for repayment of external borrowings
and working capital needs for expansion of business operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE iR R 2T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The current ratio improved from 1.03 as at 31 December 2020 to 1.13
as at 31 December 2021. Certain long-term borrowings were classified
as current liabilities as they will be maturing within the next twelve
months. Management is in active discussions with lenders and potential
lenders to refinance the maturing borrowings.

Total external borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were HK$1,661.9
million (2020: HK$2,298.4 million).
utilised for the purchase of mixed recycle metal and working
capital, and mainly denominated in Euro, US Dollar and Renminbi.
Approximately HK$1,354.7 million (2020: approximately HK$1,928.2
million) of borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

Such borrowings were mainly

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was 16.7%
(2020: 23.3%) which is calculated based on the total borrowings
divided by our total assets.

Working Capital Change

Overall, our net operating cycle has improved significantly in the current
year, showing our commitment to improve operating efficiencies.

Inventories as at 31 December 2021 were HK$1,567.8 million (2020:
HK$1,169.3 million) due to the change in the scrap price and higher
business volume. The inventory turnover days for the financial year
was 25 days (2020: 39 days) as business activities resumed to close-to-
normal level during the year.

Provision for inventories as at 31 December 2021 were HK$43.0 million
(2020: HK$14.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change (continued)

Net trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2021 were
HK$1,774.9 million, increased from HK$1,302.0 million as at 31
December 2020. Debtor turnover days for the financial year lowered
from 31 days in last financial year to 26 days in this financial year.

Trade and bills payables as at 31 December 2021 were HK$1,801.3
million (2020: HK$1,377.2 million). Creditor turnover days for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were 29 days (2020: 30 days).

Treasury Policies

The Group's treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates
arising from the Group’s global operations. The Group principally uses
future contracts to hedge the commodity risks, and forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the foreign exchange risks in the ordinary
course of business. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group invested HK$260.5
million (2020: HK$329.8 million) in the purchase of tangible assets
including land, buildings, plant, machinery and equipment, leasehold
improvements, office equipment for improving production efficiency.
These capital expenditures were financed through internal resources
and lease arrangements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE iR R 2T

BUSINESS REVIEW
Operational Performance

The Group continued to operate in our long-established markets
and expanded into new markets in South/Southeast Asia. Through
the geographic diversification, we are in a good position to mitigate
the risks of depending overly on a single market. We are among the
processing and technology leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal
recycling worldwide, and own many advanced processing technologies
in scrap metal shredding and post-shredding processing.

Europe

The European segment sold 3.93 million tonnes of recycled products for
the year ended 31 December 2021, an increase of 6.7% compared to
the last year of 3.68 million tonnes. Segment revenue was HK$19,150.0
million, increased by 78.8% against 2020. Demand for metals were
strong as industrial activities resumed from the COVID-19 impact,
and both automotive industry and steel production in Europe have
experienced very strong recovery despite shortage in chips. Such strong
demand drove the scrap prices higher. With the ease on the restrictions
over the import of recycled ferrous and non-ferrous metals in China, the
European segment also benefited with higher volume sold.

Through the economic recovery and the improved margin management,
European segment’s gross profit for the year reached HK$1,622.8
million, close to two-fold increase at 94.3% as compared to last
year, and gross profit margin for the year also increased from 7.8%
in 2020 to 8.5% in the current year. Amid the improvement in gross
profit margin, the European segment experienced significant increase
in logistic and transportation costs from high competition for cargo
resources globally.

Segment profit for the year was HK$994.0 million (2020: HK$218.5
million), more than 4.5-fold increase as compared to last year. Apart
from the improved business environment, various operational efficiency
incentives implemented last year materialised and further increased
European segment’s profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
North America

The North American segment has undergone a business transformation
process beginning from last year to sell non-performing assets to better
allocate resources to more profitable businesses. The disposal of the
US yard businesses has been completed during the year, and will focus
on brokerage businesses going forward. The North American segment,
therefore, reported 0.21 million tonnes of recycled products sold for the
year (2020: 0.37 million tonnes), and a segment revenue of HK$1,012.4
million (2020: HK$1,086.1 million).

Segment gross profit for the year was HK$191.4 million (2020:
HK$79.0 million) and gross profit margin was at 18.9% (2020: 7.3%),
as there was a strong recovery in the steel production sector after
a sharp decline in 2020, driving up the demand and price for scrap
steel. As such, the North American segment has turned from a loss of
HK$62.7 million in 2020 to a profit of HK$182.3 million in the current
year.

Asia

The Asian segment sold 0.20 million tonnes of recycled products in
the current year, a drop of 19.5% against 2020 of 0.25 million tonnes
sold. While there was higher contribution from the maturing e-motor
recycling business in the Southeast Asia, as well as benefited from
the restrictions eased on the import of cleaned recycled products into
China, the China scrap market experienced some challenges. China
steel prices experienced significant volatility in the second half of the
year, along with power rationing in industrial centers, impacting the
demand of scrap ferrous. But the change in sales mix with more focus
on non-ferrous sales have drove the segment revenue to increase
24.6% from HK$1,710.5 million in 2020 to HK$2,130.8 million.

With higher contribution from the Southeast Asian operations, and a
focus on high margin non-ferrous sales, segment gross profit for the
year was HK$94.0 million, an increase of 92.2% as compared to 2020.
Gross profit margin also increased from 2.9% in 2020 to 4.4% in 2021.
As such, segment profit has turned from a loss of HK$49.6 million in
last year to a profit of HK$18.9 million in the current year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE iR R 2T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged certain property,
plant, equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties,
inventories, trade receivables and bank deposits with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$4,330.7 million (31 December
2020: HK$4,337.0 million) to secure borrowings and general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant, equipment and additions in
construction in progress which are contracted for but not provided
for in the amount of HK$103.0 million (31 December 2020: HK$16.5
million).

As at the date of this Annual Report, save as disclosed below, the Board
is not aware of any material contingent liabilities.

The Group has provided financial guarantees to certain related party
and joint ventures of HK$19.5 million and HK$53.7 million (31
December 2020: HK$14.9 million and HK$38.0 million), respectively. As
the risk of default is very remote and there is no history of default, no
financial guarantee liability was recognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”), as
plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong (the
“Court”) (High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, "HCA 3040/2015"),
followed by an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the
Company and Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum
of HK$57.8 million together with interest and costs. The claim relates
to an alleged non-payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco
Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company
in accordance with the terms of a shareholders’ loan assignment dated
24 June 2010 between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company.
The Company filed its defence on 23 September 2016. An amended
writ of summons was filed by Delco on 5 December 2016, adding Mr.
Fang as a defendant to the proceedings. The parties subsequently filed
amended pleadings. On Delco’s application, the Court granted leave
to Delco to discontinue its claim against the Company for the HK$57.8
million, with certain issues still to be decided by the Court.

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited ("HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against all
losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with the
terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of
the Company on 17 December 2015. The exact scope of the indemnity
is yet to be determined.
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EEE iR R 2T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the Court (High Court Action No. 2939 of 2016, "HCA
2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant, Chiho-Tiande
(HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr. Fang as the
4th defendant. Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defence
on 24 March 2017 and the plaintiff filed its reply to the Company
and CTHK’s defence on 20 June 2017. The parties subsequently filed
amended pleadings and gave evidence at the trial in July 2021. The case
is still in progress, with the parties having made closing submissions,
and the parties are awaiting judgment from the Court.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 and HCA
2939/2016 to be claims of material importance for the reason set out
above, details of HCA 3040/2015 and HCA 2939/2016 are disclosed
herein for the sake of completeness.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodity price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management strategy is to
mitigate the adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance.

In 2010, the Group adopted a commodity price risk hedging
policy which has been subsequently updated to cater for the
changing operating conditions of the Group. The latest commodity
price risk hedging policy is available on the Company’s website,
www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in view of the volatile
exchange rate of Euro, Renminbi and other relevant currencies to US
Dollar and considers various measures to minimise foreign currency risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Regarding credit risk, the Group continues to follow the best practices
of cash collection for sales of most recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group's
financial statements. In addition, the Group continues monitoring
closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

Regarding liquidity risk, the Group continues maintaining a balance
between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a workforce of 2,866
(31 December 2020: 2,832) employees. In addition, we engaged
approximately 306 (31 December 2020: 270) workers and office
staff through local contractors. We have not experienced any strikes,
work suspension or significant labor disputes which have affected
our operations in the past. We have not experienced any significant
difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We continue to
maintain good relationships with our employees.

The Group's total staff costs for the year were approximately
HK$1,111.0 million (2020: HK$1,065.6 million). The remuneration
package of staff consists of basic salary, mandatory provident fund,
insurances and other benefits as considered appropriate. Remuneration
of the employees of the Group is determined by reference to market
standards, individual performance and their respective contribution to
the Group.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
subject to the recommendations of the remuneration committee of
the Company and the Board's approval. Other emoluments including
discretionary bonuses, are determined by the Board with reference to
the Directors’ duties, abilities, reputation and performance.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

On 25 June 2021, Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. (“Liberty Iron”), an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and as the seller,
and AIM Recycling Erie, LLC (“AIM Erie”) and AIM Recycling Phoenix,
LLC ("AIM Phoenix”) collectively as the buyers entered into the asset
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Liberty Iron has conditionally
agreed to sell and AIM Erie and AIM Phoenix agreed to purchase
certain equipment, machinery, vehicles, trailers, containers, computer
software and inventory of the shredder facilities that Liberty Iron
owned and operated in Erie, Buffalo and Phoenix, the USA, at the total
consideration of US$19.8 million (”Disposal 1”).
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EEE iR R 2T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS (continued)

On 25 June 2021, Liberty Iron and DHS Realty, Inc. (“DHS"), collectively
as the indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and as the
sellers, and AIM Erie and AIM Phoenix collectively as the buyers, entered
into the real estate purchase agreements, pursuant to which Liberty
I[ron and DHS have conditionally agreed to sell and AIM Erie and AIM
Phoenix have conditionally agreed to purchase certain real properties
located in Buffalo, Pennsylvania and Arizona, the USA, at the total
consideration of US$12.7 million (“Disposal 2", together with Disposal
1, the “Disposals”).

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report,
the Disposals have been completed. For details of the Disposals, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 June 2021.

On 15 October 2021, Chiho-Tiande (Yantai) Resources Recycling
Company Limited (“Chiho Yantai”) as the seller and Chiho-Tiande
Investments Limited (“Chiho Investments”) as the guarantor, two
indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the
asset transfer agreement with Yantai Yeda International Talent Group
Limited (“Yantai Yeda") as the buyer, pursuant to which Chiho Yantai
has conditionally agreed to sell and Yantai Yeda has conditionally
agreed to purchase certain land use rights and properties situated
in Yantai Development Area at the consideration of RMB180.4
million (”Disposal 3"”). For details of Disposal 3, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 October 2021.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no other significant
investments held, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

For the Group, maintaining trusting relationships with investors has
always been paramount. The Board accordingly continues to engage
with them regularly and to keep them apprised of its latest corporate
and business developments in a timely manner.

Looking to the future, the Group will be taking steps to increase
transparency with both investors and shareholders to strengthen its
corporate governance in line with their best interests. As part of this
initiative, additional visibility will be provided around strategic plans
and approaches, with the aim of eliciting feedback and reaffirming the
collective understanding of the Group’s business, market activities and
growth opportunities.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

BEFREHREEANGRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS I {TEE

Current Executive Directors IRIF#{TE S

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 59, is an executive director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive director
in 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of each of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the
Company. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tu also acted as the chairman of the
Board from 29 April 2015 to 17 July 2017, and as the chief executive officer of the Company from 16 February 2016 to
31 March 2016. He was the chairman of USUM Investment Group Limited from April 2014 to November 2019. He has
been a director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. ((BE&Z &£ E B R’A B)) since January 1996 and a director of Loncin Holdings Co.,
Ltd (B Z IR EBR/AT) since January 2003. USUM Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (EEZEBEABER
&) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (&R A BR/AF]) are controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (BB&Z R ABBRAE) in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, an executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (BE &£
E AR /AE) from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of directors of Loncin Group Co., Ltd.
(FZZEEAERAT) from January 1996 to December 2013. He served as a general manager of Chongging Loncin
Gasoline Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (FE&EEEREE S ME/AB]), a company that used to be
controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chief director of Chongging Loncin
Transportation and Machinery Factory (8 B[ 33 i@ M) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during
its existence, from 1993 to 1996. He served as the factory director of Chongging City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal
Factory* (EE T NN EMEZESEM), a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991
to 1993 and the factory director of Chongging Cinhua Metals Factory* (EE & E S E S M), from 1984 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (A&7 & 122 %) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (EEMZERRIFEZED) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People’s Congress and the
member of the Finance and Economic Affairs Committee of Chongging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves
as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All China Federation of Industry & Commerce (2B T &
B4%) , the president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce Federation (EE™ LR H#), the President of Chongging
City General Chamber of Commerce (EEMAZRE), the president of Chongging City Technology Equipment Industry
Chamber of Commerce (EE MR FEHEBE D), the vice president of Chongging City Charity Federation (EEH &=
48) and the vice president of Chongging City Private Entrepreneurs Confederation (EETRE (XM E D).

Mr. Tu is a director of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603766). He also acted as an non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (BZE&ERMH AR
‘A E)) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 3903) from March 2013 to December 2020.

*  For identification purpose only £t 5!
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Mr. Li Linhui (“Mr. Li”), aged 49, was appointed as the chairman of the Board and the executive director of the
Company on 13 December 2021. Mr. Li serves as the chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination
committee, the pricing committee, and the strategy and investment committee of the Company.

Mr. Li served as the vice president and general counsel in Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd., an intermediate holding company
and a controlling shareholder of the Company, in 2017. He served as an assistant to the president and general counsel
in Guangxi Liugong Group Co., Ltd. and Guangxi Liugong Machinery Co., Ltd. whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000528) from 2006 to 2016. He also served as a supervisor of Guangxi Liugong Machinery
Co., Ltd. whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000528) from 2012 to 2016, a director of
Loncin Motor Co. whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603766) from 2018 to 2019, and
a director of Shanghai Fenghwa Group Co., Ltd. whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600615) from 2017 to 2019.

Mr. Li is currently a managing partner of Guohao Lawyers (Nanning) Firm*. He also serves as a voluntary lawyer at
China Securities Investor Services Center* and an arbitrator at Nanning Arbitration Commission of Nanning International
Arbitration Court in the PRC.

Mr. Li has extensive experience and knowledge in corporate legal affairs, specialising in bankruptcy liquidation,
reorganization, mergers and acquisitions, investment and financing, international legal affairs and compliance, corporate
compliance risk management, internal audit, and internal control. Mr. Li is also a registered international Internal
Controller.

Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Law degree from Southwest University of Political Science and Law in the PRC (the “PRC"),
a Master of International Commercial Law degree from University of Sussex in England, and an Executive Master of
Business Administration (“EMBA") degree from Tongji University and Ecole Nationale des Ponts et Chaussees (“ENPC").

*  For identification purpose only £t 3
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Mr. Miao Yu (“Mr. Miao"), aged 43, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 29 December 2020.
He also serves as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee, the nomination
committee, the remuneration committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He also acts as the president of
USUM Investment Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Miao has extensive experience in investment management, corporate finance, financing structure and
implementation. He served as the investment and financing director of China General Consulting and Investment Co.,
Ltd. from 2017 to 2019 and as the senior vice president of Tensant Securities Limited from 2015 to 2017. He was the
vice general manager of Beijing Maosen Capital Management Ltd. from 2012 to 2015.

Mr. Miao holds a Bachelor of Finance degree from Hebei University of Economics and Business in the PRC.
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EFEREHREBASEE

Mr. Yao Jietian (“Mr. Yao"”), aged 29, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 13 December 2021.
He also serves as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee and the pricing
committee of the Company. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yao joined the Group as an assistant to the chief executive officer of the Company in March 2020 and took up an
additional role as a project officer in the Group subsequently. Before joining the Group, he served as a deputy general
manager in Chongging Chen Gong Technology Co., Ltd. in 2019. He also served as an investment analyst in USUM
Investment Group Limited, an intermediate holding company and a controlling shareholder of the Company in 2015.

Mr. Yao has extensive knowledge in the Group’s business, and he is experienced in corporate management and project
management.

Mr. Yao holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Cardiff University in the United Kingdom and a Master
of Finance degree from The London School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom.
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Former Executive Directors Fi\{TESE

Mr. Martin Simon (“Mr. Simon”), aged 55, joined the Group as the chief financial officer of Scholz Group, a major
operation group of the Group, in July 2019. He took up additional roles as an executive director and the chief financial
officer of the Company with effect from 23 June 2020. With effect from 14 December 2021, he resigned as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Company and a member of each of the executive committee, the pricing
committee and the strategy and investment committee of the Company.

Mr. Simon started his career as an auditor at Ernst & Young in 1995. In 1999, he moved to become a business controller
based in Germany at Dyckerhoff Group, an international producer of cement and ready-mixed concrete. In 2001, he was
relocated for the Dyckerhoff Group as the finance vice president and chief financial officer of Glens Falls Lehigh Cement
Company in New York, United States. From 2005, Mr. Simon worked in the paper and packaging industry for SCA
Packaging Europe as the chief financial officer for the Region Central Europe and subsequently as the managing director
and vice president with full financial responsibility for the Region Central and Eastern Europe. From 2013, Mr. Simon held
the chief financial officer position in the automotive supplier industry with NBHX Trim Group, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Ningbo Huaxiang Group, working in the field of interior surfaces for premium vehicles; and from 2016 onwards, with
the German SHW AG, a global supplier of motor & transmission oil pumps and brake discs, where he was responsible for
the transition after the takeover by a European strategic investor.

Mr. Simon holds a Master of Business Administration (Diplom-Kaufmann) degree from University of Wurzburg in
Germany.
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Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”), aged 40, was appointed as the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company in March 2020 and was removed as an executive director of the Company in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 7 January 2022; and on the same date, he ceased to be the chief executive
officer of the Company and a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee and
the pricing committee of the Company.

Mr. Suchan started his career at Bayer AG, a German pharmaceutical and chemical company, as a management trainee in
2002. In 2006, he joined Lanxess, as a strategy consultant working in Germany, Canada and China. From there he moved
to become the head of corporate development based in Shanghai at Lanxess Greater China in 2008. In 2010, Mr. Suchan
joined Lanxess’ inorganic pigments business unit as the commercial director for Asia Pacific. In 2014, Mr. Suchan was
additionally appointed as the vice president for all operations of the inorganic pigments business unit in the Asia Pacific
region. Subsequently, Mr. Suchan also served as the chief digital officer at Lanxess coordinating digital transformation
efforts in the Asia-Pacific region.

Mr. Suchan holds a Bachelor (Diplom-Kaufmann) of Business Administration and Economics degree from the University
of Applied Sciences in Essen, Germany and a Master of Business Administration degree from Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore and from Tsinghua University in Beijing, the PRC, respectively.
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EFRSHREBASEE

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen"), aged 48, was appointed as the chairman of the Board and an executive director of
the Company on 16 December 2020. Mr. Chen also served as the chairman of each of the executive committee, the
nomination committee, the strategy and investment committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He resigned
from these positions with effect from 3 March 2021.

Mr. Chen has extensive experience in corporate management, strategic investment and group restructuring. Mr. Chen
joined China Regenerative Medicine International Limited whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange (stock code:
8158), in July 2016 and served as the president from October 2016 to February 2017 and as the chief executive officer
from February 2017 to July 2018. He then served as the president and the chairman of Anlian Group Limited* (8% )55 &
BR’A ) from September 2018 to June 2020. Mr. Chen joined Liaoning Guoke Industrial Co., Ltd.* CREERIEXEA R
‘AT)) as the chairman from June 2020.

Mr. Chen previously acted as the deputy to the 10th and the 11th People’s Congress of Liaoning Province, the PRC. He
previously served as a director of Sino Life Insurance Co., Ltd.* (£8n AZFRERNDBRAE]), Bank of Dalian Co., Ltd.
and Huahui Life Insurance Co., Ltd.* (¥[E ASREIRMDERLIE) .

Mr. Chen holds a Master of Finance degree and a Master of Business Administration ("MBA") degree from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in Liaoning, the PRC, and an EMBA degree from Tsinghua University in Beijing, the
PRC.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREHREBASEE

Mr. Ding Zhiyi (“Mr. Ding”), aged 39, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 29 December 2020.
He also served as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and Investment committee and the pricing
committee of the Company. He resigned from these positions with effect from 5 March 2021.

He held various senior positions in China Huarong International Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2799) from 2014 to 2019, including
the assistant to the general manager and the general manager of the business review division. He was the head of the
corporate finance department of CCB International (Shanghai) Limited before 2014. He acted as an executive director,
the chairman of the board of directors and the chief executive officer of Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 988) from November 2017 to January 2019.

Mr. Ding holds a Bachelor's of Pure Mathematics and Applied Mathematics degree from Shanghai University in the PRC
and a Master’s of Mathematics Science degree from University of Adelaide in Australia.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFRSHREBASEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BiIJE#{TES

Current Independent Non-Executive Directors IR{EEILIEHMITES

Prof. Li Zhiguo (“Prof. Li"), aged 45, acts as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 24 May 2021. He also serves as a member of each of the remuneration committee, the audit committee and the
nomination committee of the Company.

Prof. Li has intimate knowledge of strategic management and business mechanism of the PRC, and has extensive
experience in academic research, government policy research and consultation research. Prof. Li held senior positions
at Shanghai Baosight Software Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600845), from 2008 to 2014, including serving as managing director of the research and development center of
the Southwest region, deputy general manager and the secretary of the Southwest region. In October 2014, Prof. Li
joined Chongging Wansuo Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (EEHIIRECEEELBHNERAT) as the
chief consultant to provide advice on strategic management. Prof. Li then moved to serve as associate professor at the
Chongging Technology and Business University in the PRC since January 2018, and was promoted to professor since
November 2021. He has also been a researcher specialising in strategic management at the Chongqing Technology and
Business University Enterprise Management Research Center* (8B T A2 ME B IR ZTH0) since January 2019.

Prof. Li graduated with a Bachelor of Ferrous Metallurgy degree from Chongging University in the PRC in 1999. He
further obtained a Master of Metallurgical Automation degree, a Doctor of Computer Software and Theory degree and
a Postdoctoral Fellowship in Management Science and Engineering from Chongging University in the PRC in 2002, 2008
and 2017, respectively.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREHREBASEE

Prof. Yan Guowan (“Prof. Yan"), aged 50, acts as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 4 March 2022. She also serves as the chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member of each of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

Prof. Yan is currently an associate professor in the School of Economics and Business Administration of Chongging
University in the PRC. She is mainly engaged in research on accounting and auditing issues relating to capital market
as well as corporate finance, and lectures on Accounting, Accounting for Government and Non-Profit Organisations,
Advanced Auditing Theory and Practice and other courses for undergraduate and master students. Prior to that, she
served as an officer in the Chongging Real Estate Administration Bureau Yuzhong District Branch* (EE T E#EEIEF
A& F) from 1992 to 1995.

Prof. Yan has obtained a Master of Construction Economics and Management degree and a Doctor of Technological
Economics and Management degree from Chongging University in the PRC and is a registered real estate appraiser and
land appraiser in the PRC.

Since August 2021, Prof. Yan has served as an independent director of Chongging Baiya Sanitary Products Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 003006).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFRSHREBASEE

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto”), aged 55, acts as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 4 March 2022. He also serves as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of
each of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (PRC) in September 1992 and is currently a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
(PRC). Mr. Szeto is the co-founder of Messrs. Y.T. Szeto & Co., Solicitors that was established in September 1996 and has
served as the sole proprietor of Messrs. Szeto & Co., Y.T. since January 2001. Mr. Szeto worked for Messrs. Paul Chan &
Co., Solicitors from October 1993 to August 1996 as an assistant solicitor. Prior to that, Mr. Szeto served as an articled
clerk in Messrs. Norman Yung & Co., Solicitors from September 1990 to September 1992 and then as an assistant
solicitor with the same firm from September 1992 to October 1993.

Since June 2017 and January 2020, Mr. Szeto has served as an independent executive director of Evergreen Products
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1962) and Wise Ally International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 9918) respectively.

Mr. Szeto graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong (PRC) in 1989 and
was awarded the postgraduate certificate of laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1990.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREHREBASEE

Former Independent Non-Executive Directors R IEHITE S

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"), aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in June 2010. Dr. Loke also served as the chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member of
each of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. He resigned from these positions
with effect from 6 December 2021.

Dr. Loke has over 42 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi
Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from University of South Australia. He is a fellow member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association.

He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange: China Silver Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 515), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (stock Code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock Code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock Code: 1005), Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (stock Code: 882), Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Forebase International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2310), TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock Code: 8017), V1 Group Limited (stock Code: 82)
and Zhenro Properties Group Limited (stock Code: 6158). He also serves as a non-executive director of Veson Holdings
Limited (formerly known as SCUD Group Limited) (stock code: 1399). He also served as an independent non-executive
director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock Code: 445) and Zhong An Group Limited (stock Code: 672)
until 1 February 2021 and 10 June 2021, respectively.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFRSHREBASEE

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (“Mr. Ko"”), aged 71, acted as an independent non-executive director of the Company from 19
February 2020 to 29 December 2020 and was re-appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 5 March 2021. He also served as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of
each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the strategy and investment committee of the Company. He
resigned from these positions with effect from 6 December 2021.

Mr. Ko started his career at Dow Chemical Company in 1976 and spent 31 years in various manufacturing and
commercial leadership roles, with his most recent role from 2005 to 2007 as a vice president of Greater China for
business development. He also previously served as a director of operations of Greater China, a general manager of
Greater China, and also an executive director of various joint ventures of Dow Chemical Company. In 2007, Mr. Ko joined
AEA Investors, a global private investment firm focused on private equity and debt investments in the middle market, and
is currently a partner and an operating executive.

Mr. Ko holds a Bachelor of Chemical Engineering degree from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States,
a Master of Chemical Engineering degree from the University of Kentucky in the United States, and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Marshall University in the United States.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREHREBASEE

Ms. Yang Yali (“Ms. Yang”), aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
29 December 2020. She also served as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of
each of the audit committee and the nomination committee. She resigned from these positions with effect from 5 March
2021.

Ms. Yang obtained a Bachelor of Business Management degree from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics
and a Master of Law degree from Tsinghua University in the PRC. She is a lawyer with law professional qualifications in
the PRC. She is currently a trainee solicitor of Beijing Guan Heng Law Firm*. She acted as the senior legal consultant
of Tencent Music (Beijing) Company Limited from May 2018 to May 2020 and the senior researcher for criminal law of
Tencent Technology (Beijing) Company Limited from March 2017 to May 2018. She held the positions as the prosecutor
and assistant prosecutor of Beijing Municipal People’s Procuratorate from July 2011 to March 2017.

Mr. Wang Qiwei (“Mr. Wang”), aged 30, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 29 December 2020. He also served as a member of each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. He resigned from these positions with effect from 5 March 2021.

Mr. Wang graduated from Shenyang University of Technology— Engineering College in China with a major in
measurement and control technology and instrument. He is currently the manager of a health service management
company in the PRC. He is specialised in sale and marketing planning, research and analysis, and he is also experienced in
retails operations and management, administrative management and staff training.
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EFRSHREBASEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EIEAS

Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”), aged 58, re-joined the Group as the chairman and chief executive director of Scholz
group, a major operation group of the Group, in December 2021.

Mr. Qin worked for the Group from June 2016 to December 2020. During his previous tenures, he took up various
senior management position, including chairman of the Board and executive director of the Company. He has extensive
knowledge of the business and operations of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Qin worked in LafargeHolcim group from 2004 to 2016, and his last position with
LafargeHolcim group was the purchasing director of the China region, with a particular focus on raw materials and
cementitious materials. Mr. Qin served as the head of the purchasing department of Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd.
from 1996 to 1999 and the finance director of Tianjin Philips Sy Catering and Entertainment Co., Ltd. from 1994 to
1996. Mr. Qin has extensive experience in corporate operation management, process and budget control, strategic
materials procurement and supplier management.

Mr. Qin holds a Bachelor of Finance and Accounting degree from Renmin University of China in the PRC and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Southampton in England.
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Directors’ Report

EFCHS

The directors of the Company have the pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out at in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 118 to 119 of this annual report 2021 (the “Annual Report”).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
from pages 9 to 13 and
pages 14 to 26, respectively, of this Annual Report which also form part
of this Directors’ Report.

and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to
gradually embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we will
continue to improve environmental sustainability measures in all our
facilities. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
environmental regulations in the PRC, Germany and the United States
that have a significant impact on the Group’s business. There were no
significant fines and no non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with environmental laws and regulations during the year. Details of
the above information will be set out in our environmental, social
and governance report which is scheduled to be published within five
months after the financial year end.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2021 that would
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to issues such as
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS
AND EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
and having regular meetings with major customers to have their
feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to ensure the
service quality and to make improvement.

The Group's raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important tasks in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EFEHS

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS
AND EMPLOYEES (continued)

The Group is committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or nationality, which is in accordance with
anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees are treated
equally within our welfare system and are provided with effective
channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when conducting business. A group-wide
Whistle-blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible
violation of law or company policy and to promote standards of good
corporate practices.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” from pages 51 to 53 in this Annual Report, there were
no contracts of significance with any member of the Group as the
contracting party and in which any of the controlling shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries possessed direct or indirect material interests, and
which were still valid as at 31 December 2021 or any time during such
year and related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu
Mr. Yao Jietian
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022)
Mr. Martin Simon
(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Chunguo
(resigned on 3 March 2021)
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Prof. Li Zhiguo

(appointed on 24 May 2021)
Prof. Yan Guowan

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Dr. Loke Yu

(resigned on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew

(appointed on 5 March 2021

and resigned on 6 December 2021)
Ms. Yang Yali

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei

(resigned on 5 March 2021)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Li
Linhui, Mr. Yao Jietian, Prof. Yan Guowan and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting shall
retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company under article
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Start Expire Duration of contract
s El)- ANED
Executive Directors Tu Jianhua 29 April 2021 N/A perpetual
nTEE REE “2_-HNAZ+AA ~ER YN
Li Linhui 13 December 2021 N/A perpetual
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Miao Yu 29 December 2020 N/A perpetual
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Yao lietian 13 December 2021 N/A perpetual
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DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT LETTERS ERLMERH
Start Expire Duration of contract
s i) BHER
Independent Non-Executive Directors Li Zhiguo 24 May 2021 23 May 2022 1 year
BIUFTES FEE “E-FRAZ+ME  ZRIZERAZFZH —F
Yan Guowan 4 March 2022 3 March 2023 1 year
SER ZZZZE=AMAH ZZZ=F=A=H —F
Szeto Yuk Ting 4 March 2022 3 March 2023 1 year
BIfESE ZE-"4=-AMmA _Z_=F=R=H —F

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any services contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and Senior Management are set at
from pages 27 to 43.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), there is no
changes in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules after
the publication of the Interim Report 2021 of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” from pages 51 to 53 in this Annual Report and Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business (including
those to which the Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party) in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such Director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
which subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year, none of the Company, its parent company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the shares of the Company (“Shares”).

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$3,401.9 million.

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisations by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$0.4 million (2020: HK$0.4 million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for 1.4% (2020: 2.7%) of the total purchases. The five
largest suppliers comprised 6.1% (2020: 7.4%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers were
less than 25% of total revenue in 2021.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or five largest customers
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company's business were entered into or subsisted during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had
the following connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions:

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 January 2020,
the Company and Loncin International Limited (“Loncin International”)
entered into a new sales framework agreement (the “New Agreement”)
on 22 January 2020 (which is effective from 22 January 2020 to 31
December 2020), and set the annual cap for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the New Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the New Agreement, relevant
member(s) of the Group would continue to supply certain non-ferrous
metal products to Loncin International.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 June 2020, the
Company and Loncin International further entered into a supplemental
agreement to the New Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
on 17 June 2020 to, among others, extend the term of the New
Agreement for an additional two years to 31 December 2022 and revise
the annual cap for the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and set the annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions for the years ending 31 December 2021 and
2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

As at the date of the Company’s announcement on 17 June 2020, Mr.
Tu, a Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, holds 98%
equity interests in Loncin Group Co., Limited, which in turn holds 98%
equity interests in Loncin Holdings Co., Limited (“Loncin Holdings”).
Loncin International is wholly-owned by Loncin Holdings. Therefore,
Loncin International is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tu.

The entering into of the New Agreement is of great benefit to the
Group by providing a steady stream of income to the Group. The
Supplemental Agreement further extends the strong and long-standing
business relationship which the Group can utilise for the future growth
of the Group. The Group believes that it is in the interests of the Group
to extend the term of the New Agreement and increase the annual cap
for the transactions thereunder for the year ended 31 December 2020
and set the annual caps for the two years ending 31 December 2022.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Supplemental Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are US$18.8 million, US$35.0 million
and US$50.0 million, respectively (the “New Annual Caps”). The total
actual amount of the transactions for the year ended 31 December
2021 was US$7.8 million.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the annual cap
in respect of the Supplemental Agreement exceeded 5%, accordingly,
the Supplemental Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company and was subject to reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 31 July 2020,
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened and
the transactions contemplated under the Supplemental Agreement and
the New Annual Caps were approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company have confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties;

(¢) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(d)  within the respective cap amounts as disclosed in the previous
announcements in which the relevant continuing connected
transactions were disclosed.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the related
party transactions set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 did not either fall within the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”, or were treated
as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details of which are set out below) has interests
in any businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules:

EFNGEEHPNED
REE_E_—G+-A=+—BLEE
BB EHRA BREE GRREL R
HEERHMT) RAAEEEHEERMA
BB PR S T A B O E T
A

Description of businesses of the entity which

Name of entity which businesses are
considered to compete or likely to

are considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business of

Nature of interest of

Name of Director ~ compete with the business of the Group  the Group the Director in the entity
BRAERERMEBERRIH BRARFEREBER RPN

Exfy AERRRFNERERRE

ARERRFNERERSNEZNHT

EENERNEREE

Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging

Usum”)*

According to the business scope as registered
with the State Administration For Industry
& Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

Controlling shareholder

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.

RRELE ERARBLEERRYEARAT

(EEmE)

RERTEBR IHTHEEZRETNEE
BE HLERILS (HHaf) BEERE

ERRR

BT -eEkE BEEBERES

*  for identification purposes only

Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu Jianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently mainly engaged in the disintegration of
automobiles and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are neither
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group's businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and Chongging
USUM do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (“Chief Executives”)
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “"Model Code"), were as follows:
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued Shares was 1,605,152,291
Shares.

2) The 978,383,181 Shares were held by the USUM Investment Group Hong Kong
Limited (“USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu") was indirectly
interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited
("USUM Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single
largest shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings"),
with an equity interest in USUM Group of 53.29%. The remaining equity interests
in USUM Group are held by 13 individuals and 27 companies, all of whom are
independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold between
0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98% owned by
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 978,383,181 Shares as at 31
December 2021. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and Chief Executives had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than the Directors and Chief Executives, in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares:

BB Em ok AT

BRIDEIYF A :

Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested G R ERHE
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest BFEEEN BB DL
RREE e 513/ #EmtE B 1 4R 8 (MF5E1)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
Hong Kong Limited
REBREER () BRATE BEm#EREA (MF5E2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
AEREERRNBRAT REREGEEZ #EE (MF5E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
BEEERARAF REESEEZ#E (MF5E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
BEEEEFRAA REESEEZ #am (MF5E2)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

R iREE (R
TERRNAQENR RAAARG H1E
HR%E @

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested EARERHE
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest HEEEN B4 B DL
RREE e 513/ EatE e 17 48 8 (MF5E1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
TRIERES A REEGEEZ #Em (MF5E2)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
BEmBEBEA (MF5E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.79%
Investment Limited
BESERERRAT BEm#EEA (Mf5E4)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 (Notes 3 & 4) 8.94%

SREAARSEE

Notes:

(1)

()

corporations
REESEEZ #a

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued Shares was 1,605,152,291
Shares.

The 978,383,181 Shares were held by the USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu
was indirectly interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of
USUM Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 53.29%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 13 individuals and 27
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin
Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 978,383,181 Shares as at 31
December 2021. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”)
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie
(“Mr. Zhang”) as at 31 December 2021. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

(4) The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
("Good Union”) as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
as at 31 December 2021. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
senior management of the Group based on their performance,
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY
BAND

The remuneration of the Company’s senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

=REEASZFHMEEE

HE_Z_—E£+"A=+—HLEEE =&
NEBREBABZ FHNEEEZWT :

Number of
individuals
A¥

Remuneration Band: e
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078752 1,000,0007% 7T 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 75 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 522,500,000 75 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001 723,500,000 75 =
More than HK$3,500,001 3,500,001t E 5

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Except for the litigation mentioned in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or
arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened
against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this Annual
Report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 290 of this Annual
Report.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
30 December 2021, 7 February 2022, 21 March 2022 and 22 April
2022 in relation to the potential Restructuring (as defined below)
of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) (collectively, the
"Announcements”).

As disclosed in the Announcements, Loncin Group Co., Limited,
Loncin Holdings Co., Limited and USUM Investment Group Limited
(the "Controlling Shareholders”), which are intermediate controlling
shareholders of the Company, and ten other companies related to the
Controlling Shareholders (together with the Controlling Shareholders,
the “Loncin Restructuring Companies”) are undergoing a restructuring
(the "Restructuring”) under the supervision of the Fifth Intermediate
People’s Court of Chongging City (the “Chongging Intermediate
Court”). On 30 September 2021, the Chongqging Intermediate Court
accepted the filing of the application for the pre-restructuring of the
Loncin Restructuring Companies. Temporary restructuring administrator
has been appointed to lead the restructuring process. On 30 December
2021, the Company was informed that, with the authorisation from
the Loncin Restructuring Companies, their temporary restructuring
administrator has signed a restructuring investment agreement with
an investors consortium (the “Consortium”) which is led by Shandong
Jiuyang Group Limited (“Shandong Jiuyang”). On 7 February 2022,
the Company received a notice from USUM Investment Group Limited
that it had received a ruling from Chongging Intermediate Court on 30
January 2022 approving the acceptance of the restructuring application
of USUM Investment Group Limited.

On 21 April 2022, the Company was informed by Shandong Jiuyang
that the Executive Director of the Corporate Finance Division (the
"Executive”) of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
(the "SFC”) has confirmed that no mandatory general offer obligation
for the shares of the Company will be triggered by Shandong Jiuyang
as a result of the Restructuring under Note 8 to Rule 26.1 of The Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”). For the
purposes of the Takeovers Code, the offer period commenced from 30
December 2021 and ended on 22 April 2022.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

The Loncin Restructuring Companies have convened the first creditors’
meeting of the Restructuring through online meeting on 22 April 2022.
As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report,
the plan of the Restructuring has not been submitted to the creditors
of the Loncin Restructuring Companies at creditors’ meetings for voting
and approval.

As a matter of procedure, implementation of the Restructuring is
conditional upon and remains subject to approval by the creditors of the
Loncin Restructuring Companies at a creditors’ meeting and sanction
by the Chongqging Intermediate Court. As at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, neither the creditors’ approval
nor the court’s sanction has been obtained.

Given that the Company is not one of the Loncin Restructuring
Companies and is independent from the Controlling Shareholders in
respect of business, personnel, assets and finance, the Board confirms
that the Restructuring of the Controlling Shareholders mentioned above
currently has no material adverse impact on the operation and the
financial status of the Company.

The Company will closely monitor the subsequent development and
effect of the Restructuring. Further announcement(s) will be made by
the Company as and when appropriate or required in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and/or
the Takeovers Code (as the case may be).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
RREEE

Li Linhui
EMEE
Chairman

EY

Hong Kong, 13 June 2022
BB TETTHFNATZ=H
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group's business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
“CG Code”) have been adopted to shape the Company’s corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2021 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG code, contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save and
except as explained below:

C.21

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 (former code provision A.2.1) of the
CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen"”) resigned as the chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”) and an executive Director with effect from 3 March
2021. Since then, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”), the chief
executive officer of the Company (“CEO"), temporarily took up all the
responsibilities of the Chairman.

FEERBS

e
RABRBHEFSKTEEELRZEE M-
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BEARERRAEMAMDAREED 22
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BT Z TR EERMERET AT Z
TEEARB - AEEEARSTEMEABET
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ATAZRAMEES TR S EERR -
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

C.2.1 (continued)

Mr. Suchan was suspended from his role as the CEO by the Board on 6
December 2021; and he was further removed as an executive Director
by the shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 7 January 2022; and on the same
date, he ceased to be the CEO.

Mr. Li Linhui (“Mr. Li”) was appointed as the Chairman and temporarily
took up the responsibilities of the CEO with effect from 13 December
2021.

Vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person is a
temporary measure due to the vacancies of the position of Chairman
or CEO. The Company is looking for a suitable candidate for the
position of the CEO. Also, the Directors considered that the present
arrangement would not impair the balance of power and authority
considering the background and experience of the Directors and
the number of independent on-executive Directors on the Board.
Accordingly, the Directors considered that the temporary deviation from
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code was appropriate in such circumstances.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether any
changes are necessary.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries made by the Company of all such Directors, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report,
the Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 27 to
43 of this Annual Report, namely:
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BEFYg

EEGHEM

FERERE

REEHRTEFNRBEERITHR &5
ERERNSATEFR=REIUIFNTE
EHEM - REZBEFBHNAFTRE2TE
BEEERSREBAEBEI—HN &

Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director
Name of Director BREZEMA —RESE
EEH4 EEgZAB AEEZHHE
Executive Director HITES

Tu Jianhua TR 29 April 2015 29 June 2021
“E-hAFMAZ+AH ZEZ—FAZ+NH
Li Linhui FME 13 December 2021 N/A
2 —+ZA+=H AiEA
Miao Yu HR 29 December 2020 29 June 2021
F+ZAZ+A1H ZEZ—FAZ+NH
Yao Jietian PR K 13 December 2021 N/A
2 —+ZA+=H TiEH

Independent BIUERITES

Non-Executive Directors

Li Zhiguo =EE 24 May 2021 29 June 2021
—FR/-+WMAH “EZ—FAZ+NH
Yan Guowan ZE7E 4 March 2022 N/A
2T H=-FIEAH AiEA
Szeto Yuk Ting BESE 4 March 2022 N/A
“E-__H#£=HAWNAH AiEF

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director or Chief Executive.

thERHABRARIF) ©

TR
H

BRMAEEFRAHR

MEEERETHMEEFHTETRASER
BEEAEARG (BEMT EH REFH

BT —FER
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group's overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of
interest of substantial Shareholders or Directors; (iii) approval of the
Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company's capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution of
policies and strategies decided by the Board to the executive Directors
and management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under A.2.1
of the CG Code and relevant compliance issues relating to the business
operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior manager; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to
all relevant information regarding the Group's affairs and have
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”). The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, fourteen Board meetings,
one general meeting of the Company were held. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. At the Board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control
of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and
general meetings held during the year:

EFg (@@
ESUGHREFTER @
EEUENAFERTEE LR HREE

REMBERIENT

No. of meeting attended/
eligible to attend

BUHE/AEREREERY
Regular General

Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting

s THEEEER BEAE

Executive Director HITEE

Tu Jianhua REE 14/14 11

Li Linhui Eihig 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 13 December 2021) (WZEZ—F+ZF+=HEZT)

Miao Yu EHR 1114 0/1

Yao Jietian AKX 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 13 December 2021) (R-E-—F+_F+=HEZT)

Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan 1314 "N
(removed on 7 January 2022) W_E-__F—H+tHKES)

Martin Simon Martin Simon 1014 1”7
(resigned on 14 December 2021) (R ZFZ—F+ZH+HHFE)

Ding Zhiyi &k 00 0/0
(resigned on 5 March 2021) (WZEZ—F=FHHFHE)

Chen Chunguo BREE 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 3 March 2021) W _FE_—F£=F=HF)

Independent Non-Executive Director BUERTES

Li Zhiguo E5E 6/8 "
(appointed on 24 May 2021) WZEZ—Fh A= +HHEZE)

Yan Guowan Z2EH% 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 4 March 2022) it Sy == )

Szeto Yuk Ting BfERE 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 4 March 2022) R-FE_—#=FHEZF

Loke Yu b=t /12 11
(resigned on 6 December 2021) (R-E-—F+_FHFE)

Ko Frankie Andrew SHGE:: 8/12 11
(appointed on 5 March 2021 and R -E_—FZHIHEZAR
resigned on 6 December 2021) REE-—F+"HA~NHFT)

Yang Yali ¥ 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 5 March 2021) R-FE-—#£=FFLHFE)

Wang Qiwei I5E 0/0 0/0

(resigned on 5 March 2021)

R-FE-_—F=HHHFF)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at any time.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting. The Company Secretary
or the staff of the company secretarial department of the Company is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group’s affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen") tendered his resignation as the
Chairman and an executive Director with effect from 3 March 2021.
Since then, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”) took up all the
responsibilities of the Chairman.

With effect from 6 December 2021, Mr. Suchan was suspended from
his role as the CEO. With effect from 13 December 2021, Mr. Li
Linhui (“Mr. Li") was appointed as the Chairman and also took up the
responsibilities of the CEQ. Mr. Suchan was removed as an executive
Director by an ordinary resolution duly passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company which was held on 7 January 2022
and he also ceased to be the CEO on the same date.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Chen or Mr. Suchan or Mr. Li was
responsible for providing leadership of the Board and ensuring that
all Directors are properly informed on issues to be discussed at
Board meetings. In addition, he is responsible for ensuring that all
Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate, complete and reliable
information in relation to the Group’'s affairs. The Chairman also
encouraged Directors to actively participate in and to make a full
contribution to the Board so that the Board functions effectively and
acts in the best interest of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Suchan or Mr. Li was also responsible
for the strategic planning, administration and management of the
business of the Group. He was also responsible for the formulation
and successful implementation of Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all operations of the Group. Mr. Suchan
or Mr. Li oversaw the Group’s compliance and internal control matters
and maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors
to keep them fully informed of all major business developments and
issues. He had also been focusing on strategic planning and assessment
of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of
one year with automatically renewal option for successive terms of one
year upon the expiry of a term, which were subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and is eligible for re-election at
each annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. None of them hold any other
offices in the Company or any its subsidiaries or is interested in any
Shares save as disclosed under section headed “Disclosure of Interests”
on pages 55 to 59 in this Annual Report. In the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings held during the year, constructive views and
comments are given by the independent non-executive Directors, who
have provided their independent judgement on the issues relating to
the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and management process
of the Group.

Following the changes of Directors on 5 March 2021, the Board only
had two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Loke Yu
("Dr. Loke"”) and Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (“Mr. Ko"), which therefore
fell below the minimum requirements under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the number of members of the Audit Committee
decreased from three to two, falling below the minimum number
required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

On 24 May 2021, Prof. Li Zhiguo (“Prof. Li"”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee, which allowed the Company to meet the minimum number
of independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules and the minimum number of members in the Audit
Committee as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignations of Dr. Loke and Mr. Ko, the independent
non-executive Directors, on 6 December 2021, the Board only had one
independent non-executive Director, namely Prof. Li, which therefore
fell below the minimum requirements under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules. The Company also failed to meet the requirement under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules to have at least one independent
non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
In addition, the number of members of the Audit Committee decreased
from three to one, falling below the minimum number required under
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

On 4 March 2022, Prof. Yan Guowan (“Prof. Yan”) and Mr. Szeto
Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto") were appointed as independent non-executive
Directors and members of the Audit Committee, which allows the
Company to meet the minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the requirement under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules to have at least one independent non-executive
director who possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board
considers all of them, namely Prof. Li, Prof. Yan, Mr. Szeto, Dr. Loke and
Mr. Ko to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Pui Sea (“Ms. Lam") was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 18 December 2020. Ms. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a Bachelor
of Economics and Finance degree from the University of Hong Kong.
She has worked in various listed companies on the Stock Exchange and
an international accounting firm. Ms. Lam has extensive experience
in accounting and internal control, corporate secretarial services and
corporate administration.

Ms. Lam resigned as the Company Secretary and Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty
("Ms. So") was re-appointed as the Company Secretary with effect
from 5 March 2021. Ms. So currently serves as a vice president of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an external
service provider. Ms. So has a Master of Chinese and Comparative Law
degree from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Leicester (long distance learning
course). Ms. So was an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom and an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute. During the Reporting Period, Ms. Wan Yuk Yee
(Senior Manager) was the primary contact persons of Ms. So.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (continued)

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board
by ensuring efficient and effective information flow within the Board
and that the Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Compliance Director, Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who regularly
updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures
of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Lam and Ms. So had
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.
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EEELHS

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to six Board committees, namely
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment
Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of which are as follows:

EFEEY
EZgnEEEEZEE WTEREE BX
ZEE RLZEE FMWEE T BERER
BELZEeREBEEY) HEERE  UH
BEFERTRE FIRHIWT ¢

Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination  Remuneration Investment Pricing
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Commlﬂgzg Committee*
e HT%REE ELEEY RYL%EEE FMEEE REZEY EEZEY
Executive Director HITES
Tu Jianhua R M M
Li Linhui v C c C C
(appointed on H_FZ—F
13 December 2021) 7" ~ 5 = AEEE
Miao Yu M M M M M
Yao Jietian iﬁt*% M M M
(appointed on R-F_—fF
13 December 2021) F+_B+=HEZH)
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Raf{ag\l H%mch Suchan M M M
(removed on /- -
7 January 2022) —AtHARESR)
Martin Simon Martin Simon M M M
(resigned on R_F_—fF
14 December 2021) +=A +ﬂ75’/§f/f)
Ding Zhiyi T M M M
(resigned on R_F_—F
5 March 2021) A7 HFT)
Chen Chunguo BEE C C c c
(resigned on R_FE_—fF
3 March 2021) ZH=HE#D
Independent BiUEHTES
Non-Executive Director
Li Zhiguo FEE M M M
(appointed on (K_F_—F
24 May 2021) EA - AR
Yan Guowan Z[EH5 C M M
(appointed on (K_F_—F
4 March 2022) ZFAAEEE)
Szeto Yuk Ting BIESE M M c
(appointed on (KW_F__F
4 March 2022) ZFAAEEE)
Loke Yu M C M M
(resigned on H_F_—F
6 December 2021) +ZAHE#T)
Ko Frankie Andrew BihR M M C M
(appointed on (K_F_—F
5 March 2021 and ZHEAEZER
resigned on KRZE_—F
6 December 2021) +ZANHEHE)
Yang Yali LA M M c
(resigned on R-E-—fF
5 March 2021) ZHAHF)
Wang Qiwei IE% M M M
(resigned on R-E-—f
5 March 2021) ZHAHAF)
L C - Chairman * C—%&
M - Member M—ALE
# Other members of the Pricing Committee are certain senior management of the  * CTEZEGHMAERAETRATETEREEA
Company. Be
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee in 2011 with written
terms of reference, which is responsible for the management and
administration of the business of the Company and any matters which
are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under the
control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with information and
a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to ensure
that they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended
31 December 2021, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in
an informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

HITEEE (@)
EEHNRELLE @)

(continued)

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31 %%E’\%Zi ——H+ZA=+—HIHF
December 2021 is summarised as follows: EFiE® 2 15s ||$E% T
Directors Types of training
BE 1EENEE R
Tu Jianhua REEE A B
Li Linhui FHHE

(appointed on 13 December 2021) (R —EFE——F+_F+=HESZT) B
Miao Yu =] A, B
Yao Jietian 15 FOT N

(appointed on 13 December 2021) (R —FEZ—F+ZF+=HEZE) A, B
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(removed on 7 January 2022) (R ZEZZF—F+HFEER) A, B
Martin Simon Martin Simon

(resigned on 14 December 2021) (K ZEZ—F+ZH+AHFE) A, B
Ding Zhiyi TEE

(resigned on 5 March 2021) R —E-—F=HFHAFT) B
Chen Chunguo fREE

(resigned on 3 March 2021) (R ZEZ—F=H=HFT) B
Li Zhiguo FEE

(appointed on 24 May 2021) (R ZEZ—FLHZ+IHEZT) A, B

Yan Guowan Z[E5E

(appointed on 4 March 2022) (R ZFEZZF=FIHESF) B
Szeto Yuk Ting B REEIE

(appointed on 4 March 2022) (R ZEZZF=FIHESZT) B
Loke Yu TN

(resigned on 6 December 2021) R ZEZ—F+_H AT A, B
Ko Frankie Andrew = I of

(appointed on 5 March 2021 R-E_—F=HOHAEZER

and resigned on 6 December 2021) R —F A+ ASNHFE) A'B
Yang Yali RN

(resigned on 5 March 2021) (R ZFEZ—F=FHHFFF) B
Wang Qiwei F&HF

(resigned on 5 March 2021) (R —FEZ—F=H7AHAFT) B

A attending seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops relevant to the business A

of the Group or Director’s duties

B reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and Directors’ B

duties and responsibilities

HEASEEEBAEEHERM AN E B

R wE NG TS

EAERZ T
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee in 2015, which has included
changes in line with the amendments to the Main Board Listing Rules.
The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. The Audit
Committee has established a whistleblowing policy of the Company in
2012 and set out the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in
financial reporting matters of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company's internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member

are as follows:

Role in Meetings
Audit attended/
Name of committee member Position Committee eligible to attend
HBRZEE BHiE/
ZEEHENS Bfu ZHkE RERLEERREY
Yan Guowan Independent non-executive Director Chairman 0/0
(appointed on 4 March 2022)
ZE5 BUFNTES IR
(KB ZF=ANHEZ)
Li Zhiguo Independent non-executive Director Member 17
(appointed on 24 May 2021)
FEE BUFNTES =]
(R ZEZ—FHH - +IHEST)
Szeto Yuk Ting Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(@ppointed on 4 March 2022)
AlfEaE BIFRTES 3=
(RZEZ—F=FIHEZE)
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Chairman 212
(resigned on 6 December 2021)
BB BUFHTES IR
(R ZEZ—F+_FHFF)
Ko Frankie Andrew Independent non-executive Director Member 2/2
(appointed on 5 March 2021
and resigned on 6 December 2021)
SIoE:: BUFNTES =]
R-E-—(=FRAEZIR
{ZE-—FFZFAHE
Yang Yali Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Ly B BUFHTES =]
RZFE-—FZFHHFF
Wang Qiwei Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
5 BUFNTES =]

WR_E_—F=HZHFT)

RBEE_E_—F+_-_A=+—HLEE"
EZZEeERNEEEEN REEETHE
MEREFEE THEEREMEEAS
BRAEERMKE UHHRRAEEH
R, HEEENRTYELAERFRAMBTRE
BYE Z A Rt /E BRSNS AL BUAT ; BRI

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed, together with the management, the annual results, interim
results and related announcements including the disclosures, financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to
the submission to the Board approval; discussed with management
on significant judgements affecting Group’s consolidated financial
statements and approved the appointment of external auditor; reviewed 5T PAIEPERIEIRE ; 5T R TEALQ BRI
and discussed the internal control report; reviewed and assessed the EEiEREGEIEMNTEMERBNE ; UKkiE
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’ internal control and risk 5 B = SNEE I BRBT BB 3L 14 R iZ B2 P B9
management; and reviewed and monitored the external auditor's FEERMERAE M-
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit

process.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. Save as disclosed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had engaged the
Group's external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:
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B -BREZEEEERARIEES

T+ A=+ —HIEFEZE2FEE

KRirEMBRER -EFTHREECEEAY
FER PRS- REFRERNASEREM
VBIWBERETE AWM REEZTZ &
A BIRRM 2V AFFIESIN BT
THEBHEAEBERIBERZEATERR
H o MAMEENBERIEFERQBFER

B2RENRHERERE

A CIE)
RBEE_T_—F+"A=+—HILLEFE"
FERBRERBKBEMER (B

FkE]) BASEEINEZ AT PR IR AR TS
AR ERWT -

2021
—E-—%
HKS$M
BEAT

Type of services BRFEE R
Audit services BETERTS 17.3
Non-audit services JEBETARTS 8.0
Total 48t 25.3

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services to certain subsidiaries of the
Group and the aggregated fees charged were HK$1.9 million.

HE_ T —&F+"A=+—HLEEE K
EETREEMNZBMATERETTAE
REBARE MESHMEENEERS1.9
BEEBTe
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider
that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed
and prudent judgement of the Board and the management. Save as
disclosed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on from pages 110 to
117 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in 2010 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in 2013. The written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. formulating the nomination policy for consideration by the Board
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

Linhui
(Chairman), Prof. Li Zhiguo (independent non-executive Director), Prof.
Mr. Szeto Yuk
Ting (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Miao Yu (executive
Director).

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Li

Yan Guowan (independent non-executive Director),
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee convened four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021 with the attendance of each member as

RBZEEE (@)

REEZEEREEZS

—F+=A=+—

HIEFEHARNRES SRELES

follows: mr:
Role in Meetings
Nomination attended/
Name of committee member Position r_gﬁoggttee eligible to attend
ZEEHERSR A HAE uﬁ*ﬁ&ﬁ@%"}@k
Li Linhui Executive Director Chairman 0/0
fplgomted on 13 December 2021) o
5 wnER IR
WZE_—F+_F+=HEZH)
Li Zhlguo Independent non-executive Director Member 17
‘omted on 24 May 2021) ‘ o .
FEH BUEHTES mE
RZE-—FHH_+AHESE)
Miao Yu Executive Director Member "
(appointed to the Nomination Committee on
= 73 December 2021) . -
i HITES ]
(iA F——F A HREEER
EEZSEHE)
Yan Guowan Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(ap,gomted on 4 March 2022) e .
BES BuEHES ]
(iA_ E- = AIAESE)
Szeto Yuk TII’;P Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(apgomte on 4 March 2022) e .
BHESIE BUERTES 395}
(K ZEZ_F=FIHEZF)
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
(reS/gned on 6 December 2021) e -
BI/MAK - BUFNTES =]
(RZEZ—F+-AHEE)
Ko Frankle Andrew Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
(appointed on 5 March 2021
and reS/gnea’ on 6 December 2021) ‘ o .
B - BIFRTES 8
(_g;—ﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁggﬁﬁ
S ZE LA HE)
Yang Yali Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(res _qned on 5 March 2021) \ . -
. BUFNTES =]
(/YA_ E_—F=F 7 HFHT)
Wang Qiwei Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(re5/gned on 5 March 2021) \ . -
. BUFNTES =]
-s——£=mzr a8
Chen Chunguo Executive Director Chairman 0/0
(resiqned on 3 March 2021) .
- - HITES 3
K _E_—F=F=HFA)
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination R&HEE_Z_—F+_B=+—HILEE

Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and
structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and re-election of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Nomination Committee considered the age, education background and
working experience of the candidates when selecting the executive
Directors.

The Board currently has one female Director and thereby has achieved
gender diversity at the Board level. We will continue to strive to
enhance female representation in the workforce and achieve an
appropriate balance of gender diversity according to business needs and
future development. We will also ensure that there is gender diversity
when recruiting staff at mid to senior level and are committed to
providing career development opportunities for female staff so that we
will have a pipeline of potential successors to our Board in future.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management.

HMES S

AAT BB ETHRAN SRR E
BTN S —SERUFHESE 25T
REAREBE FHES TN EERED
BB TP A e A A BB B P (B B o

FMEEEasN Pk A 8a/E
FIEESEhsREZEEHFMBEREE U
RAERBDZEBATESTRSREERE 25N
BIOEFGRMIEBEZR-

PITESHFHFMEEELRTE  REREE
TEAL

HFHMEEENREARE BEMKBEMF
LA - EERNEFEZHRURE
EFREAKRE ATEFRESHELSFHE
SMTEBERUEREY B IEAL -

TEREBACTEFASHREERBNFME
?O

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
i =]:y) EREN HEREF1E
Basic salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually

each individual with market trend
B+ RREBEAZTIHEE SARENM SERTHBBIELIR
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
R K5 KRikEES & hHIER

Discretionary
performance bonus

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

HENMEE R A RABEE B KEN
RIBURERBEARREER

HIBRIRIEAL RENR
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’
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#HINEEE (B)

TRIREEHE T _—F+_H=+—

remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021: HIEFE 2 5l 2 R4
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RRET
e HEmEM RRTA BE Hitvig# szt
HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEET BEET
(Note (a))
(GEG)
Year Ended 31 December 2021: HE_Z--F+-B=t+-HIEE:
Executive Directors BiTES
Tu Jianhua REE - 40 35 - - 75
Li Linhui e
(appointed on 13 December 2021) RoE-—F+-H+=FEZH) = 0.1 = = 0.1
Miao Yu =5 - 0.6 02 - - 08
Ya0 Jietian AKX
(appointed on 13 December 2021) WoE-—f+-F+=HEZH) - - - - - -
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022) WoE-—f—F+ARES) = 6.5 = _ = 6.5
Martin Simon Martin Simon
(resigned on 14 December 2021) (K ZE-—FE1_F+BAEE) = 37 14 S = 5.1
Ding Zhiyi TS
(resigned on 5 March 2021) R-E-—FE=H7 AR = 09 = = = 09
Chen Chunguo REE
(resigned on 3 March 2021) (R-E-—F=F=AfH) - 12 - - = 12
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Li Zhiguo E3
(appointed on 24 May 2021) R-F-—FFA-+IAESE) 02 = = = = 02
Yan Guowan ZEHR
(appointed on 4 March 2022) (R-E-_F=FNAESHE) - - - - - -
Szeto Yuk Ting AfESE
(appointed on 4 March 2022) (R-E-—E=-HRHEZE - = - . _ .
Loke Yu iz
(resigned on 6 December 2021) WZE-—F+ A/ A 02 - - - b 02
Ko Frankie Andrew Bhh#
(appointed on 5 March 2021 R-E_—F=HLAESFR
and resigned on 6 December 2021) RZE-—F+ZHHFHE) 0.2 = = S = 0.2
Yang Yali i
(resigned on 5 March 2021) R-F-_—#=F7AFD 0.05 - - - - 0.05
Wang Qiwei I5f
(resigned on 5 March 2021) (R-E-—F=FTAFHT) 0.05 - - - - 0.05

Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company made contributions to

the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Miao
Yu, Mr. Yao Jietian, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan, Mr. Chen Chunguo and Mr. Ding
Zhiyi of HK$18,000, HK$19,500, HK$1,500, HK$18,000, HK$6,000 and HK$6,000

respectively.

Mizta: RBEEZZ-—F+-A=+—HLEFE &2

SRR AREBESLE HARAE - ARLE
Rafael Heinrich Suchanft4 ~BREE A K T 55
FEmEBRGIEAER B (EH 18,0005
75~ 19,5008 75~ 1,500 75 ~ 18,0007 7T ~ 6,000
7570 6,00078 7T ©

FABREMERAT "B —FFR
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Committee held five meetings.
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors

the Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee

and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are

as follows:

=S T (&)
KEE-®-—F+-A=+—HLEE

N HFENEEEHARIREH -FHES
CHEENTEFZHFMBR IEFHNE

BEREEE T’EHH&EE%&&V%%"%%E’J
KR -HMEEETHEREMEZHER
LI

Role in Meetings
Remuneration attended/
Name of committee member Position Committee eligible to attend
- ERMEAE i
ZEEHENS Wil H%n“% RERLESRRY
Szeto Yuk Ting Independent non-executive Director Chairman 0/0
a/g,w/nteo’ on 4 March 2022) e
BUFNTES IR
K -E-—F=FHAEZE)
Li Zhiguo Independent non-executive Director Member 2/2
(a/gomted on 24 May 2021) e .
FEE BUFNTES =]
(RZEZ—FH A+ HEZHF)
Miao Yu Executive Director Member 1”7
(appointed to the Remuneration Committee
..0n 13 December 2021) o -
B e BTEEZ 8
(¢ —F——s+ —F+ZAEECAFNES
ERE)
Yan Guowan Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
‘gpomted on 4 March 2022) \ . -
il BuEHFES ]
(K _E__F=FIAREZH)
Ko Frankle Andrew Independent non-executive Director Chairman 3/3
(appointed on 5 March 2021 and
_ resigned on 6 December 2021) e
Sl BUFNTES IR
(AiA_ E—F=-HrARZHR
RZEZ—F1 A H#E)
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 4/4
(resigned on 6 December 2021) ‘ o -
37 S BIFRTES &
(RZE_—F+_F A7)
Yang Yali Independent non-executive Director Chairman 0/0
resi gned on 5 March 2021) ‘ o
M BIFRTES IR
( ZEZ-F=ZHAHET)
Wang Qiwei Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(feS/gned on 5 March 2021) ‘ o -
i BUEHTES =
/At ]
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration REEE_ZE_—E+_F=+—HILEES
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval > #lEZE g wmAEZEETIHER
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group HEZEERSHEEAEN T - —EMH
for the year of 2021, and the bonus payments to the Directors and B’ URBAEATNEERSHREEAEL N
senior management of the Company. iz E o
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group’s development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in 2015. The written terms of
reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have been
subsequently adopted in 2016 and are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i)  to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(iii)  to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the
Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities,
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5%
according to the size test(s) required by the Listing Rules.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

(continued)

Members of the Strategy and Investment Committee are as follows:

BIRRICEREE (@)

BRRRKESZSE HENT !

Role in
Strategy and
Investment
Name of committee member Position Committee
. EHBARH
ZEEREHS B fu ZEEZHA
Tu Jianhua Executive Director Member
TR RITESE 3=
Li Linhui (g Xo,oomted on 13 December 2021) Executive Director Chairman
EME (K —E_—F+_F+=HEZH) RITES £
Miao Yu Executive Director Member
ER RITESE mE
Yao Jietian (appointed on 13 December 2021) Executive Director Member
WAK (K ZE-—F+_F+=HEZF) RITES (331
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Executive Director Member
(removed on 7 January 2022) HTEE mE
K_E-__F-HtAREL
Martin Simon Executive Director Member
(reS/gned on 14 December 2021) HTEE mE
K ZEZ—F+_F1HHFE)
Ko Frankie Andrew Independent non-Executive Director Member
(apgomteo’ on 5 March 2021 and resigned on 6 December 2021) BUFHTES [53=1
I_Jiﬁg
R_E_—F=FLAEEIRK -E_—F+ A A
Goh Kian Guan (resigned on 30 April 2021) Chief Investment Officer Member
RER K ZE-—FMA=+HT) BREREE mE
Di Zhiyi (res/gneo’ on 5 March 202 Z) Executive Director Member
S8 KB —F=FLHFF RITESE mE
Chen Chunguo (resigned on 3 March 2021) Executive Director Chairman
BEE (K -F_—F=H=HFF) nIES E3
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PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee, which currently comprises, Mr. Li Linhui
(Chairman), Mr. Miao Yu, Mr. Yao lJietian and Mr. Udo Langhans, has
been established and delegated with the operations of the Group’s
policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts (the “Policy”). It
determines the range of metal futures contracts that the Group may
enter into during the month. On regular basis, the Pricing Committee
reviews the open positions of the Group and determines (i) the
hedging requirements; (ii) the quantity and the price of the metal
futures contracts that the Group is going to long and short; (iii) the risk
management strategy and approach, making sure the Group has an
effective risk monitoring system.

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in
metal futures contracts of the Group, in 2018, the Board adopted a
commodity price risk hedging policy which has been subsequently
updated to cater for the changing operating conditions of the Group.
The latest commodity price risk hedging policy is available on the
Company's website.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Pricing Committee
has reviewed the Group's physical stock price and hedging transactions.
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of the Pricing Committee are as follows:

EEZET (B)
EBEREZMEMT

Role in
Name of committee member Position Pricing Committee
AEBZEE
ZEEHERSR 4 Z WAt
Li Linhui (appointed on 13 December 2021) Executive Director Chairman
EME (K ZE-—F+_F+=HEZH) RITES IF®
Miao Yu Executive Director Member
ER RITES (331
Yao Jietian (appointed on 13 December 2021) Executive Director Member
WAR (K ZE_—F+_FA+=HEZF) RITESE ma
Udo Langhans Head of Commodity Risk Management Member
BREREETE mE
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer Member
(removed on 7 January 2022) HTESRITHAEE 33}
KZFE__F—HLtARESR
Marc Breidenbach International Chief Operating Officer of Scholz Member
(resigned on 21 December 2021) Group, a major operation group of the [59=1
K=F=—F+ZA=1—H#T) Company \
I‘Efﬁﬁ%@ (Mﬂ MIBZEER) W
BREREE
Huang Ting Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer Member
(appomted on 30 April 2021 and resigned on 16 December 2021) of Greater China region [p9=]
Bl (K ZE-—FA=1HBZARN ZE-—F+ A+ AR RHEREEREEREREER
Martin Simon Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer Member
(resigned on 14 December 2021) (¥ =& _—F+_F+ L HF#E) RTEERERYHBE mE
William Thomas Bird Chief Trading Officer Member
(appointed on 1 July 2021 and resigned on 14 December 2021) BREEZE mE
K ZE_—FtH—HBEZARK _E_—F1+_H1HHT)
Haehne Gerd Chief Executive Office of Germany and Member
(resigned on 31 May 2021) Poland region Mg
W ZE_—FHHA=1—HHT BERRENETHAE
Maier Tobias Chief Operating Officer of Germany region Member
(appointed on 1 January 2021 and resigned on 31 May 2021) EEMEEESER 33}
(KB Z—F—F—HEZARK -_E-—FHF=1—HE#E)
Kian Guan Goh (resigned on 30 April 2021) Chief Investment Officer Member
RER K ZE-—FMA=+HFT) BERKREE 33}
D|ng Zh|y| (reygned on 5 March 2021) Executive Director Member
S8 CE—F=AL AR RITES ma
Chen Chunguo (resigned on 3 M@rch 2021) Executive Director Chairman
BEE K -FE-—E£=HZAFF RITESE IE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, including reviewing their
effectiveness whereas management is responsible for the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company leverages on the expertise offered by internal and
external professionals to develop its internal control system, which
includes a well-established corporate structure and an organisation with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. These systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM")
framework to assist the Group in managing its risks. The Group’s ERM
framework includes the following key elements:

(1)  Risk Identification — A Risk Universe fits for the Group's business
model has been established. Relevant risks faced by the Group
have been identified and the risks are classified into four types,
namely, strategic, operational, financial reporting and compliance
risk;

(2)  Risk Assessment — A Risk Workshop amongst key management
members was conducted to assess and priorities the risks of
the Group. The risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact by the key
management of the Group;

(3) Risk Mitigation — A Risk Owner is assigned to each key risk
identified. Each Risk Owner is responsible for the risk assigned.
Risk mitigation actions are tailored and established to address the
risks; and
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

(4)  Risk Monitoring and Reporting — Risk Owner is responsible for
ensuring the risk mitigation plan is executed and implemented
properly by appropriate parties (e.g. with appropriate measures/
adequate policies and procedures in place). Internal Audit
has a role to evaluate and assess if the risk mitigation plans
are designed and operated effectively by management. The
development and the status of the ERM program is reported to
the Audit Committee on a regularly basis.

The implementation of the Group’s ERM framework was assisted by
management, the Group'’s Pricing Committee, Strategy and Investment
Committee and Internal Audit Department. These framework and setup
enables the Group to ensure any new and emerging risk relevant to the
Group's operation is promptly identified and managed.

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group's Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group's
Internal Audit Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group's business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the Group's Internal Audit Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically. The risk management
and internal control system of the Group is reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee
and the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [E[[SEIBRANIPELIE (48)
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control BRRMREERABEENEHMY
Effectiveness

+.

it

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual EECEABERZE N AEREE_S
review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and ——F+_A=+—HILEENAKREER
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2021, RHETAALNEMMETEEER %=
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls, BIREZE AP KERGIREIT 25
and considered the Group's risk management and internal control ZEBMNEMGEERAMEZERFLENETR
systems effective and adequate. T e

The Audit Committee has also conducted an annual review of the BIZEZEGNECHAEEANBEZEIRD
adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and training programs st &MFEERRE T 2 ER  BF K5 L1
of the Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial FIFBIEE R CETEESER X AAF
reporting staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the FHE'BEIHEBEIREACKRES-
staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

(a) The Board shall be ultimately responsible for ensuring that () ZEEZGEERKSTEURREREXK

adequate and effective systems are present to maintain BERHNRFEUERTEBITEARANSEE
compliance with the continuous disclosure obligations of the WEEE-
Company.

(b)  The Board shall delegate the routine oversight of the Company’'s (b)) ZEEELZRNBALAAELATDZIKE

disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Team, which is responsible BERETEREE BF !

for:

() ensuring proper systems and controls are in place to collect, (i) MERIZXBEENARFREZUR
review and verify potential inside information; & BRKZBIEEINARR

HE

(i) reviewing potential inside information and deciding which (i) EECEBRMNRNENBERRE
information must be disclosed:; B ERH BHER

(i) deciding whether the Company may delay publication of (i) REARRBAFIEREMRARH
inside information; g;

(iv) vetting and clearing announcements or other public (iv) BERLEASHEMARRIRE
disclosures (such as presentation materials for analysts’ G irENE ENERE R ;
meetings);

(v)  deciding whether other action, such as the seeking of v) AEREEEHREMITE WM
suspension of trading pending clarification of uncertainties, RAERRENTRAERZMEK
as may be necessary; HERHEE MEERE) ;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vi)  keeping proper records of all the information received and
decisions made;

(vii) where necessary, engaging financial, legal or other advisers
to assist the Disclosure Team to carry out its duties;
(viii) ensuring that employees are educated on the policy and

internal reporting process;

(ix)  supervising the Company’s compliance with continuous
disclosure obligations; and

(x)  establishing periodic financial reporting procedures so that
key financial and operating data is identified and escalated

in a structured and timely manner.

(c)  The Disclosure Team comprises the following members or their
delegates:

(i) Executive Directors;
(i) Chief Financial Officer; and

(iii)  Other members as the Board may designate from time to
time.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

As soon as the staff become aware of the potential inside information,
they must immediately report to the compliance department who
will then report to the Responsible Director of the Disclosure Team in
writing. The report (the “Report”) must be sent to the Responsible
Director by hand or email and marked “Private and Confidential” on
the cover. The Report should set out details of the inside information
including:

(@ a general description of the matter;
(b)  the name(s) of the party(ies) involved;
(c)  the relevant date(s) of the event(s) or transaction(s);

(d) the status of the matter (e.g. negotiations still in progress/
preliminary negotiations/final stage);

(e)  the amount and other major term(s) involved; and

(f)  if applicable, the Report should also attach the draft agreement
to be entered into by any member of the Group as well as any
other document which may be of relevance.

Upon receipt of the Report, the Responsible Director shall, forward the
Report with relevant materials to the Disclosure Team. The Disclosure
Team shall then conduct preliminary assessment of the information
received, and after consultation with the relevant professional advisers
of the Company and then report to the Board.

Anti-Corruption

The Company has also established policies and systems that promote
and support anti-corruption laws and regulations. We require our
employees to follow our employee manual and code of business
conduct and ethics, which contains internal rules and guidelines
regarding best commercial practice, work ethics, fraud prevention
mechanisms, negligence and corruption. We also carry out on the-
job compliance training to our senior management and employees to
maintain a healthy corporate culture and enhance their compliance
perception and responsibility. Our staff can anonymously report any
suspected corrupt incident to the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted, and reviews from time to time, the
Shareholders” Communication Policy which was designed with the
objective of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company in order to enable them to exercise their rights in
an informed manner.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders by
way of cash or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at the same
time, to ensure the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company’s decision to declare or to pay any dividends
in the future, and the amount of such dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the current and future operations, financial
condition, liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group,
as well as dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries
and associates to pay a dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. The
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong,
the Company's articles of association, bye-laws and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that any
dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a

request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: ComSec@chihogroup.com

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary.

2. The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings (continued)

3.

Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the
Requisition.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i)  notice of not less than twenty-one (21) clear days or ten
(10) clear business days, whichever is the longer, if a special
resolution is to be passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than fourteen (14) clear days or ten (10)
clear business days, whichever is the longer, in all other
cases, provided that an EGM may be called by a shorter
notice if it is so agreed by a majority in number of the
Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at the
EGM, being a majority together holding not less than 95%
in nominal value of the issued shares giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice
is served or deemed to be served; and (ii) the day on which the
EGM is to be held.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the "Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an EGM and propose a resolution to be resolved at that EGM.
Please refer to the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings” on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time
to time in general meeting elect any person to be a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an to additional Director by an ordinary
resolution.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@ a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may requisition an EGM to propose
the Candidate to be elected as a Director in the manner
provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM;
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director (continued)

1.

(continued)

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless:

(i) a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven
(7) days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified
in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

O] full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the last
three (3) years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong (PRC) or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi) interests in Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and
on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. The process
of the Company’s general meetings is monitored and reviewed on a
regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Company uses the annual
general meeting as one of the principal channels for communicating
with the Shareholders. The Company ensures that Shareholders’ views
are communicated to the Board.

At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue has
been considered by a separate resolution, including the election of
individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective Board committees and the external auditor usually attend
annual general meetings to communicate with and answer questions
from the Shareholders.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2021 annual
general meeting (the “2021 AGM") which was held at 23/F, Infinitus
Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 29 June
2021 at 3:00 p.m..
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EEELHS

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS
(continued)

All resolutions put to Shareholders at the 2021 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar was appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting.
The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Resolutions proposed at the 2021 AGM

BRKRRKRE (&)

FIER - —FRRBERE LRRKRE
ENRAZRCETEBR - ARBNEBRN
BLOEREZERBAGHNERA UEER
ﬁmﬁﬁkkﬁ%%f% g EHFRR
EREN AT KBS T E -

Percentage of
votes in favor

RIEZ—FRRBERGFRENRER REMENEILL
1. To review and approve the audited consolidated financial statements, the report of the
Directors and the report of the independent auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020. 100%
BERWEANBHEE_Z_SE+ A=+ HIEENEEREEMBERE KA
BEFERERBIUZHAMRE
2. To re-elect Mr. Tu Jianhua as an executive Director of the Company. 100%
BERBRERERARNTNTES
3. To re-elect Mr. Martin Simon as an executive Director of the Company. 100%
H3EMartin Simonft E AR AT HITEE
4. To re-elect Mr. Miao Yu as an executive Director of the Company. 100%
BEEREEREAATRNITES
5.  To re-elect Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company 100%
BESHATERETRTBIUIFNTESE
6.  To authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration. 100%
HEEEeETESHM-
7. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Board to fix its remuneration. 100%

BEEIBKEGHMEFAARADZEED TIREEFTEETHHM -

8.  To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with any additional
shares in the Company which shall not in aggregate exceed 20% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution. 100%
&%%%Eﬂé’f BT REERABEFEIMNEO N —RERE EROMBESHTFBAR

/\u?)aﬂ: ’EJMEZIK \TE?*T‘IHXT’\?E@ZZO%

9.  To grant a general mandate to the Directors to exercise all the powers of the Company
to repurchase its own shares not exceeding 10% of the total number of shares of the

Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution. 100%
%x%%%ﬁﬁ$@7ﬁﬁﬁﬂé7] P BERIARAT RN —EE ERDBETSBEARE
BBEHARTERHTROBEZ10%

10. To approve the extension of the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot new
shares by adding to it the number of shares repurchased, if any, pursuant to the share
repurchase mandate. 100%
HEBAEFTEEEBENRERGBEEEBRENKRMEE (WB) MEERKRMHH—
iz iE o

11.  To re-elect Prof. Li Zhiguo as an independent non-executive director of the Company. 100%

EEFEERHRA/EREEIULIFNTES-
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
BEIEE=F=— AR

FEBRUARY —H )
W

Commencement of Construction of A High-end
Recycling Industrial Park in Binzhou

To maximise the tremendous opportunities in China, the Group
established a joint venture with Honggiao, to build a flagship
recycling park in Binzhou, China, in late 2020. The facility had a
processing capacity of up to 100,000 ELVs and mixed metals, as well
as 500,000 tonnes of secondary aluminum production per annum.
The project has been extended to include the construction of a
recycling facility for EV batteries in 2021. It is estimated that, after
the facility is fully completed and put into production, it will reduce
the total carbon emissions by an average of 1.9 million tonnes per
year.

A construction commencement ceremony was held in February
2021 with the Secretary of Binzhou Municipal Party Committee,
the Mayor of Binzhou, the Secretary of Zouping Municipal Party
Committee and the Mayor of Zouping being our honorable guests.
A groundbreaking ceremony was followed in May 2021.

BEMEREREXEST

RIPEFENEARE S AEEAR S EF
FEREARBRIIGERZE HEEPEEMNE
UG BRRBEEXE -ZREESFIERE
=E100,000MMEBEBSHMECTE  UKREE
500,000 4R  ZIBER S —FE—F
R > FIG Eh ) £2 B A Ol WR) R E AR B IR 5% 1 o
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FIEANR T —F_BET  AMNHES

SENBEMNTR PIHEELKRETHRBRERR
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AE—ERYEEHMIIE BReE
B sRENHIARIFZE-

Chiho and Honggiao have
been closely monitoring the
construction work to ensure
highly-quality and up-to-
the-standard construction
as well as work safety.

-
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
BRIRF—F-——FXFD

f
MARCH =H )

Future Steel Summit

On 11 March 2021, the “Future Steel (zukunft stahl)” summit
organised by the German Handelsblatt was held virtually in Germany.

Chairman of the ruling CDU party and the governor of North Rhine-
Westphalia (NRW) were also invited as distinguished guests. Senior
executives of global leading steel companies were also invited to the
event. Scholz, the major subsidiary group of Chiho, was honored
to be invited to have direct dialogue with the executives of various
steel companies to discuss our views on promoting circular economy

RIS
A ZE—F=A+—H BENERTLER
BITHEE P RAABB TR H(zukunft

stahl) JUI&& o

HHEARBEEFRIEKE-EH R A ®IMN
(NRWM RTMEER B EE - L RELHE
LENSHREBABNZESMEE B
MEZFARERIEBRBRAIEZTHBEER
MHEABNEEASBRENGE  IRAMY
REBRLE R

and steel industry

partnerships, T ER MR
and to share our FHEE D
relevant practical =7 H M 8948 R
experience and BB K R R
future development FERERFM
directions.

APRIL WA

Chiho participated in the 2021 Boao Forum for Asia, and
participated in sub-forums on hot topics such as “dual
circulation”, “carbon neutrality”, “digital economy and
sustainable development”.

BE2MF - —FBEDNRE W2 MIEEEIR)  THP
MY F BN R EERISAFIEEN D RE
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
ERIRF—E-—FAXFT

[

MAY B B )

Largest Stand-alone Solar Power System in Hong
Kong

Chiho partnered with EcoSmart Spark Energy Group
("EcoSmart”) to design and construct a solar power generation
system in Chiho’s Hong Kong factory. It is currently the largest
stand-alone solar power system in Hong Kong. Through this
system, Chiho’s Hong Kong factory will be able to generate
1,013,375 kilowatt-hours of electricity per year (approximately
equivalent to the total electricity consumption of 241 Hong
Kong households), which is estimated to reduce carbon
emissions by approximately 572,000 kilograms per year.
The solar power generation system, which is fully financed
by EcoSmart and installed on the rooftop of the Chiho’s
Hong Kong factory, not only will contribute to sustainable
development, but also general income from power generation
for Chiho. It is believed that this will act as a model to allow
other Hong Kong companies

BERE—RAENKGERERR

7% & BiEcoSmart Spark Energy Group (TEcoSmart )
EE R RBRMANREGSE A LRI KNG EE
BRM-EEEBERNE—RARENKIGEEZS
Ao REERH BB IRESERENEE
1,013,375 F EFF (WHEN241EE BRENEFEE
2)  [HstEERIR/49572,000F T IBRHERE © 5%
AIGREEERAMEcOSMart2BHE » RENE S
SEEREIRNEE L TMEENATREZREMEE
BOBRTRAESHREBRA -BEERKA—
EonE  BEMBEB A KA THRIFNBEEE
BZEXGREEBERFNER  TEEZEAT &
ABHERRNBEAZIRREE(CREE!

and organisations to understand
the benefits of utilising the roof
space for solar power systems and
encourage them to work together
to tackle global climate change!
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
BRIRF—F-——FXFD

JUNE 758 )

106

China Zhejiang Investment and Trade Symposium
Zhijiang Forum

Chiho participated in the 23rd China Zhejiang Investment and Trade
Symposium Zhijiang Forum and the 6th China Zhejiang-Europe Digital
Economy and High-tech Industry Match-making Conference which
were held in Ningbo, China. This symposium which was organised
by the People’s Government of Zhejiang Province comprised a series
of activities relating to trade, consumption, service and other topics.
Participants included leaders from the People’s Government of Zhejiang
Province, Municipal Party Committee and Municipal Government of
Ningbo and local authorities overseeing the matters in Yangtze River
Delta from other provinces and municipalities, ambassadors from
various countries, and executives from multinational companies in the
fields of environmental protection, digital economy, biomedical sciences
and etc.

PEHNIIREE S AX G 2 ImiE

BE2NRPEERBTHNE_+T=ETEH
MIKREBEZAG 2 ImBES/NETEH
AIBNBFEBE NS RMEERS EHE
o ATUARGHMNIE ARBUN RN 5
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HEERBRENIEARBN -ERHZE
THA 28 it HBFEE  R=A11
BEMEFIRE  TEEEREURKEIER
R BFEERENBREESNERAT
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
ERIRF—E-—FAXFT

JuLy £ A )

Chiho participated in the 2nd Qingdao Multinationals Summit which ZB&2MRTESESR2TNE_EERAT
was held in Qingdao, China. BEAEBEg-

[

SEPTEMBER h A )

P

The Aluminium 2021 “EC—FIRTERET
Chiho participated in the Aluminium 2021, one of the most important H&2MRK L _—FNLAZ+N\BE
trade fairs for the entire aluminium industry, which was held in Z—THhBEEEHEBLRRITHN_2"_—

Dusseldorf, Germany, from 28 to 29 September 2021. Nearly 1,000 FiETXEEE ZEEFEEEIRTER
exhibitors and more than 25,000 industry professions participated EZWEZRIHEZ—¥11,000R2EAE
in this flagship event. The two-day hybrid congress brought experts  MiB3#25,0004 1T X ER2MT ZEF 5
together live and digitally to exchange ideas and market insights, and HIMKXES @& BETEFZR FARS
finally creating a setting for a long-awaited personal reunion once again R4 ENSHIBR BRI hi5ERE > B
for the aluminium industry. HETMHAGFEANITER G
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
BRIRF—F_—FXFC

f
NOVEMBER +—H )

Investment in New ELV and EV Battery Recycling Facility

At the 4th China International Import Expo, Chiho announced its
investment into the construction of a new recycling facility in Taizhou,
China. Around 50,000 ELVs and 10,000 tonnes of EV batteries will
be processed, saving around 120,000 tonnes of carbon emission
equivalents per year.

Automobile ownership has been growing steadily in China over the
recent years and more vehicles need to be recycled properly to enhance
circular economy models. In China, the current percentage of cars that
is recycled remains far lower than in many developed countries. The
demand for ELV recycling and for recycling EV batteries is therefore on
the rise. Especially as forecast say that in 2025 roughly 20 percent of
new cars will be EVs. This presents a huge immediate and long-term
opportunity for Chiho with its extensive industrial recycling know-how
and latest developments in EV battery recycling.

BRSNS B R B SR it O Uk B

ERMEFEEFEONESES F HEEM
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Major Events of CEG In 2021
ERIRF—E-—FAXFT

[

NOVEMBER +—58 )

Chiho participated in the 21st CMRA Annual
Convention and the 8th “Belt and Road” China-
Germany Economic Cooperation Dialogue.

BENE_T—EBLTERERRERZE
RENE—H BRI PEEESFHEE-
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f
DECEMBER +—H )

Continuous Enhancement in Innovation and Technology

Recently, the State Intellectual Property Office of China* has approved
the registration of 7 patents under Scholz group, a major subsidiary
group of Chiho.

Chiho and its subsidiary groups have always been committed to
strengthen our innovation and technology to keep a leading position in
a rapidly developing market. Meanwhile, we have taken active actions
to protect our technology by applying patents in various countries.

In Europe, our recycling rate of ELV reaches 97%, ranking as a world
leading and exceeding the EU requirements. We also actively cooperate
with scientific research institutes and universities to improve our EV
battery recycling technology.

In China, our newly set-up research and development team is
committed to enhance product innovation to provide strong scientific
and technological support for our further development.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B IZ2 IR =

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

To the Shareholders of Chiho Environmental Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 118 to 289, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw your attention to Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which states that, as at 31 December 2021, the Group
had borrowings of HK$1,661.9 million, of which HK$1,611.1 million
are current borrowings due within twelve months from 31 December
2021 while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$782.3
million only. Included in current borrowings as at 31 December 2021
was a secured syndicated term loan with an outstanding loan balance
of HK$1,112.8 million scheduled to be fully repayable in January 2022,
which the Group failed to repay upon its maturity. Such non-repayment
constituted an event of default under the loan agreement. This
condition, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to
be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B BEPER =

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
FRESt IR

BE_ T —S+_RA=1+—HIFE

FEEtSEE (@

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB MARERARE SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives

BERARRAEAFHZ BT EE ZRENE

Refer to notes 2.10 and 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.
F2RGE M BHRRMEE2.10%17

Majority of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives arose from the acquisition of Scholz Group
in December 2016. The gross amount of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 was HK$568.7 million and
HK$179.9 million, respectively, net of impairment of
HK$14.7 million and HK$21.0 million, respectively.

AREBONHERAERIERFHZEBTLEEGHRRE
RTE-RET-AKRBIERRXRER RS S55EH

B —F+A=+—BZzHERAERAIFERESE
Hz BT EENKRRERERNEEED B A568.78
BETRI7TIEEBE T MAREEESHA147TE8
BT K21.088BTTe

Management performed an assessment on impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
as at 31 December 2021 to determine the recoverable
amount using value-in-use calculations and as a result an
impairment loss of HK$21.0 million has been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2021. These calculations used pre-tax cash
flow forecast based on the financial budget covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using an estimated long term growth
rate.

EEERACHABESEN S _—F+-A=+—H

Z2HEBERARRIEHFHR 2B EEETRETS
MEErW B - RFBEN AR BESTEEE
B —FTRA=T—HILEFENGEREET LR
BEBEERB2I0BEBEB T %I EERAURELFH Y
BREABER MRS RER AFRBZIRES MK
REstRAERRES

In assessing the appropriateness of the goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives impairment
assessment performed by management, the following audit
procedures have been performed by us:

ML EEEZRERAERIERAFHZENEERE
MGz BN BB ETUTERER

Comparing the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow forecast to assess the reliability of
management’s forecast;
BAFEERREREE TFERERETFNE
MEHEEEETEANTFY ;

EITTE

Evaluating management’s financial budget and discounted
cash flow forecast by understanding the process by which
they were drawn up, and testing mathematical accuracy of
the underlying calculations;
SIZEEEMBEREERMBERERERA THRESR
gEr AR E 2 BRI ;

Assessing the appropriateness of key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow forecast for the projected 5
years by comparing (i) projected sales volume to available
production capacity and historical sales volume, (i) metal
commodity price forecast to market research and analyst
reports, and (iii) projected gross profit margin to historical
profit margin. We also checked these key assumptions
against actual results in the period subsequent to the year
end;

FBLER()ARHERTESBERMUTHE (VB ®
mERTERE DI R DB E 5 (i) FERIER H
HESREN R STERRAEFHRRESRER/APMAZ
FERRZEBEN - BMTHREFELATRAB ZERE
BOMEZETIERE;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B IZ BTN =

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 #HE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HLFE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETEE (@)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RAREHNEER RPN EAMARERRESNEE

The assessment required the use of significant Evaluating the discount rate by assessing the cost of capital
management’s judgements and estimates about future of the Group and referencing the cost of capital of other
business performance including revenue growth (sales comparable companies in the industry;
volume and metal commodity price forecast), gross profit FiBaTfh BEMEMZEANAE > K2 ETRNEMAHLER
margin and discount rate and accordingly, this was an ATMIEAR 7 5FZEEIREK ;
area of our audit focus.
ZHAEEEESEE RARERRIBIEHREARH B KRG Testing the mathematical accuracy of allocation of the
o EREREERE GHEREBE RERTAEAR) ~EFZEX impairment losses identified among goodwill and other
RAERZ HitERARMBEZEOHR 2 —o assets of the relevant cash generating units; and
AR BRIV REREBEEE AR E L BN EMm
BEZBND RN EERYE &

Evaluating the sensitivity of the Group’s discounted cash
flow forecast by considering downside scenarios against
reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions.
ERIBBRR2ABIESEH 2 TTER Tz BEH
MIRREERBEAZHRE-

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
judgements and estimates made by management in respect
of the goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives impairment assessment were supportable by available
evidence.

Rig LIMBETER RADBAEEETHEREERD
FRFRZBREERETERAEZ A kst A E
Rz BB RFo
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B BEPER =

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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B BEPER =

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 HE—"Z_—F+_A=+—HIFE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 June 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

AREIAE T

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 HE—"ZT~_—F+_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
T —F _EBEEF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
M5 BEAT BEERET
Revenue Wz 5 21,950.4 13,368.1
Cost of sales 5 & s 8 (20,061.9) (12,421.6)
Gross profit EF 1,888.5 946.5
Other income Hang A 6 88.9 139.7
Other gains/(losses), net Hias / (8518) 348 7 159.3 (79.7)
Impairments on non-financial assets ~ JFE&RIE ERHE 7 (29.6) (519.2)
(Provision for)/Reversal of impairments &FE ZRE (%)
on financial assets, net $5[0];F 58 (32.9) 7.4
Distribution and selling expenses DIEMIHERZ 8 (59.9) (54.0)
Administrative expenses TERASE 8 (1,185.8) (1,084.8)
828.5 (644.1)
Finance income WA 10 9.5 11.0
Finance costs M 10 (243.3) (243.5)
Finance costs, net AT A JF 2R (233.8) (232.5)
Share of post-tax profit/(loss) of FEfh B A B BRI B R R,
an associate (5518) 18 0.8 (0.1)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures FE{h & & b 2 FRTR B 18 288.2 66.9
Profit/(Loss) before income tax FREFEMETEH], (B518) 883.7 (809.8)
Income tax expense TSt 1 (191.7) (54.4)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEWEF, (E18) 692.0 (864.2)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: LUTFEBEMSER, (B18)
Shareholders of the Company PIN/NETE S 702.0 (848.1)
Non-controlling interests JEFER R (10.0) (16.1)
692.0 (864.2)
Earnings/(Loss) per share attributable to Z<’A S i & FE(E E N G PR & F)
shareholders of the Company for the /" (E548) UGB B THIT)
year (expressed in HK$ per share)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREEXREN, (B8 13 0.44 (0.53)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share sR#EERAN, (B58) 13 0.44 (0.53)

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in  L#ARE 185 7 FE BB MY BB 5E — H RIAE
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AEREWER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 #HE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HL-FE

2021 2020
s —Z2TERF
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEERET
Profit/(Loss) for the year - Emmd e 6920 (864.2)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hfth2 & (§518) Uz
Item that may be reclassified to OB D ERm 2 !
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences on BINEBZERELE
foreign operations (313.3) 389.5
Items that will not be reclassified to T BEH HIEERm
profit or loss: B
Change in fair value of equity BAFES AREMEE R
investments at fair value through ZIRREIRE 2 AT EEE)
other comprehensive income 4.3 1.1)
Remeasurements of post- EMTEREREBERRERZ
employment benefit obligations wmANEE 8.0 (1.2)
Share of other comprehensive EEEEhE
gain/(loss) of joint ventures Hihz @k, (518) 1.4 (1.3)
Income tax relating to these items HZEIEBEBMNMER (3.7) 0.6
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMEE BB UK
for the year, netof tax Mgt (3033)y @ 386.5
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) FRzmEmEMN (BB) 4258
for the year 388.7 (477.7)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the U & A EEEREZE RN,
year attributable to: (E548) 48%8 -
Shareholders of the Company P N/NSTE S 396.3 (463.7)
Non-controlling interests JEIERS RS (7.6) (14.0)
388.7 (477.7)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be  _E¥tt4x & 2 [ U 25 2 FE B2 5 [ A B 5% — GBS
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
AASEHEBRGREKR

As at 31 December 2021 R ZE_—F+_A=+—H

120

2021 2020
—T—— —ECEF
Notes HK$M HK$M
Iz BEAT BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BEREHE 14 2,256.6 2,623.9
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 701.5 844.5
Investment properties Pty 16 56.3 20.7
Intangible assets BTEE 17 848.9 957.2
Investments accounted for using the  FREREARZRE
equity method 18 907.8 696.4
Financial assets at fair value through B AFEFABRZ TREE
profit or loss 19 0.8 0.9
Financial assets at fair value through #ZAFEtAEMEZEWRE Z
other comprehensive income EREE 20 91.3 104.6
Other non-current assets HMIERSEE 23 14.8 4.2
Deferred income tax assets EIEFRSMEE 21 78.9 110.4
4,956.9 5,362.8
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 22 1,567.8 1,169.3
Trade, bills and other receivables B 5 EE R HMEWRRIE 23 2,226.9 1,709.0
Amounts due from related parties & s Bl B 75 TR I8 37 66.8 129.3
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 25 31.1 14.3
Tax recoverable AI3R[EIFRIE 17.3 23.0
Pledged bank deposits and restricted ~ BIiEIRIEITIERR
bank deposits ZREBIIRITER 26 142.4 122.7
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEEE 26 782.3 913.8
4,834.6 4,081.4
Assets held for sale FIELEEE 24 167.0 428.7
5,001.6 4,510.1
Total assets BEEMEE 9,958.5 9,872.9
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EmkaE
Equity attributable to shareholders 75/ E] B 5 FE(L 1
of the Company
Share capital (& 27 16.1 16.1
Other reserves H A 28 6,704.1 7,009.8
Accumulated losses 18 (1,846.3) (2,548.3)
4,873.9 4,477.6
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R 29 (14.4) (13.4)
Total equity g 4,859.5 4,464.2
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HFEHERAR

As at 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—EZ— ZEIERF
Notes HK$M HK$M
Iz BEATT BEBAT
Non-current liabilities JERENAE
Borrowings EEN 30 50.8 178.3
Lease liabilities HEaRA 31 190.1 3423
Retirement benefit obligations BRIERENEE 32 18.9 29.7
Other payables H A& I8 33 106.8 102.6
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFRSIRER 21 305.8 363.8
672.4 1,016.7
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade, bills and other payables B5 EEREHMELRIE 33 2,240.1 1,689.5
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS IR EaE 254.0 93.7
Borrowings ERN 30 1,611.1 2,120.1
Lease liabilities HE&E 31 177.1 202.2
Amounts due to related parties FE {1 e Bt 75 7R 18 37 104.9 63.4
Derivative financial instruments TEERTA 25 39.4 59.7
4,426.6 4,228.6
Liabilities directly associated HEFHEBERR
with assets held for sale HEENEaE 24 - 163.4
4,426.6 4,392.0
Total liabilities =R 5,099.0 5,408.7
Total equity and liabilities Bk EEEEE 9,958.5 9,872.9

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 289 were HNF118E289EMNEEHBREN_Z

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 June & XA+=-HEEZESHAREET
2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BOMHTIIESNREE .
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Li Linhui
REERE EMESRE
Director Director
EBE EZE

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction — _E#it4zs& & & B {5 7 FE 2 BB B B M 5 — (3 B

s
&5

with the accompanying notes. E=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
E=g 47

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 HE—"ZT~_—F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RAFREEL
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 28) losses Total interests equity
Hitt \_ .
A (H28) 2HES st FERER it
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBET BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
As at 1 January 2020 RZB-Z£—F—H 16.1 6,614.9 (1,689.7) 49413 (103) 4,931.0
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year EREE - - (848.1) (848.1) (16.1) (864.2)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)  Efti 23/ (1)
Currency translation differences on BN £ ERERE
foreign operations - 387.4 - 387.4 2.1 389.5
Change in the fair value of financial A&t A M2 E K
assets at fair value through other ~ HZ £HEEZ ATFEE
comprehensive income, net of B NME

tax \ - (0.9 - (0.9 - (0.9
Remeasurement of post- E%ﬁﬁ%f@ﬁm%ﬁﬁ“éz
employment benefit obligations,  BFIEE MEBRE
net of tax - (0.8) - (0.8) - (0.8)
Share of other comprehensive loss IS GECE 7 Hi2E
of joint ventures g - (13) - (13) - (13)
Total other comprehensive income  EREM2EYHEE Nk
for the year, net of tax R - 3844 - 3844 21 386.5
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  ERZERR/ (K1) 8%
for the year, net of tax tlEZE] - 3844 (848.1) (463.7) (14.0 (471.7)
Transactions with shareholdersin SRR (URES17) #f72
their capacity as shareholders X5 )
Contributions from non-controlling  JEERER 2 T8
interests - - - - 109 109
Deregistration of a subsidiary SEFAR - 105 (10.5) - - -
Total transactions with shareholders f—iﬁfy‘ﬁ WURRaMm) €T
in their capacity as shareholders R - 105 (10.5) - 10.9 10.9
As at 31 December 2020 R_BE_ZE
+:H =1+-H 16.1 7,009.8 (2,548.3) 4.477.6 (13.4) 4,464.2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BERLEnE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021 #HE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FAFRREN
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 28) losses Total interests equity
Hihi s ]
R (KtzE28) RithR M JFEREL Mg
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR

As at 1 January 2021 RZB-_-%—-F—H 16.1 7,009.8 (2,548.3) 4,471.6 (13.4) 4,464.2

Comprehensive income/(loss) 2ElE/ (E8)
Profit/(Loss) for the year EREFN/ (58) -

702.0 702.0 (10.0) 692.0

Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ Eti2E (858) / Wiz
Currency translation differences on M EF 2 ERERE
foreign operations - (315.7) - (315.7) 24 (313.3)
Change in the fair value of financial #ATEt AEMZE
assets at fair value through other @2 £BIEEZ

comprehensive income, net of NTEZE)

tax A - 3.1 - 3.1 - 3.1
Remeasurement of post- BT EREERRERL

employment benefit obligations,  BFIEE MERE

net of tax - 5.5 - 5.5 - 5.5
Share of other comprehensive EEaELEEMEE

income of joint ventures Wa - 14 - 14 - 1.4

Total other comprehensive (loss)/ ~ EREM2E (E518) /
income for the year, net of tax WE 5 NBRRE - (305.7) - (305.7) 24 (303.3)

Total comprehensive (loss)income ~ ERZTE (F18) /R BE
for the year, net of tax NBRE - (305.7) 702.0 396.3 (7.6) 388.7

Transactions with shareholdersin B & UBERSH) £72
5

their capacity as shareholders Xm o
Contributions from non-controlling  JEERER T8
interests \ ) - - - - 135 135
Deregistration of a non-wholly FHERETAR
owned subsidiary - - - - (6.9) (6.9)
Total transactions with shareholders E2JR % (MURRES 1) £172X
in their capacity as shareholders 3% - - - - 6.6 6.6
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-f
H=B=+—H 16.1 6,704.1 (1,846.3) 4,873.9 (14.4) 4,859.5

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read — _& ¥t 47 & 18 2 %4 Eh 2K & E4 g B A9 B 5 — GBS
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AERERNER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

BE_ T —S+_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
s % —EIEHF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
B 5F BEET B&ET
Cash flows from operating activities &£ & ;EBFR ISR &t
Cash generated from operations KEFRSIRSE 39 653.0 953.7
Interest paid BAFE (210.5) (227.8)
Tax paid, net B MNIEEER (36.8) (59.8)
Net cash generated from REREAFTRIRE P
operating activities 405.7 666.1
Cash flows from investing activities IR E;EHFRISRE R
Purchases of property, BEME -BEMEE
plant and equipment (162.7) (228.5)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE (2.0) (3.4)
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEWZ - BE K& EUKR
plant and equipment and right-of- FREEEZFISHIE
use assets 39 66.5 177.9
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 A BIEIFRITER (122.1) (111.1)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits #2EX 2K IFEE1T 17X 116.8 186.8
Redemption of fixed return ELIEERIRKEE
investment - 90.6
Investments in financial assets BAFES AREMEE R
at fair value through other ZEMBEZKRE
comprehensive income (1.0) -
Proceeds from disposals of financial ~HEFABRZZEMEEK
assets through profit or loss and FFAEMEERE 2 &R
financial assets through other BEZFAIENRIE
comprehensive income 11.6 1.3
Investments in joint ventures KREGEDE (29.7) (7.9)
Proceeds from disposal of joint HEGEhEMMEMNIE
ventures 7.0 8.0
Dividends received from joint BWEEEERE
ventures 52.7 27.6
Other dividends received BUWEMEE 5.0 2.5
Settlement of remaining PRI EB W ENERT
consideration payable for previous FEE
acquisition of business - (3.1)
Proceeds from disposals of assets HERIEHEEEZ
held for sale Frig=I8 39 343.3 21.6
Interest received BUF] 8 5.2 5.4
Net cash generated from BREEHAMSHREPE
investing activities 290.6 167.7
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SBEHERER
HE_Z_—F+_B=+—HIFE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
s % —ETTERF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
M 5E BEET B&ET
Cash flows from financing activities Bt & EEIFF15IRE R
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERZFTERIE 459.5 537.6
Repayments of bank borrowings BEBITENR (647.7) (552.9)
Repayments of other borrowings BEAMMER (429.1) (488.1)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEARE (198.7) (242.3)
Contributions from non-controlling JFERERAE
interests 13.5 10.9
Payment to non-controlling interests 34432 B F N\ T % B IEEE
upon deregistration of a RERERS 2=
non-wholly owned subsidiary (2.9) -
Net cash used in financing activities Bl & EENFr IR & 558 (805.4) (734.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E# 2R KIS EEIEH
of the year 913.8 784.8
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BEAIEEEEEE
cash equivalents CRiZb) /18I E4E (109.1) 99.0
Reclassification to assets held for sale B DEEZERIEHESE 24 - (1.7)
Exchange differences on cash and cash IR& KIS EHEBHZ
equivalents PE 2 = &E (22.4) 31.7
Cash and cash equivalents FRZHAEKRAEEEEE
at end of the year 26 782.3 913.8

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _E#fit
conjunction with the accompanying notes. Eo

TR
A

BRMAEEFRAHR

FEREREREERBNIMNE—HE

———F5K 125



126

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal
business of resources recycling, involving recycling of mixed
metal, end-of-life vehicle (“"ELV"), waste electrical and electronic
equipment (“WEEE"), wasted oil and Zorba in Asia, Europe and
North America. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in Note 41.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies.

2.1.1 Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings
of HK$1,661.9 million, of which HK$1,611.1 million
are current borrowings due within twelve months
from 31 December 2021, while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$782.3 million only.

2
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REZSHROMBRRABERANTIE
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21 RBIEE
KNBNERE M BIRKRTIIRIERT
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EHRAIREE R B EHFE622
BEEARERERE GREH
BHRRIDIKBEEMAERE
W 7N ES BRI A FEET
AEMEEN G2 SR E EKRIZ
NFESFAERZSHEERSE
MesE (BETEIR BT8R
DUEHEET ©

AN EEBYBREERNY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

Included in current borrowings as at 31 December
2021 was a secured syndicated term loan (the
“Syndicated Term Loan”) with an outstanding loan
balance of HK$1,112.8 million scheduled to be fully
repayable in January 2022, and the Group failed
to repay upon its maturity. Such non-repayment
constituted an event of default under the loan
agreement.

The above condition indicated the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern.

In view of such circumstance, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group, taking into account
the potential impact arising from the surge of metal
commodity prices and new waves of COVID-19
pandemic, if any, and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its
financial position which include, but not limited to,
the following:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHE ()

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (@)
2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued) 211 FERSERE (B)
(i)  Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group (i) A CE T —F+ T
repaid an amount of HK$316.3 million of the B=+—H% K&
Syndicated Term Loan, including accumulated BB EEIRE T

(ii)

accrued interest of HK$65.8 million, resulting
in a remaining outstanding loan principal of
HK$842.2 million as of the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements.
In June 2022, the Group has successfully
agreed with the lenders of the Syndicated
Term Loan to extend the maturity date of the
remaining Syndicated Term Loan to March
2023 with four partial repayment instalments
of HK$23.4 million, HK$39.0 million, HK$78.0
million and HK$93.6 million on or before end
of June, July and October 2022 and January
2023, respectively. The interest rate, certain
guarantors and collaterals of the Group
associated with the Syndicated Term Loan
were also revised. The Group plans to finance
such partial repayment instalments through
internal resources as well as financial and
operational measures as mentioned in (ii) to (vi)
below. The Group will continue to monitor its
compliance with the undertaking requirements
and the Directors expect the Group would be in
compliance throughout the remaining term of
the Syndicated Term Loan.

The Group is pursuing plans for potential
disposal of certain assets in specific regions to
raise additional cash to finance the repayment
of borrowings.

(ii)

ERIRREMERAR —F

BEM316.388ETT
(BE R EH
26588 8B ' &
EEEREZER
EHBHRKREE N
BHRTREEER
KEREI2. 2B B H
TR TEZTHE N
H NEFARET
BEFRHNER AR
Iﬁ%ﬁkfmu > BU R
THREEHERY
HRERECZE
=R Heg
BN EE23.48
BEIT 39.08845
T 78.0EBABITMK
93.6EBAEBTHRIA
RZZEZZFKA
E-tAEKTAE
MR ZEZ=F—
BIEZRZAMEE 7
EEERIIEETE S
BERMAIER BT
RARBERITE
BAEET o NEE 5 A
FEBRRIERUK
T3 (ii) E (vi) B PR it
B9 B 75 B 48 & 1 T
HERITDDHEE
ML ER o ANER
13 4 48 B 2R H Y K
ERENEFIBR
BT AEEF
EIREEHE R
T BERRAREE
SFARRE o

AEBEESRY
EREMENE T
EE UEEESR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The Group maintains continuous
communication with other banks and
management believes that the existing other
borrowings available to the Group, amounting
to approximately HK$550 million as at 31
December 2021, will be successfully renewed
when their current terms expire given the
long standing relationship the Group has with
the relevant counter parties and the fact that
majority of these facilities are secured by the
Group's properties and other assets. See Note
30 for more details.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Group obtained short term borrowings of
HK$57.1 million from lenders in the PRC and
management expects that such borrowings will
be successfully renewed when their current
terms expire in September 2022.

The Group continues its efforts to ramp up
the production capability of the new recycling
facilities in Asia, implement measures in Europe
and North America to generate cash flow from
operations including further control capital and
operating expenditures to strength its working
capital.

The Group is actively looking for other sources
of financing including other debt or equity
financing to enhance the capital structure and
reduce the overall financing expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE @)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

The Directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow
projection covering a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2021. They are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next twelve months from the date of the
consolidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the Directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
Group's consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty
exists as to whether the Group can achieve the plans
and measures described in (i) to (vi) above. Whether
the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the Group’s ability to
continuously comply with undertaking requirements
of the Syndicated Term Loan, successfully dispose
of assets in specific regions to raise additional cash,
renew existing borrowings and banking facilities
when their current terms expire, successfully ramp
up the Group's production capability in Asia and
implement measures in Europe and North America
to generate cash inflow from operations, and secure
various sources of financing as and when required.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2 EBAGHEBEREE (@

RREE ()
2.1.2 S BEREESRINE

(a)  Amended standards adopted by the Group RE B IR BIASAE

The following amended standards have been TR

adopted by the Group for the first time for the XEBRERZZ

financial year beginning on or after 1 January ——F—HA—H%

2021: 2 BB IEE
EBEREMT IR
EETZER]

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions

BEMBREENE16 WA R ERERAATER

SACHEDS)
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

ERGSERFIN - EBUT MNEXEENE-F MR

BREERFAR BBV BRS
HERF75 BBV BREER
FIRREBYBREELS
165% (£57 )

The amended standards listed above did not
have any significant impact on the amounts
recognised in prior years and are not expected
to significantly affect the current or future
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1

EARGFBREE (R
B ()
212 BHBEEHRKE @

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)  New and amended standards, interpretation (b) FFEXBIFET RS
and annual improvements to be effective 1EETHR 32 FEL R
FEE
The following new and amended standards, T #re] &R
interpretation and annual improvements are ZA-REUKREE

HER T —F
—A—HREBNY
BEEREN E*
BARNRREZER
ELIELE

not effective for financial year beginning on
1 January 2021,
in preparing these consolidated financial
statements:

and have not been applied

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUTFREAHzERR
B R ER

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Leases
BEMBREERF163 (BTE)

1 April 2021
HE T -FN/A—H

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised) Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations 1 January 2022

EREEE F AL ) HEZESHOEHEE 2T F-A-H

Annual Improvements to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

BEMBREEN S \EE BAMBREEN "S- )\FE_ZZFREHBN “ZT-°"F—A-H
RIS EERNEENE FENE

HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022

intended use

BEGHERFE165 (BTE) ME- -BEEZE  RERRAZAENE “E-"F—A-H

HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

BEGHERETH (BTE) BREEN-BAMEK b2 | — 5

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

BEMBREERE3 (BT S| SIER “E-"F—A-H

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EEGHERSE R (BITE)

HKAS 1 (Amendments) and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

(Amendments)

FEEHEAE
(tg37%)

15% (BT ) REBH
BREENBHRSE2SR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

RABRPERRBRIFRD

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BB

ERIRREMERAR —F

1 January 2023
EeEaE e B S

1 January 2023

=maa S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

EXETBERME (8)

21 RREE @

2.1.2 St BEREBRIRE (B

New and amended standards, interpretation (b) FFELBIHTET RAZ
and annual improvements to be effective 1E5THR) 52 R
(continued) FENE (B
Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTFRBAHzEREA
HEHIRLER
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023

BA G ERESH (B X
HKAS 12(Amendments)
ERAGHERE125 (BFTE)

HKFRS 17
EEMBREEAS TSR

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

EARBEY CTEH)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

EBRBREENF0RREEG

2855285 (BT )

B HESE

Deferred tax related to assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
REE—RSNEERERNBRELERE

Insurance Contracts
RREH

Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrowers if a Term Loan that contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

BHREN2I-ERAHBERERERHET
EHERNDE

[

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REEHHBENAAEEZENEENET
by |

The above new and amended standards,
interpretation and annual improvements are
not expected to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 RARARESZGE
accounting
2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2.2.1 75

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EATHHEHNE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 FERAR#ERGHE @
accounting (continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 BEMHERR
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost FRBZHETH UM A
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable BROBUE AR - A BLIE R

costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (Note 2.2.5), after
initially being recognised at cost.

2.2.4 Joint arrangements

The Group's joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 BFEFRAIKRERGHE @
accounting (continued)

2.2.4 Joint arrangements (continued)

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method. Interests in joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method (Note
2.2.5), after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.5 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EATHHEHNE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

2.2.5 Equity method (continued) 2.2.5 1#EHE (@)

22 FAERAIREDEEE (@)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

2.2.6 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 BFEFRAIKRERGHE @
accounting (continued)

EXETBERME (8)

2.2.6 Changes in ownership interests (continued) 2.2.6 FREREDES) (B

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Where businesses are acquired and fair values of the net
assets of the acquired business are finalised within 12
months of the acquisition date, all fair value adjustments
are recorded with effect from the date of acquisition and
consequently may result in the restatement of previously
reported financial results.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other gains/(losses), net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(9]

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Land and buildings
THRIEF

Plant and machinery

B B e 1% 23

Office furniture and equipment
MAERBERERE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other gains/(losses), net’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.6.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or
disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current non-financial assets classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

2.10 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software acquired is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Brand names, patents and licenses

Separately acquired brand names, patents and
licences are shown at historical cost. Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences which have a finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of certain brand
names, patents and licenses over their estimated
useful lives of 8 to 20 years. Certain brand names
have indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
assessment is undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued) 2,10 EEEE &

(d) Customers’ relationship and suppliers’
relationship

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship which have a
finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHE ()

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets 212 REREMEREE

2.12.1 Classification 2121 348
The Group classifies its financial assets in the rEBRBHEEMEESE
following measurement categories: A THE 2588

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value

o HBERZEATE(H

(either through other comprehensive income or EREME2E W E
through profit or loss); and FiEBIBm) T2
ETHEE; &

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.12.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2.12.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit and

loss (“FVPL") are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics

of the asset.

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in ‘other gains/(losses), net’ together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHE ()

POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

212 REREMERMEE (B

2.12.3 Measurement (continued) 2123 5t (@)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in ‘other gains/(losses), net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

2.12.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

2.14.1 Derivative financial instruments (applicable
until 31 December 2020)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair values. The
Group does not have any derivative that is designated
as a hedging instrument as at 31 December 2020.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other
gains/(losses), net'.

2.142 Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities (applicable from 1 January 2021)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into, and they
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether
the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument
and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the
fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm
commitment (fair value hedges).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 214 FTESRT A @)

2142 TTEERMIAKREHEH

2.14.2 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

activities (applicable from 1 January 2021)
(continued)

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group
documents the economic relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, including
whether changes in the fair values of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in the fair
value of hedged items. The Group documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments
designated in hedge relationships are disclosed in
Note 25. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than
12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is
less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified
as a current asset or liability.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, together with any changes in the fair value of
the hedged asset or liability that are attributable
to the hedged risk. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within ‘other gains/(losses),
net'.

Derivative financial instruments not subject to hedge
accounting

Certain derivative financial instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value
of any derivative financial instruments that does
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within ‘other gains/(losses), net” without any
adjustment to the hedge items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EATHHEHNE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 214 FTEESRTE @)

2142 TTEERMIAKREHEH

2.142 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

activities (applicable from 1 January 2021)
(continued)

Method for assessing effectiveness of hedging

The Group assesses whether the hedging relationship
conforms to the hedge effectiveness requirements at
the inception date of the hedge and the subsequent
periods continuously. A hedge is regarded as
conforming to the hedge effectiveness requirement if
all of the following conditions are met:

o An economic relationship exists between the
hedged items and the hedging instruments.

o The effect of credit risk is not dominant in the
changes in value arising from the economic
relationship between the hedged items and the
hedging instruments.

o The hedge ratio of hedging relationship is equal
to the ratio between the quantity of actual
hedged items of the Group and the actual
quantity of hedging instruments to hedge
them.

Where the hedging relationship no longer conforms
to the hedging effectiveness requirement due to
hedge ratio, but the risk management objective for
such set of hedging relationship designated by the
Group stays unchanged, the Group will rebalance the
hedging relationship and adjust the quantity of the
hedged items or hedging instruments having existed
in the hedging relationship to make the hedge ratio
conform to the hedge effectiveness requirement
again.

Any gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss within ‘other gains/(losses), net’
without any adjustment to the hedge items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHE ()

POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Inventories 215 8

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Cost of
inventories also includes gains and losses on qualifying fair
value hedge in respect of inventories designated as hedged
items. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.16 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

The Group holds trade, bills and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly,
trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less loss allowance
(Note 2.12.3).

Trade, bills and other receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment losses on trade, bills and other receivables are
presented as net impairment losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowings (continued)

2.21

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that are
an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on
foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are estimated
based on interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits,
which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.

2.23 Employee benefits

2.23.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)
2.23.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined benefit plans and defined
contribution pension plans.

(a)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Typically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent certified
actuaries from Heubeck AG and Kaélner Spezial
Beratungs-GmbH using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHEE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services

2.25

2.24 Provisions 224 #iE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present EXAEEREEENEHMESLE
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; WENERERIETERT ; ROI5E

BEBERN ML UEERT
R B E W P Fefl 5t > BUBE SR
e BRERMRREEHRER
o

BBRARAF R RIBATE
BEMEBNIHIRENE &
MR RERHIHY T ERREE
MEREHEA BRI

W bR

WmBERAEREEEBBIE
TRt ey & 7 dn A AR TS B IR S B IR

in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue RERAFE W NI FRIEE
is shown net of value-added tax, returns (if any) and after MBE (WA) MILHERAEL
eliminating sales within the Group. HEBE .

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers in accordance
with relevant shipping terms, the customers have
full discretion over the goods and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been

() #HEEm
ﬂ—\—ﬁ /\4:

)E"'_g- # EDD%EE%
MiE#B T E|EMKRET
EBERERREXYER
E%%J—/Uﬁ_yj EEMWME
EREMUE BRMIE
S’EE’JJ—HZ #RERRH

transferred to customers, and either customers have HRRBHEGNBES
accepted the products in accordance with the sales 7 on A2 B IR ST B R 3 EK

contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods (continued)

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
returns, if any, using the expected value method,
and revenue is only recognised to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in trade and
other payables) is recognised for expected returns in
relation to sales made until the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with credit terms that are
consistent with market practice.

A receivable is recognised when control of the goods
is transferred to the customers as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

If the services rendered or products delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the counter
parties, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments
exceed the services rendered or products delivered, a
contract liability is recognised.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) Service income

Service income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when a service is
transferred to the customer and the customer obtains
control of that service.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Dividend income 227 REWA
Dividends are received from financial assets measured at REBRAFESABTREA
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other TESFAEMEEN G 2 EME
income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment EEWUER o & U R R ) e T 1T BRF RS
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre- ERRABEMING - BMERETLE
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a B ERTRERN AT AR A
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case, B BRIER BEAm R R AU B3
the dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income PERERAE-FILBERT > W&
if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI. However, BHEEAFESAEMEERG
the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a FFENKERRE BRENEAM
consequence. 2EUNEMESS AT & 5E

RREETRERR

2.28 Leases 228 fAE
2.28.1 As the lessor 2281 fEAHTEAAN

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys HERA—HOHE HILH

to the lessee in return for a payment, or series of A M A ABER G E

payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed HERNEREENET

period of time. M —£MIEL — R
FRIH

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, EEERELEREM

the asset is included in the balance sheet based on B ZEEREEMES

the nature of the asset. ABEBER

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over KREMEEENHEEWRA

the term of the lease on a straight-line basis. RHEERAAUERERE
29 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
2.28.2 As the lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option.

Lease payment to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 228 THE (@)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued) 2282 1EAETAAN (&

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group entity, which does not
have recent third-party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are rent concessions that occurred
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFEATHHBEHE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 228 THE (@)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued) 2282 1EAETAAN (&

In the consolidated balance sheet, the current portion
of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to
be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life
(Notes 2.6 and 2.10).

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment, vehicles, offices, warehouse and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise
IT equipment and small items of office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, derivative financial assets, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
etc. Details of the financial instruments by category are
disclosed in Note 34.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade, bills and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade, bills and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings
and amounts due from/(to) related parties
which expose the Group to market risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a specific
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors its foreign
currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the
need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(0

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk. The derivatives were not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group was
required to estimate the fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts at the end
of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 December 2021, if Renminbi (“RMB")
had strengthened/weakened by 5% (2020:
5%) against the HK$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit (2020: pre-tax
loss) for the year would have been HK$25.7
million lower/higher (2020: HK$15.6 million
higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB
denominated trade, bills and other payables/
receivables and cash and bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

0

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, if Euro (“EUR") had
strengthened/weakened by 7% (2020: 6%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit (2020: pre-tax loss)
for the year would have been HK$6.8 million
higher/lower (2020: HK$14.0 million lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR denominated
trade, bills and other receivables/payables and
cash and bank deposits.

As at 31 December 2021, if EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 7% (2020: 6%)
against the US$ with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit (2020: pre-tax loss)
for the year would have been HK$34.9 million
higher/lower (2020: HK$39.0 million lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade, bills and other receivables/payables,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments,
amounts due from/to related parties and cash
and bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(0

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Directors considered the foreign exchange
risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$
has been linked to US$.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

Based on the simulations performed, with a
100 basis points shift in interest rate, the pre-
tax profit (2020: pre-tax loss) would have a
maximum increase by the following magnitude:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(1)

Price risk

Commodity price risks

The scrap/recycled metal prices are affected
by numerous factors and events that are
beyond the control of the Group. These metal
prices change on a daily basis and can vary
significantly up and down over time. The
factors impacting metal prices include both
broader macro-economic developments and
micro-economic considerations relating more
specifically to the particular metal concerned.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group entered into various commodity futures
to hedge the fair value of scrap/recycled metals.
Certain hedges will be settled in 2022 and the
fair value of such derivatives is disclosed in
Note 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 S£REMKEE (@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 EREAMEER (&)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THIZEME ()
(iii)  Price risk (continued) (i) 1BREE R (48)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DM
The sensitivity analysis below is determined TR E DTS
based on the exposure to commodity price risk B _—_s-_%4&
of metal commodities future contracts before +ZA=+—B#
the adoption of hedge accounting as at 31 mEHEtERE
December 2020. If the commodity price of BEmaifiasdam
metal commodities future contracts had been BRB9 ™ B A8 A B
19% higher/lower, the Group's pre-tax loss ﬁ'ﬁ/’égfiﬂﬁ%l;”ﬁ:ﬁ':
for the year would decrease/increase by the HEEONERE
following magnitude: %J:ﬂ'/—l:&xm% ’
Bl AEBFEANRKRR
BB B R 18
MAIBEWT :
2020
=R
HK$M
BEET
Impact on loss before income tax HIRMEMAIBENEE 35.8

No such analysis was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2021 as all of the metal
commodities future contracts outstanding
as at 31 December 2021 are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges. Any change in
the fair value of the metal commodities future
contracts in relation to commodity price change
will be offset by corresponding change in the
fair value of the hedged item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

@

Risk management

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments, amounts due from related parties,
trade, bills and other receivables and deposits
with banks and financial institutions. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on trade,
bills and other receivables on an on-going
basis.

To manage credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, the Group only transacts
with reputable and creditworthy commercial
financial
counterparties. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these

institutions and investment

financial institutions, therefore, the expected
credit loss for such financial assets is minimal.
The Group has no policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(0

Risk management (continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms
ranging from 30 to 90 days to customers
upon the approval of management according
to the credit quality of individual customers.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. The Group also
has policies on granting different settlement
methods to different customers to monitor
the credit exposure. The Group measures
expected credit losses and applies lifetime
expected loss allowances for all trade and
bills receivables. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group held trade and bills receivables
amounted to approximately HK$1,830.3 million
(2020: HK$1,352.0 million) and loss allowances
of HK$55.4 million (2020: HK$50.0 million)
has been provided for such trade and bills
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Risk management (continued)

Amounts due from related parties and other
receivables are considered to have low
credit risk. These balances are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set
by the Board. The compliance with credit limit
by customers and counter-parties is regularly
monitored by management.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
concentration of credit risk as 6% and
23% (2020: 6% and 23%) of its total trade
receivables was due from its largest trade
debtors and the five largest trade debtors,
respectively. The five largest trade debtors
have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these
customers under internal assessment by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

- Trade and bills receivables

- Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, as all banks are
rated with a high credit rating, the identified
impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. Details of
the quantification in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk on trade and bills
receivables are set out in Note 23(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)

To measure the ECL, trade and bills receivables
have been grouped based on the settlement
profiles of customers, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 24 months
before 31 December 2021 or 31 December
2020, respectively, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factor affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the gross domestic
product (“GDP") and unemployment rate of
the countries in which it sells its goods and
services to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates on
expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include amounts due from related parties and
other receivables (except for prepayments).
Management assesses the credit quality of
the counterparties, taking into account the
historical risk of default and capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of an asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating

- external credit rating (as far as available)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower

significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
borrower

significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in
the quality of third-party guarantees or
credit enhancements

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the
Group and changes in the operating
results of the borrower.

Macroeconomic information (such as market
interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as
part of the internal rating model.

BREHB RN

3 ZRAEREIRE @)
31 £RAERREZE @)
(b) EERK @

(i) THEERE ()
I AT 2R
Hitem&EE (8)
—  JEETRERE

TANBITER
MEENBEE
KEHHNH
E P BLLK
ER RS
FFBEHEKRF
&5

- fERAKEZE
BNERNTE
HREREH

- BE—fERAN
HMEmTA
NiEERRRE
Z18m

- XXFEEHHNEK
HmEENS
=HERIAE
AR ER
BLEEAYH

- fBRANES
KRBT
EEXREH
BREAEREG
A B FRR
B A BB L
R AR
Eeo

REEEER (Wh
BHRFBRER) K
B ST AR IR A
Ay—EB 5 o

FABRREMERAT "B-—FFR

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment.

A default on a financial asset is when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group. Where loans or receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(9]

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, provision for
impairment on other receivables, excluding
prepayment, amounted approximately to
HK$1.6 million (2020: HK$1.6 million). Other
financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to be of low credit risk primarily because
historically they had no history of default and
the debtors had a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it

has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group's debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if
applicable external regulatory or legal requirements —
for example, currency restrictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(9]

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 £RAKEZR @
Liquidity risk (continued) (0 FHESRARE @)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TRAMAEBRAAE]
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and NIETEERBENRTER
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant EENTESRAE IE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period Th¥Z ERABRARN EI BAAR B
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity REHEEEBERHES
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the A EHAHF SRR ET
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for DiemMiTEEMEBEN
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The ERERERE T HIRE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual TN EREE ) B g5t
undiscounted cash flows. AP ETRANIEE
NEBEAESNRMIENIR
EIRE o
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
BERY
OR-BR -Z=fR Z=M@RE-%& -E1fF RENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
As at 31 December 2021 RIZZ-%
tZA=+-H
Non-derivative i eRad
financial liabilities
Borrowings &3 1,404.5 143 200.3 41.5 -
Lease liabilities HE&R 15.6 311 139.9 1735 51.4
Trade, bills and other payables % EERAMENZE 1,789.6 115.9 125 183 26
Amounts due to related parties  FEfTEENE A FNE 748 0.4 2.7 - -
3,284.5 161.7 3824 2393 54.0
As at 31 December 2020 3
+-A=+-H
Non-derivative financial FiTEERAR
liabilities
Borrowings (EE 2815 1,687.8 188.4 1776 25
Lease liabilities fE&R 185 37.0 166.4 322.9 595
Trade, bills and other payables ~ B7 REREMEMNTE 1367.9 774 470 145 -
Amounts due to related parties  FEfTBERE VA 402 04 115 113 -
1,708.1 1,802.6 4133 5263 62.0
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3 EREMRERE (@)

188 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$284.5 million (2020: HK$246.9 million). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within five
years after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows of HK$285.3 million (2020:
HK$249.6 million) will be repaid within five year.

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the
end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities
as disclosed in Notes 30 and 31 and, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company, comprising capital, various reserves and
accumulated losses.
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RERIES IR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
monitor capital on basis of gearing ratio, which is
calculated based on total borrowings divided by our total
assets.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 was as follows:

3

EREMGSIE (&)
32 EBAXREE@®

REE-S-—F+-A=+—
AlLaE FAEEREEESE
B RAA HERELER
BERRERURPNEESE
CEE

KEBR B2 —FR-EE
E+A=+—HHEE&REL
31 N

2021 2020

& TEITE

HK$M HK$M

BEEAT BEEAT

Total borrowings BER 1,661.9 2,298.4
Total assets mEE 9,958.5 9,872.9
Gearing ratio BEAMGELE 16.7% 23.3%

The Directors review the capital structure periodically.
The Directors also balance the overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share repurchases as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The directors of the Company determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. The Directors and the senior
management team work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed below.

The following table analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2021 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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RERIES IR

3 TREARERE (8

3.3 QXFEMGE @)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

Financial assets/(liabilities)

AT EFERMGERRF (@)

Fair value as at

EREE/ (B8R RUTRBNATE
31 December 31 December Fair value
2021 2020 hierarchy
—E & —TZF
+-B=+-B +-B=+-8 ATEER
HKSM HK$M
BEAET BEAT

1) Publicly traded metal commodities future contracts classified as (1.0) (6.3) Level 1
derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet
RRAEEARRTPEANTESRTIAZ A ARRZEBREREE F—1
)

2) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative financial 29.2 9.9 Level 2
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (33.1) (53.1)
RERBEERRPNEATESHNIAZEBERNESH FH

3) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative financial 1.9 44 Level 2
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (5.3) (0.3)

R EBEARRPAEATESRIAIMNEEREK E4H

4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 0.8 0.9 Level 3
BATEFABRZ SHEE B

5) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 91.3 104.6 Level 3
BRATEFARMZERGE SHEE F=H

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of derivative financial instruments publicly
traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the quoted bid commodity
future price. These instruments are included in level 1 and
comprise primarily metal commodities future contracts
publicly traded in the London Metal Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

Financial instruments in level 2

The Group's metal commodities future contracts
represented the Group’s derivative financial instruments
which are included in level 2. The basis of fair value
measurement and valuation technique of such derivative
financial instruments are par method and taking actively
traded future prices into account.

The Group’s foreign currency forward contracts represented
the Group’s derivative financial instruments which are
included in level 2. The basis of fair value measurement and
valuation technique of such derivative financial instruments
are discount cash flow method and present value of the
future cash flows estimated based on forward exchange
rates. The unobservable input is expected future cash flow,
therefore lower cash flow results in lower present value.

Financial instruments in level 3

The Group's equity interests in unlisted entities represented
the Group's financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which are included in level 3. The
basis of fair value measurement and valuation technique
of such financial assets are discount cash flow method and
present value of the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities. The unobservable input is expected future
cash flow, therefore lower cash flow results in lower present
value.
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RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMSESIE (@)

194 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 2AFEME @)
Fair value measurements and valuation process AEEFERGERER @)
(continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated RiEaEERBRBEDRNATE
balance sheet: FE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—8 B B Bt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
B8AT HEAn HBHEAT HEER
As at 31 December 2021 R_E_—F
+ZB=+-8
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BATFEFABGZZEREE
profit or loss - - 0.8 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFEFARMZEANEZE
other comprehensive income MEE - - 91.3 91.3
Hedging derivatives HHTETA
- metal commodities futures -EBEmBE - 29.2 - 29.2
Trading derivatives RBMTETR
— foreign currency forwards —HMEEER - 1.9 - 1.9
Liabilities &afE
Hedging derivatives HHT4E TR
- metal commodities futures -EBEmBE (1.0) (33.1) - (34.1)
Trading derivatives RBMTETR
— foreign currency forwards — SN R = (5.3) = (5.3)
As at 31 December 2020 RIBZEFE+ZA=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through AT E AEEZ £RHEE
profit or loss - - 0.9 0.9
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFEFARMZEANEZE
other comprehensive income MEE - - 104.6 104.6
Trading derivatives RBMTEIR
- metal commodities futures —-tEEmAE - 9.9 - 9.9
— foreign currency forwards —HMEEER - 4.4 - 44
Liabilities &afE
Trading derivatives RBMTEIR
- metal commodities futures -EBEmEE (6.3) (53.1 - (59.4)
— foreign currency forwards —HMEEER - (03 - (0.3)
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BREHB RN

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMSESIE (@)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 2AFEME @)
Fair value measurements and valuation process AEEFERGERER @)
(continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRFIEEZZEZ—FRZE
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2021 and TEE+"HBA=+—HIEES
2020: ZRTANEE
Financial Financial
Financial assets at Finandial assets at
assets at fair value assets at fair value
fair value through fair value through
through other through other
profit comprehensive profit - comprehensive
or loss income  Total 2021 or loss income Total 2020
BATHE BRTE
BATE AR BRTE st A
dABEz 2EKEz  ZET-F ABRz  2EMEz  ZECEE
EHEE SHEE ai THEE EHEE a
HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

EEXrT BEEAnT 2 EEEn  BEEn BEEn  BEER

As at 1 January r—A—H 0.9 104.6 1055 19 93.7 100.6

Additions HE - 1.0 1.0 - - -

Disposals e - (11.6) (11.6) (10) (03) (13)

Fair value gain/(loss) AFERR/ (BE) - 43 43 0.2) (1.1) (13)

Currency translation differences ERES (0.1) (7.0) (11) 0.2 73 75

As at 31 December R+ZR=+-H 0.8 913 92.1 09 104.6 105.5

There were no transfers among the three levels during REBEEZZ-_—FHZT_TF
either of the years ended 31 December 2021 or 2020. +ZA=+—HIFE  =@EE

4R R RS o

The management considers that the carrying amounts BEERA RNEEVMERENRN
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at RBER AT ENEHREERS
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements FMEBENRmERAEATENE
approximate their fair values. Ho
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RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMSESIE (@)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEMBERESHMEE
liabilities
(a) Financial assets () =MEE
The following financial assets are subject to MTEMBEEZIEE T
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements BHEBATHR—FHEEED
and similar agreements: BERFALURZERIR

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount ~ Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised of financial balance sheet
Gross finandial assets  RRGREEBERMIRN
amounts of liabilities ~presented REE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2021 assets  balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERINBYN  REREE
BRDER  CRIEH  BRREIN RIS
KZ5--%+ZA=+-H BEUE BREE SHMEETE £MIR gk 38
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BRER BRER BRET BRAT BRAR BRER

Pledged and restricted BEARERE

bank deposits ROER 1424 - 1424 - (124.0) 184
Cashand cash equivalents B REEZEER 7823 - 7823 - (4.6) 7.7
Derivative financial instruments #74££ 8T &

- Foreign currency forward - —SMEREIAH

contracts 19 - 19 - - 19

- Metal commodities futre ~ ~2BERBEEH

contracts 292 - 292 - - 292
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BREHB RN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 £REAKREIR (4&)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 HFHEHMEERERMEE @
liabilities (continued)
(@) Financial assets (continued) (a) =REEE
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assels  RRGABEBERNEN
amounts of liabilities presented S
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2020 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERIIGN  REAEE
BRI CHEISE &EREIN EWEERS
RZEZEF+ZA=1+-H BEER BEAE SHBEIER $MIA EAm B
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET BEER BEER BEER BEEn
Pledged bank deposits BHARTER 1227 - 1227 (123) (108.8) 16
Cash and cash equivalents  R&REEEEER 9138 - 9138 - 8.3) 905.5
Derivative financial fTEeMIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward
contracts 44 - 44 - - 44
- Metal commodities future
contracts 99 - 9.9 - - 99

ERIRREEFRAR
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RERIES IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

TREARERE (8

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEMBERESMEE @
liabilities (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (b) =REE
The following financial liabilities are subject to UMTEmaEZEHE 7
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements REINITHR—PHEEER
and similar agreements: BERFALURZERIR
Related amounts not net off
Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial liabilities ~ KRGEEEERRNZN
amounts assets netoff presented il
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2021 liabilities balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BEXNBN REREE
BREAERE CHEIER &EREIN EWERE
K-%--%+-B=+-H BfENE BEAE SRERETE $HMIA izl et
HKSM HK$SM HK$SM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BRAT BEAT BT BEBAET BRAT BEAT
Borrowings B 1,661.9 - 1,661.9 - (124.0) 1,537.9
Derivative financial TE$MIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward  —SMEEEAH
contracts 53 - 53 - - 53
- Metal commodities future —4BEREHRS
contracts 4| 341 - 34.1 - (4.6) 295
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BREHB RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b)

ERERER (@)
34 EMSMEERSMEE @

ERaRE (&

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial liabiites ~ XREFABEBERINRHN
amounts  assets net off presented HEsE
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2020 liabilities  balance sheet ~ balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERIBYN  RRREE
BRI CHEISE &EREIN EERE
RZEZEF+ZA=1+-H BEQE EELE SRBETE £RMTE EAm B
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET BEER BEER BEER BEEn
Borrowings & 2,298.4 - 2,298.4 (12.3) (108.9) 21713
Derivative financial fTEEMIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward  —SMEEEAH
contracts 03 - 0.3 - - 03
- Metal commodities future —4BERESRS
contracts ] 59.4 - 59.4 = (83) 51.1
The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets rERGREEEEBRA

and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as fair
value.

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded through
brokers, and foreign currency forward/swap contracts
contracted with banks. If a default event (included
but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the
banks are able to exercise the right to offset against
any favourable contracts and/or the collaterals placed.
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RERIES IR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill and
other assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Notes 2.10 and 2.11. Other assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of an asset
or a cash-generating unit have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or its fair value less costs of
disposal, whichever is higher. These calculations require the
use of estimates. The value-in-use calculations primarily use
cash flow projections. Judgement is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Asset retirement obligations

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land might be
needed to make it appropriate for operation as scrap yards.

It was the Group's contractual obligation to bring the land
to its original condition as the Group is not the owner of
the land. The Group estimates the expected costs necessary
to dismantle the scrap yards by assessing the discount rate
as well as expected increment in future cost which might
lead to changes in the provisions recognised.

Estimation of provision for impairment of
receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the allowances calculation,
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying values of receivables
and the impairment loss on receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have changed.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, such as
deductibility of compensation payments to customers.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.
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RERIES IR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in the
period in which such estimates are changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost to completion and selling expenses. Management of
the Group reviews the inventories listing on a category-
by-category basis at the end of the reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable
commodity exchanges. If the market price of inventories
is to decline, additional write down may be required.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
assets (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and options over shares in joint ventures
to joint venture partners, if any) that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques and making assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed entities
are determined using discounted cash-flow method, which
requires the determination of an appropriate discount rate
as well as assumptions regarding the cash-flow projections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(9)

(h)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
by reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will adjust useful lives as
appropriate.

The Group periodically reassesses the useful lives of its
property, plant and equipment, taking into consideration
past usage and performance, prior repair and maintenance
efforts, current physical and operating conditions of these
assets, industry practices as well as future usage plans.
Periodic review could result in a change in useful lives and
therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in the
future periods.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or not periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The assessment is reviewed when a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
leasee.

BREHB RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue mainly represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of recycled scraps and wastes, net of sales
related taxes, during the year. The Group derives revenue mainly
from transfer of these goods at a point in time.

The Group’s CODM, which has been identified as the Executive
Committee that makes strategic decisions, assesses the Group's
performance from geographic perspective and has identified
three reportable segments of its business: Asia, Europe and
North America. The operating segments are assessed based on
the measure of segment profit. This measurement basis excludes
the effects of non-operating gains/losses, such as impairments
on non-financial assets, fair value gain/loss on trading derivative
financial instruments, and gain/loss on disposals of assets held
for sale, joint ventures, property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets. The measure also excludes
centralised costs such as the Group’s key managements’
remunerations and other central administrative expenses. Finance
income, finance costs, income tax expenses and those unallocated
income and expenses are not included in the result for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the Group’s CODM. Inter-
segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets, tax
recoverable, derivative financial instruments and cash and cash
equivalents which are managed centrally. Information relating
to segment liabilities is not disclosed as such information is not
regularly reported to the CODM.
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BREHB RN

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
The following table presents revenue and segment profit TERAPNHINEHAEEHEZS

information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the T HRIZEZIEF+ZA=+—H

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively: LFEP 2| EHI U K 2 B0 F)
&R
For the year ended
HENTRBLER

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Z3_-F+ZB=t-H ZECEETIR=H-A
North North
Asia - Europe  America Unallocated Total Asia turope  America  Unallocated Total

i G ) - Bt il o RN R9E £
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
AE¥n FEB#n FRAn FRAT BRAT BEET BEEn BEAR BEER BEER

Revenue W&

Total segment revenue i 21308 191500 10124 - 2292 1705 107089 1,086 - 135055

Inter-seqment sales e (19 (5 (134 - (349 - (190) (8.4) - 138
ternal sales e 21289 18825 9990 - 9504 1705 105799 10777 - 13368
Seqment profitloss) Har/ B8 189 9940 1823 ) 115 (496 2185 627 (6835 (5773
Finance income I 95 10
Finance costs HERA (2433) (2435)
Profit(Loss) before income tax REEREER/ (58 883.7 (809.8)
Income tax expense FiEHEx (191.7) (544)
ProfitLoss) for the year Rt/ (E8) 6920 (864.)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  TER &SR 1) (307.4) 89 (181 (406 812 (3073) #28) (195 (4508
Fair value gainfloss) on trading derivative ZX31% j*z*%ﬁHEZNTE

financial instruments (Note) W&/ (E8) () - - - 32 32 = 5 - (68.1) (68.1)
Fair value loss on finandial assets BATE uf)\%ﬁmzémﬂﬁﬁ

atfairvalue through proft or loss JATEER (05) - - - (05) 23 (02) - = 25
(Loss)Gain on disposal of property, plant 41 FRE Rei R

and equipment and rightof-use assets ~ EBEZ (5%8) /W& - - - (29 (329 < L = 34 B4
Gain/[Loss) on disposals and deregistration &%&ﬁiﬁ?ﬂj&“ﬁﬁ

of subsidiaries or joint ventures 205/ B8 = - - 110 110 = = - (45) (45)
(Gain on disposals of assets held for sale EET fEHEEE W - - - 1134 1134 - - - - -

Provision for impairments on property, 1% HERREURERE
plant and equipment and right-o-use ~ EEZHEAE

assets - - - (13 (13) - - - 2228) (2298
Provision for impairment on investments  REAELEZ AR
in joint ventures - - = (13) (13) a 2 e L N
Impairments on intangble assets EVEEZAE - - - @0 0 - - - 051 (0s)
Impairments on assets held forsale ~ FfEkEEEZHE - - - - - - - = 913 (013
Note: The fair value gain/(loss) on trading derivative financial instruments for the ffiz : @EZB_—F+"HA=+—HIEFEW
year ended 31 December 2021 represented the fair value loss related to REMTEEMIAZ AT ERE (&
those trading derivative financial instruments that were not subject to hedge 8) BB EETH TR RENZERS
accounting. MR ITABMNATE-RE
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S RN
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SERER ()
Segment assets NWEE

B —F+ZA=+—BRKRZZ
“EEFR=T—HOWEEHE

Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are provided as follows:

ERENHERNT :
As at
R
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

“%_-f£+ZR=1-H “ECRE+ZA=+-H

North North
Asia  Europe  America Total Asia Europe  America Total
Ml B JEM h il Bl EM &

HKSM HK$SM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M

BEBAT B8An GEAn FHEAT @EErT BSEEn B8En BEEn

Segment assets AHEE 1,739.0  7,069.9 2400 90489 15414 67724 4976 88114

Deferred income tax assets BiEmEHER 789 1104

Tax recoverable TREHE 173 230

Derivative financial instruments  fT££8 T8 31.1 143

Cash and cash equivalents BERBRESEES 7823 9138

Total assets BESE 9,958.5 9,872.9
Geographical information HEER

FERBEENBREM T BRI
BREE  EDFINT

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets, are analysed by geographic regions as follows:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—5F —E2IEF

+-B=+—H +Z-A=+—H

HK$M HK$M

BEAT BEBT

Asia | 716.8 661.8

Europe - B 3,865.4 4,209.8

North America eS| 194.7 271.9

Total ya st 4,776.9 5,143.5
206 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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AR B REIREME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEER @)
Analysis of revenue by category BEBER D EZKRZ DR
For the year ended
BEUTHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—T——fF —_EEHF
+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BE&ATT
Metal recycling EFEEU

— Ferrous metal 2B 14,136.9 8,397.9

— Non-ferrous metal -EBEE 7,142.8 4,362.6
Forging and foundry IS M iEE 67.6 99.0
Others Hith 603.1 508.6
Total 21,950.4 13,368.1
Information about major customers FERFHNER
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's REBE_E_—GFRIZIEHF+T
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. B=+—HLEHFE IEE—XKFE

BAAREE U 10% T _E o
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HfhlkA
2021 2020
—E—F —ETEH
HKS$M HK$M
BHEAT BE&ETT
Rental income for short-term FRHAREREREWA

operating leases 13.4 a8
Rental income from investment properties & E¥) WA (FFsE16)

(Note 16) 15.5 9.5
Government grants/subsidies BRT BN, FE RS 3.4 33.2
Dividend income Bz B A 5.0 2.5
Other income from related parties I B B 5 BV E U A

(Note 37(a)) (Miz¥37(a)) 6.2 8.5
Compensation from insurance coverage RIgFE 15.0 40.9
Tax subsidies received B U8 U 4e B 22,5 10.9
Service income AR5 A 3.0 5.2
Others HAth 4.9 )

88.9 139.7

BEBGRERBRAT —S-—5£5{f 207
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RERIES IR

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7 Hftwkz  (8518) B2
2021 2020
—E—F “EBECBF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT ENE
Gain/(Loss) on fair value change of: N EEENE, S (B58)
— trading derivative financial instruments ~ —B/ABETE AT StERIERN
not subject to hedge accounting REMETEEMTA 3.2 (68.1)
— financial assets at fair value through —BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss EREE (0.5) (2.5)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net B (B518) 348 29.2 (28.3)
(Loss)/Gain on disposals of property, plant  HEY) ¥~ 5 K& & K F B
and equipment and right-of-use assets HEEZ (518 W (32.9) 23.4
Gain/(Loss) on disposals and deregistration HERFEHFATREGE D
of subsidiaries or joint ventures Z W (E518) 11.0 (4.5)
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale HERFHEEEZ NG
(Note 24) (PMy5E24) 113.1 -
Impairments on non-financial assets: FFERMEERE !
— provision for impairments on property, —ME--BEREEZRE
plant and equipment (Note 14) BB (st14) (1.3) (150.0)
— provision for impairments —FRAREEERERS
on right-of-use assets (Note 15) (fF5E15) - (72.8)
— provision for impairment —RESEhEY
on investments in joint ventures AEEE (7.3) -
— impairments on intangible assets —EEEEZRE
(Note 17) (fF5E17) (21.0) (205.1)
— impairments on assets held for sale —FEHEBERE
(Note 24) (Mf5E24) - (91.3)
Paycheck Protection Program loan TEREFEERRR
forgiveness 40.2 -
Others Hith (4.0) 0.3
129.7 (598.9)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

8 BMHIDZHEX

2021 2020
T —F “EBECBF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BE&AT
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 8 @R B RIFE 2 B H)
and finished goods (79.4) (471.1)
Raw materials and consumables used B AR L K JE FE 17,639.0 10,627.3
Provision for impairments on inventories,  FEREREFEE (f:£22)
net (Note 22) 31.3 18.5
Freight cost EE 883.5 807.7
Utilities and waste disposal cost KB E KREYRIEMA 438.7 388.5
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BRE®RFIFEZ (&) 1,111.0 1,065.6
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of ¥ -HEKHZH BREEE
property, plant and equipment, FTREBEENEENE S
intangible assets, right-of-use assets TE Mg HR S
and investment properties 406.7 450.8
Legal and professional expenses FEREERE 175.0 66.5
Auditors’ remuneration A GRS
— audit services —IZHARTS 19.2 21.0
— non-audit services —IEZBRTE 8.0 4.4
Repair and maintenance expenses HEREEER 222.7 181.3
Lease expenses HERR%
— short-term leases —fEHAEE 7.6 10.7
— low-value leases —REEHEE 5.9 4.8
Administrative services provided by R B 5 IR R ITEARTS
related parties (Note 37(a)) (F¥5E37(a)) 4.0 2.8
Other expenses HihBEsz 434.4 381.6
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling S8 A~ D iH R HER UL
expenses and administrative expenses RATH Rz 40 %R 21,307.6 13,560.4
BERFEEBRAT T —HFR
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RERIES IR

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 EERFRX
Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FANESRMNBAZUNT !
2021 2020
s % —ETEHF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Wages and salaries TERHE 916.5 877.9
Other termination benefits HAthgk B R F) 0.4 3.6
Social security costs HRA A 62.5 60.8
Pension costs — defined contribution plans B IAE A — R E M
(Note (a)) (MIEE(a)) 71.9 65.7
Pension costs — defined benefit plans BAREMA—AEEHEE 0.4 0.5
Other employee benefits Hitfg 8187 59.3 57.1
Total employee benefit expense BERFIBZ 58 1,111.0 1,065.6
Notes: PsE
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BAE—-REMREE

Contributions totalling HK$0.1 million (2020: HK$0.2 million) were payable to
the fund as at 31 December 2021.

No forfeiture of contributions were used to reduce the existing level of
contributions during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
year include three (2020: four) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis shown in Note 38. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2020: one) individuals during the year are as follows:

HEREHOIEEBT (CEZZE 028
BHn) AR -2 —&5+-B=+—H
BIBEAES-

REE_Z-_—F+"B=+—HILHF
B BMEs B W ERLUBEIRE
BERKFE (T ZTE ) o

(b) HfEEHFMAL
FRNFEBZIURSHMNA L SEMN
EEHINME3IE AT Z =ML (ZF
TBF ) EF - FREMTFH T WL
(Z2Z2F  —) ALZME20T

2021 2020
—ET—%F ZEBIEHF
HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEET
Salaries, bonus and other allowances %<& ~ {E4L K EL 28k 9.2 43
Pension costs-defined BRERA—REMEREE

contribution plans - _
9.2 4.3

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FUTHE :
Number of Number of
individual individual
A# N
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 75 %4,500,00078 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 725,000,000/ 7T 2 -
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ARSI IR ML
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BAFSAR A3 %A
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EEEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFEUWA 7.9 7.0
Interest income from fixed return investment [& E[CI¥RIEE Z F BUT A - 2.2
Interest income from related parties Tk B REEE S 2 F 2 A
(Note 37(a)) (MFE37(a)) 1.6 1.8
Finance income ~  MBWA e 110
Interest expense on bank loans, RITER BIZREMNERE
overdrafts and bills payables ZHBR% (65.0) (57.5)
Interest expense on other borrowings HtERZANERS (159.0) (155.6)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 31) fAE&EZ M B (F:E31) (18.6) (29.7)
Interest expense on loans from RERABAENERZFERZ
related parties (Note 37(a)) (Ff5E37(a)) (0.7) (0.7)
Financecosts  ___ #BeAx (2433) __ (288 5) "
Finance costs, net AT B A R 2R (233.8) (232.5)

ERIRREEFRAR
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B HREIREH
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FrieAx
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% FAMBRABIBEN G EERE
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. FIEIRE16.5% (B -F4F . 16.5%)
BEEE R
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT") RBIBERETEMER (THEEMBER)
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of EREEEEMEREREN > P
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on PEMFRABIZENGEERE
the estimated assessable profit for the year. FILMFE25% (B 2FF 1 25%) 5t
IRRH o
Germany and the United States (“US") income taxes have been BEEKRERMERIDRBEENGE
provided at the rate of approximately 30% (2020: 30%) and BRENDBIRRELN30% (CTEZE
26% (2020: 26%) respectively, on the estimated assessable profit F130%) K26% (ZEZFF 1 26%)
for the year. BEE1E
Taxation on profits from other jurisdictions has been calculated REHMBEE &R ZRIBTIRE
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of FAGEFERR MR AERCERN
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. HAERZIRITREFTE -
2021 2020
—E—F TEITE
HKSM HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Current income tax (expense)/credit: BIHAFR SR (BiD) &%
Germany = (175.7) (35.5)
us ESE 0.1 -
PRC EIT FEIEEFER (4.9) (1.4)
Hong Kong profits tax FAENSH (5.6) (1.5)
Other jurisdictions Hhalz#E (26.7) (1.6)
(212.3) (40.0)
Over/(Under) provision in prior years: BEFEEBEEE
BERE
Germany = 0.4 (4.9)
us EH - 3.2
Other jurisdictions Hihalx#E 0.8 (9.2)
1.2 (10.9)
Deferred income tax credit/(expense) EIEFTIEMIK S (BID)
(Note 21) - s> 194 35)
Income tax expense FriSMRBS (191.7) (54.4)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated entities as

BREHB RN

*ﬁﬁ:ﬁi (II\E)
NEBE FRPTIS %ﬁﬁU)ﬁTﬁU/(Eﬂéﬁ) O
HEEABANGEEREN N ME
$ﬁ$§1$ﬁ'ﬁé$ﬁ’\]ﬁaﬁﬁ$%§2%%ﬂﬁﬂ

follows: T
2021 2020
B —fF —E2CE
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET
Profit/(Loss) before income tax FRPEFEMATEF, (B518) 883.7 (809.8)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates e A AR E ORI B
applicable to profits in the respective AR KRB HIRIE
countries 255.9 (173.1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR T IR TS £
tax purpose 50.0 164.7
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARRBRANRBZE
tax purpose (29.7) (26.5)
Tax effect of temporary differences RN EREENRBEE
not recognised (28.0) 77.4
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEGENR B E 48.0 40.0
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A ZAIREDRRIBEEN
previously not recognised ML (27.2) (24.7)
Tax impact on share of results from HRE(E— R AR
an associate and joint ventures éféﬂé%%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ?’x R (76.1) (14.3)
(Over)/Under provision in respect of BEFE (BEEs
prior years BEAR (1.2) 10.9
Income tax expense for the year FRMERMASZ 191.7 54.4

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 28.9% (2020:
21.4%). The increase is caused by changes in the profitability of
certain subsidiaries.

INEFHHBERAREA28.9% (CTE-F

F121.4%) MR ETF AT
ZBAENEE -

FABRREMERAT "B-—FFR
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RERIES IR

12 DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2021 and 2020, nor
has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of
the reporting period in respect of the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

13 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
profit/(loss) for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

12

13

KRE
AARR-E-Z—ER-S-EE
HEREN R RS RN EARSE 58
ECEC ER-E-SE+A
SO EENRERR T ERS
EAHERS -

SREF 7 (E518)

(@ E&
SREARRF], (B8 HEEAA
BIRBEELAEE RN, (18)
FRUARFE D EITE @R INEF

shares in issue during the year. BB FERH
2021 2020
—EZ—%F TEBCRE
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
Profit/(Loss) w7 (B518)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable — 7Z</A 5 JR 58 FE 1 A E FEE i 7
to shareholders of the Company / (E518) 702.0 (848.1)
Number of shares ahE =]
Weighted average number BEITEBRMETEHE
of ordinary shares in issue (F5)
(thousands) 1,605,152 1,605,152
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREXSBAN, (B8)
(expressed in HK$) LB TTEIER) 0.44 (0.53)
(b) Diluted (b) 8

The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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AR IS EREE
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ME--BERSE
Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment  in progress Total
PARER
THREF BERESR RtE EIR st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BT REET  BEEx  BEERT BEER

As at 1 January 2020 RZZ2ZEFE-F-H
Cost B A 2,5318 1,070.5 160.4 105.3 3,868.0
Accumulated depreciation and RMERAERE

impairment loss (331.7) (488.3) (65.1) - (885.1)
Net book amount REFE 2,200.1 582.2 953 105.3 2,982.9

Year ended 31 December 2020  HZE_Z-ZH&+_-A=1+—H

IEFE
Opening net book amount FNZREFE 2,200.1 582.2 953 105.3 2,982.9
Additions RE 27.7 475 359 117.5 228.6
Transfer upon completion REmEEE 274 63.2 3.0 (93.6) =
Transfer to investment properties ~ EZEREYE (HizH16)
(Note 16) (30.9) - - - (30.9)
Transfer to assets held for sale BEREHEEE
(Notes 24 & (iii) (Bt 5%248&4(iii)) (206.9) (49.9) 2.2) - (259.0)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (iv)) ~ F{EES18 (HIzE7&(0v)) (51.3) (63.3) (2.5) (329 (150.0)
Disposals HE (56.5) (333) (5.6) 22 (97.6)
Depreciation charge TERZ (97.7) (94.2) (333) = (225.2)
Currency translation differences ~ EREZE 1328 322 4.7 54 175.1
Closing net book amount FRZREFE 1,944.7 484.4 953 99.5 2,623.9
As at 31 December 2020 RIBE"EE
+ZA=+-7
Cost BA 2,396.3 1,090.5 192.7 99.5 3,779.0
Accumulated depreciation and BT ERAERE
impairment loss (451.6) (606.1) (97.4) - (1,155.1)
Net book amount REFE 1,944.7 484.4 95.3 99.5 2,623.9
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AR SIS IR
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE- -BERSE &)
(continued)
Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and  Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment in progress Total
WAKER
THEEF RERES R HREIR st
HK$M HK$SM HK$M HK$M HK$M

BREET BRET BEET BEET BEET

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-H+°RA=1+-H

IEEE
Opening net book amount FNERDEE 1,944.7 484.4 95.3 99.5 2,623.9
Additions HE 19.0 48.8 321 57.7 157.6
Transfer upon completion R EEE 69.1 34.9 = (104.0) =
Transfer to assets held for sale EEREHEEE (H5£2484(i)

(Notes 24 & (iii)) (55.7) (24.6) - 2.7) (83.0)
Transfer to investment properties BEREME (H:16)

(Note 16) (35.7) - - - (35.7)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (iv)) AEBE (78 (v) (0.9 - - (0.4) (1.3)
Disposals HE (50.2) (2.1) (2.2) (1.5) (56.0)
Depreciation charge NERY (91.3) (88.6) (38.1) = (218.0)
Currency translation differences ERER (101.7) (22.9) (4.4) (1.9) (130.9)
Closing net book amount FRZEEFE 1,697.3 429.9 82.7 46.7 2,256.6
As at 31 December 2021 RIZ2Z-F+ZA=1+—H
Cost %N 2,206.4 1,089.7 212.0 471 3,555.2
Accumulated depreciation and EHMERABESE

impairment loss (509.1) (659.8) (129.3) (0.4) (1,298.6)
Net book amount REFE 1,697.3 429.9 82.7 46.7 2,256.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2021 mainly comprises new
sewage treatment plant (2020: new metal scrap processing machinery and
equipment) being constructed in Europe.

As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of HK$1,519.8 million (2020: HK$1,888.2 million) were pledged to
secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 35).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain property, plant and
equipment with net book values of HK$83.0 million were transferred to assets
held for sale (Note 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment
with net book values of HK$259.0 million were transferred to assets held
for sale. Upon the transfer, such property, plant and equipment have been
measured at the lower of their net book value and fair value less cost to sell
based on the expected sales price and an impairment loss of HK$51.1 million
has been recognised in “impairments on non-financial assets” in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As a result, assets held for sale
recognised for these property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$207.9
million (Note 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised a provision
for impairments on property, plant and equipment of HK$1.3 million related
to certain idle assets in Europe, which their recoverable amounts are below
their carrying values based on management'’s assessment (Note 7).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised a provision
for impairments on property, plant and equipment of HK$150.0 million of
which (a) HK$115.1 million related to idle assets in Asia and Europe; and
(b) HK$34.9 million were related to certain property, plant and equipment
in North America, which their recoverable amounts are below their carrying
values based on management’s assessment.

The recoverable amounts of performing property, plant and equipment is
determined through value-in-use (Note 17). Recoverable amounts for non-
performing property, plant and equipment is determined based on fair value
less cost of disposal.

Py5E -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ERIRREEFRAR
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f#) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 EREEE

Office
Plant furniture
Land and and and  Intangible
buildings  machinery equ% ment assets Total
X YN ﬁ& — N
THRIEF ﬁ%&#ﬁ% BREE et
HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM
BEET BT BT BT BEET
As at 1 January 2020 RZZ2ZZF¥-F-H
Cost & % 7259 640.9 258.0 0.4 1,625.2
Accumulated depreciation, R E B RAERE

amortisation and impairment loss (126.7) (250.5) (61.9) (03) (439.4)
Net book amount REZE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
Year ended 31 December 2020 ﬁf_g_v F+-A=1+—H
Opening net book amount ?%ﬂﬁﬁ%%1§ 599.2 3904 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
Additions e 40.7 22.0 385 - 101.2
Disposals HE (6.0) (75.2) - - (812)
Depreciation and ERBHRY

amortisation charge (56.5) (75.2) (59.8) .1 (191.6)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (i)~ JR{EESIE (MTW&(M)) (63.9) (8.9) - - (72.8)
Transfer to assets held for sale EEREHEEE (5H248(v)

(Note 24 & (iv)) (114.4) (48.2) 4.3) - (166.9)
Currency translation differences ~ ERZE# 26.1 1.4 325 - 70.0
Closing net book amount FRZEREFE 4252 216.3 203.0 - 8445
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+"A=+—H
Cost mE o 658.0 501.4 3174 - 1,476.8
Accumulated depreciation, BEHIME - EHERRERE

amortisation and impairment loss (232.8) (285.1) (114.4) - (632.3)
Net book amount REFE 4252 216.3 203.0 - 844.5
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z_—F+"A=1+-H

LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 4252 216.3 203.0 - 844.5
Additions wE 43.2 18.4 4.3 - 102.9
Disposals HE (5.3) (17.4) (8.1) = (30.8)
Depreciation and TEREHERS

amortisation charge ] ‘ (51.3) (61.9) (52.1) - (165.3)
Transfer to assets held for sale BERBEHESE (5H248(v))

(Note 24 & (iv)) (1.0) (4.0) (21.0) - (26.0)
Currency translation differences ~ ERZE% (2.4) (10.4) (11.0) - (23.8)
Closing net book amount FXRZEEFE 408.4 141.0 152.1 - 701.5
As at 31 December 2021 RZBZ—F+-A=+—-H
Cost BE o 678.5 4250 283.4 - 13869
Accumulated depreciation, BEINE EHERRERE

amortisation and impairment loss (270.1) (284.0) (131.3) - (685.4)
Net book amount REFE 408.4 141.0 152.1 - 701.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2021, certain leasehold land and land use rights with a
net book value of HK$145.3 million (2020: HK$187.1 million) were pledged
to secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 35).

Expenses relating to short-term leases of HK$7.6 million (2020: HK$10.7
million) and expenses relating to leases of low-value assets that are not
classified as short-term leases of HK$5.9 million (2020: HK$4.8 million) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 (Note 8).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised a provision
for impairments on right-of-use assets of HK$63.9 million and HK$8.9 million
in Asia and North America respectively, which their recoverable amounts are
below their carrying values based on management’s assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets with a net book
value of HK$26.0 million were transferred to assets held for sale (Note 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets with a net
book value of HK$166.9 million were transferred to assets held for sale.
Upon the transfer, such right-of-use assets have been measured at the lower
of their net book value and fair value less cost to sell based on the expected
sales price and an impairment loss of HK$40.2 million has been recognised in
“impairments on non-financial assets” in the Group’s consolidated statement
of profit or loss. As a result, assets held for sale recognised for these right-of-
use assets amounted to HK$126.7 million (Note 24).

BREHB RN

15 FRHEEE (@)

CEE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ERIRREEFRAR
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B 2 ETHE LM E HMEREER
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TROERVIEIR (MI5E35) ©
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TEI107TEEETT) RERTEDEALRE
HEEZREEEEREZHX5988
BT (CEIZRE 48HBBET) DEEHE
ZEC—F+"B=t+—HILEEZKE
BRRIMNGR (F5E8) o

REE-S-_TF+_A=+—HIEE
P AEER DM RIEENNERREE
SRR E D B EHE3. 9B BB T KE9E
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BENERAEE
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M REFESD26 08B BTHNERES
EEBARELEESE (Ms24) 0
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M REDFEEA166 9B BB TNERES
EESARFHESE RNEBR ZEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 KEMXE
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EEEF
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEBAT
As at 1 January w—B—H 20.7 9.1
Depreciation charge TERMSE (1.3) (2.3)
Transfer from property, BEYE BERKE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (MF5E14) 35.7 30.9
Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 24) BEFEHEEE (T5F24) - (19.0)
Currency translation differences PERZ=%E 1.2 2.0
As at 31 December R+ZB=+—H 56.3 20.7
Notes: BEEE
(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2020: the (i) EHMRRE (C2 T F  RE) NEEY

PRC), are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

(ii) The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2021
was HK$227.4 million (2020: HK$82.4 million).

(iii) Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to HK$15.5 million (2020: HK$9.5 million) (Note 6).

(iv) As at 31 December 2021, investment properties with a net book value of
HK$26.2 million (2020: HK$20.7 million) were pledged to secure certain
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 35).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BREE
Customers'
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer  patents and suppliers’  competition
Goodwill software licenses  relationship ~ agreement Total
migaiEs  BREGRK HERR
[EES Bimg FARER  HEEEG &R st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEET BEAT BEET BEET BEAET BEET

As at 1 January 2020 RZZZZEF—A—H

Cost A 7453 16.2 2983 9%.9 443 1,201.0
Accumulated amortisation REt#Y - (8.4) (25.4) (19.0) (33.2) (86.0)
Net book amount REFE 745.3 7.8 272.9 77.9 11.1 1,115.0

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_FTE+_A=1—

HIEEE

Opening net book amount FEREEE 7453 78 2729 779 1.1 1,115.0
Additions RE - 34 - - - 34
Impairment loss (Note 7) AESE (HE7) (198.5) - (6.6) - - (205.1)
Amortisation charges BiHmEz - 3.7 (9.8) (7.5 (10.7) (31.7)
Currency translation differences ERZEE 50.1 03 20.1 5.5 (0.4) 75.6
Closing net book amount EXRE@MEE 596.9 78 276.6 75.9 = 957.2
As at 31 December 2020 RIEZZF+ZA=+—H

Cost A 596.9 203 314.6 104.3 477 1,083.8
Accumulated amortisation Rt #Y - (12.5) (38.0) (28.4) (47.7) (126.6)
Net book amount REFE 596.9 78 276.6 75.9 = 957.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 EREE @&

Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and
Computer  patents and suppliers’
Goodwill software licenses  relationship Total
ARHE R TE ERMAGER
Ha B EAGs EHREE  HEERG st
HKSM HK$SM HK$M HK$SM HK$SM
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEAT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_E”_—
+ZA=+—HILEFE
Opening net book amount FRAZE 596.9 7.8 276.6 75.9 957.2
Additions HE - 2.0 - - 2.0
Impairment loss (Note 7) RERRE (H:7) - = (21.0) - (21.0)
Amortisation charges iRy - (4.1) (10.2) (7.8) (22.1)
Currency translation differences EREHRE (42.9) (0.5) (18.7) (5.1) (67.2)
Closing net book amount EXRE@EE 554.0 5.2 226.7 63.0 848.9
As at 31 December 2021 RIE"_—F
+ZA=+—H
Cost B 554.0 6.6 271.7 96.8 929.1
Accumulated amortisation REt#H = (1.4) (45.0) (33.8) (80.2)
Net book amount REFE 554.0 5.2 226.7 63.0 848.9
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17

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd* (B& IR
REHE AR AE) (“Yantai Liheng”) and Scholz Holding GmbH
("Scholz Holding”) in 2016. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives represented brand names.

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia, Europe and North
America as the main regions. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Yantai Liheng is allocated to its own CGU in Asia
region and that arising from the acquisition of Scholz Holding
is allocated to metal recycling CGU in Asia, Europe and North
America regions. Brand names have been allocated to CGUs in
Europe and North America regions, respectively.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the recycling businesses in which the CGU
operates.

* For identification only

BREHB RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 BE2EE @)
Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets BERARRFAEAFHZELEE
with indefinite useful lives (continued) ZREAR @)
For the impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets with NEEREERIERAFHCEBEE

EZzREANS EREEFETER
NWEERR ERERIRITERRK

indefinite useful lives, the key assumptions, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are

disclosed below: BRTxX:
oil
Metal recycling recycling
EEE FE ey
North
America Asia
Asia Europe (Note (ii)) (Note (ii))
J6EM G|
M EXM (GED)) (GEAD))
2021 ZEC-&
Long term growth rate RHEEX 2% 2% N/A N/A
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i)~ BRERATITIRE (M) 19.3% 13.7% N/A N/A
Gross profit margin ey ES 4.9%-8.9% 7.0%-8.4% N/A N/A
Revenue growth rate Gyl R g 6.7%-48.3% -4.0%-10.5% N/A N/A
Qil
Metal recycling recycling
EBEK 5 E
North
Asia Europe America Asia
2 B &M D
2020 ZEIZE
Long term growth rate RHEEX 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note () BRFAEIITIRE (i5E()) 19.3% 13.7% 13.0% 19.3%
Gross profit margin ER= 5.3%-9.8% 8.2%-9.5% 17.9% 5.6%-6.3%
Revenue growth rate ligpi b oE 5.0%-30.1% 5.0%-14.2% -34.8%-4.0% 3.7%-50.9%
Note: PEE -
(i) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast. (i) FE F3 B2 BR #6 A1 3R <5 0 T8RN 09 BR AR A #T 3R
$a
(ii) The goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been fully (ii) BELKAERIUEAFHZELEER T
impaired as at 31 December 2021. T —F+"A=+—HEEHRHE

BT -TETHFFLUR EEME
EETEHEL LHEREZRANE
TARER-

The North America region has been undergoing business
transformation to divest certain non-performing operations in the
US since the second half of year 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had impaired the goodwill,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets related to the North America
CGU amounting to HK$183.9 million, HK$6.6 million, HK$23.4
million and HK$8.9 million, respectively, based on management’s
cash flow forecast.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group divested
the processing operations in the US to strategically focus on the
brokerage business in the US. Management has considered the
effect from the business restructuring of US region operation
and concluded there will be minimal recoverable amount to be
generated from the intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.
As such, the remaining carrying value of the intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives of HK$21.0 million was fully written
off as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, Yantai Liheng's goodwill of HK$14.6
million has been fully impaired.

No impairment was made on the Asia CGU and Europe CGU as at
31 December 2021.

The recoverable amounts for Asia, Europe and North America
CGUs would still exceed their remaining carrying amounts if the
assumptions were changed as follows:

° lowering long term growth rate by 1 percentage point;
° raising pre-tax discount rate by 1 percentage point; or
° lowering revenue growth rate by 20% of the expected

growth rate.

17
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RERIES IR

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {EAHEZ EZARMNIGSE
EQUITY METHOD

(a) Interest in an associate () M—HEBEATZER
2021 2020
—E-—5F “EIEF
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEBT
Cost of unlisted investment in i El = /N1
an associate (Note) JEEHTERA () 2.3 2.3
Share of post-acquisition eI B RE RN,
retained earnings/ (RetiB8)
(accumulated losses) 0.1 (0.7)
2.4 1.6
Notes: MIsE :
Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period are as NEERBEHHRNBEQTFBUNT ©
follows:

Proportion of

Place of ownership interest

Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
NEEFRFES

BELE TEEEMI EREEILG  EEBEH
Poly Metals Company Limited (“Poly Metals") Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
EReBAERAR (TEE)) E5E BEEBRS
Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available BRI RBIARBDRERN L EASHTES
for its shares. BB
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's TEARAERNHEAD 2%
interest in an associate. w2 HAEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a)

Interest in an associate (continued)
Summarised financial information for an associate

Set out below is the summarised financial information

18 ER#EEARNKZE (@)

(@) M—HBEARZ#ER (@
—RABEARN M BEREE
XIS ER 2 BEREE

for Poly Metals which is accounted for using the equity HEAEmEEAR.
method.
Summarised balance sheet EEERREBE
2021 2020
—E-—&F === 5
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Total current assets MENEEMEE 26.3 34.0
Total non-current assets ERENEELEE 0.9 0.9
Total current liabilities BB EEE (22.9) (34.5)
Total non-current liabilities e B EIERE - =
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EKEREE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEITE
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEBIT
Revenue & 131.7 62.5
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive %%,/ (§518) R2ME
income/(loss) s, (B548) 4848 4.1 (0.4)

ERIRREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a)

Interest in an associate (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

(continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly

18 ER#EEARNKZE (@)

R—REBE ARz (@
EEWEHREE (&

(a)

L BER RN ER D
ZEREE REREMBRERARE

Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements: ) 2 HERWT ¢
2021 2020
—g_—FK —ETEHF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEERAT
Net assets of Poly Metals as at BEPR+ZA=1+—H8®
31 December BEFE 4.3 0.4
Proportion of the Group’s ownership &£ E A E Eh 2 A 1
interest in Poly Metals T EE 20% 20%
Share of net assets of Poly Metals FEILEREEFE 0.9 0.1
Goodwill i 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying value FRIREE 2.4 1.6

The information above reflects the

amounts presented

in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and

the associate.
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18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

BREHB RN

18 ER#EEARNKZE (@)

Interests in joint ventures (b) REEEHEZHED
Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FTEEEREZFHBHINUWT
below:
Place of
establishment/
principal place Principal  Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest activities method Carrying amount
Rt/
BELE TERLHE BEEEGZAN TEEH HERE IREfE
2021 2020 2021 2020
8% ZZI%E 8% ZFI%E
HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEER
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 147.9 1334
M. Kaatsch GmbH &8 M) 4
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 303.2 255.4
S| Tz (i) i)
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (iii) Equity 180.1 1334
2FF Lg()] 4o
Rematholding Co. s.r.| Romania 50% 50% Note (iv) Equity 89.3 76.6
ESED Mz (iv) 21
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (v) Equity 184.9 9.0
BRFEAAERE MizEw) 1’
905.4 694.8
Notes: MisE
(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in Kaatsch GmbHA—BFA AR E K&
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. HRHUEEDHBRE ZATRE
ERENE - NMIEEEELS
B
(ii) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (ii) Scholz Austria GmbHZA—BFAA R
market price for its shares. It is engaged in metal recycling business in B R BB AR M B T 35 IR o 52 A A
Austria. REMAIREEEEBER-
(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.Z—

no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection,
processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico.

BN A B K 2 IR 17 3 58 5 15 R
BoZARNEAFMREWE M
ThEEBEERE-

ERRFERRRAR —EBE—FFR
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RERIES IR

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) Rematholding Co. s.r.l is a private company and there is no quoted
market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection, processing and
trading of scrap metal in Romania.

(v) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

18

fEAEEEARIRE (8)

(b)

REErEZER (@

MiEE (&)

(iv) Rematholding Co. s.rlZ&—RIfA
NERERD T ERIBRE ZA
SAREERENRERE - MIEE
EREeE-

v) frEXWBEZRAGEREZ T
S AEBETREEENIFEARE
EhEEARD TRAEEEA

iR
2021 2020
—E—5F ZEITHF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ~FMEBIIEEAEGEREZ
immaterial joint ventures IREEAEEE 184.9 96.0

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: 75 B fE {5~ 4847 :

Profit for the year FEREH] 88.8 18.3
Other comprehensive loss Hith2EA51E 0.1 -
Total comprehensive income TENEHAEEE 88.9 18.3

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
joint ventures

The Group provided guarantees for borrowings of
approximately HK$53.7 million (2020: HK$38.0 million) to
certain joint ventures as at 31 December 2021 (Note 42

().

There are no other contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interests in the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {FR#EIIEAENEE (B
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MEELEZEZD @
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BETEZUMBEREE
Set out below is the summarised financial information for TXFH &HSchrott und
Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz Austria Metallhandel M. Kaatsch
GmbH, Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V. and Rematholding GmbH ~ Scholz Austria GmbH >
Co. s.rl which are accounted for using the equity method. Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V.&
In the opinion of the Directors, these joint ventures are Rematholding Co. s.rIB981 & il
material to the Group. BME HEEEmEAR-ZEER
R REAELEHAERME
BEKX-
Summarised statement of comprehensive income EEHBREREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Austria Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH GmbH S.deR.L. deCV. Rematholding Co. s.r.
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZFC-§ CZC%f TP CZC%E CEC-E CEC%E TEC-F CIIEE
HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BREn EEET  BEBn  BEEn EEEn  EEEn BEERm BEER

Revenue W& 1,555.0 8539 4,401.0 2,095 1,439.0 618.6 1,164.8 634.0
Depreciation and amortisation 17 E R (29.4) (287) (13.4) (64.7) (23) (18.0) (143) (17.6)
Interest income FEBA 07 03 - 02 17 £ - =
Interest expense HEES (5.6) (49 (10.7) 9.1) (10.6) 87 (15) (14)
Income tax FER D)/

(expense)/crecit % (16.3) (3.0) (29.9) (13.6) (44.8) 30 (14) 30
Profit for the year ERET| a7 100 1452 480 105.7 191 21 22
Other comprehensive Ati2EkE/

incomef(loss) (B8 - - 18 (13) 04 (1.1) - =
Dividends received from joint  BRAELERE

ventures 10 34 35 58 - - - -
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AR IR
18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 R ZARMNIZE (@)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MEELEZEZR @
Summarised balance sheet EEBEREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deRL deCV. Rematholding Co. s.r.|
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z¥C-f& CZCZF BT CZCZE ZEC-fF CICTF O ZEI-E 30T
HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$SM HKSM HK$M HKSM
BE8%n EEEn  BREm  BEEn  HEAT  BEET  HEART BEiRn
Current it
Cash and cash equivalents &K
Re¥EER 103 205 161.1 1916 232 254 9.9 16.1
Other current assets HEtREEE 230.7 153.0 518.0 3136 393.2 255.5 211 2137
Total current assets TBEERE 210 1735 679.1 505.2 4164 2809 2310 2298
Current financial liabilities  FE1S B &R
(excluding trade payables)  (FEHEER
EfizE (10.3) (1.1 (205.5) (255.1) (122.5) (106.5) (43.0) (57.6)
Other current liabilities =R e =L (131.6) 91.1) (319.0) (176.0) (129.9) (85.9) (45.1) 65.5)
Total current liabilities RBSEAE (141.9) (102.2) (524.5) (431.0) (252.4) (192.4) (88.1) (123.0)
Total net current assets BB EBE
Fak] 99.1 3 154.6 741 164.0 88.5 1429 106.7
Non-current (i
Total non-current assets  JEREEELE 204.3 229.0 418.8 456.8 188.2 188.3 38.7 533
Non-current financial FREEHER
liabilities (excluding trade ~ (FEHEE S
payables) Ffi2E) (1180) (1354 (1099)  (1420) (16.4) 33.0) (02) 05)
Other non-current liabilities  EM3EENEE (0.8) (0.6) (56.3) (62.8) (7.8) (1.7 (14.2) (18.7)
Total non-current liabilities  JEREI& BB (118.8) (136.0) (166.2) (204.8) (242 (44.7) (14.4) (19.2)
Net assets BEFE 184.6 164.3 407.2 326.1 328.0 232.1 167.2 140.8

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b)

18 ER#EEARNKZE (@)

REEREZ#E (B
BEEARREE (@

Summarised balance sheet (continued)

Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deRL deCV. Rematholding Co. s.r.l
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z®C-f CECEf - CTCZE CEC-f CECTE O ZEC-F CTCER
HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M
BB EB%Er BEAR EBEr  BEER  EREn  BEERm BEER
Reconciliation to carrying BREESER :
amounts:
Operating net assets —B—BHEE
asat 1 January BETE 1643 147.0 326.1 2672 2321 2268 1408 1304
Profit for the year FRia 447 10.0 145.2 18,0 105.7 19.1 21 22
Other comprehensive loss ~ Efti 2 EE 8 - - 18 (13) 04 (1.1) = B
Dividend paid EFEE (93) 4.5) (37.1) (9.1) - - - -
Currency translation EREH
differences (15.1) 118 (28.8) 213 (10.2) (12.7) (15.7) 8.2
Closing net assets BAEERE 1846 1643 4072 326/ 3280 2321 1672 1408
Group's share in % RE@ES
ERals 5% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50% 50% 50%
Group's share in HKSM ~ KEEE(S
BEER 1385 1232 257.9 206.6 164.0 116.1 83.6 704
Goodwill BE 94 102 453 438 16.1 173 57 6.2
Cosngcaryingvalue S REEE 147.9 1334 3032 2554 180.1 1334 83 766

LTHEN KRB AEREZES
EhETEHBRERFARE
REEFEEEEZFEAMBTRE
22

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the joint ventures.
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RERIES IR

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all held for
trading and include the following:

19 gﬁﬁﬁﬁAEEZEQE

BT ES ABEZ ERMEEDFF

BE BENUT:

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEHF
HK$M HK$M
BEHBT BERHBT

Unlisted equity securities JE LT AES
As at 1 January nw—A—H 0.9 1.9
Disposals HE = (1.0)
Fair value change N EES - (0.2)
Currency translation differences BB ER (0.1) 0.2
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 0.8 0.9
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BREHB RN

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 BAFEARMEEEE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ZEMEE
INCOME
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income BATEFAEMEZENREZEME
comprise equity securities of unlisted entities mainly located in EOEFEMRERAME  #TEX
Czech Republic, Slovenia, Poland and Germany. They are all held EBum EEAERNIFETERNE
as long-term strategic investments that are not expected to be AEHF ZETMEENRERATE
sold in the short to medium term and include the following: HERIANFAEHE Z REBRE SR

B BENTEIE!

2021 2020

s % =R

HKS$M HK$M

BEET BEEAT

Unlisted equity securities JELETRAES

As at 1 January w—RB—H 104.6 98.7

Additions hE 1.0 -

Disposals HE (11.6) (0.3)

Fair value change N EES 4.3 (1.1)

Currency exchange differences E =% (7.0) 7.3

As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 91.3 104.6
Upon disposal of these unlisted equity securities, any related HEZEFLTRABSR  BAF
balances with the financial assets at fair value through other Bt AHMGERENESHEENT

comprehensive income are reclassified to the retained earnings. BRI BT DR ERERF o
Dividend income of HK$5.0 million (2020: HK$2.5 million) from BHE—_E-—HF+"_B=+—AHItHF
these unlisted equity securities are recognised in “other income” B ZEELTRABSMEREW
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended AS.OEBAET (CTE2EIZEF 12588
31 December 2021 (Note 6). BT RiReEm R TE MU RS

(MFzE6) ©
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AR BRI
21 DEFERRED TAXATION 21 IRIEFRIE
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income IRIEFRSMEEMEIEFMSERAaE
tax liabilities is as follows: DU -
2021 2020
—E=Z—% ECBF
HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEBTT
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFRISINEE ©
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1218 B & U BB
after 12 months FIERRIEE B 23.2 57.1
Deferred tax assets to be recovered REF 1218 B AU B89
within 12 months TIEFRIEE B 55.7 53.3
89 1104
Deferred income tax liabilities: IRIEFTIEINEE !
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R 12E B BEEW
after 12 months RERIEE R (258.3) (304.2)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R 121E B REEEN
within 12 months R IEEE (47.5) (59.6)
,,,,,, (305.8)  (363.8)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net IRIEFRISRAEFEE (226.9) (253.4)

236 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: wmr

BREHB RN
EIERIA (48)

FEWNIELEFRMSMEERBRZE CR
st E—IRFE AR E N B ERR )

Accelerated

Deferred income tax
tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
MEERRIE
REFRSREE e Hith “Et
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT BEET
As at 1 January 2020 RZZ2ZZF—F—H 321.8 21.0 342.8
(Credited)/Charged to the RizaEnk GtA)
consolidated statement of Nz
profit or loss (36.3) 33.6 (2.7)
Credited to the consolidated RizaHEMEmEmim=
statement of other A
comprehensive income - (0.2) (0.2)
Currency translation differences PERZE%E 20.8 3.1 23.9
As at 31 December 2020 RIZ2ZZ2F+TAH
=+—H 306.3 57.5 363.8
Credited to the consolidated RizEEERFTA
statement of profit
or loss (22.3) (14.4) (36.7)
Currency translation differences BE 7 =48 (19.6) (1.7) (21.3)
As at 31 December 2021 RWZE_—%+_H
=+—H 264.4 41.4 305.8
HABRERARAT —B-—45% 237
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=
AR IR
21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 IRIEFRIE (48)
Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation  Provisions  inventories Others Total
R FER
BEFEHREE MBS & BE BEEN Hitr st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEAT BEET BEET BEET BEET
As at 1 January 2020 RZE_ZE-HF—H (50.0) (14.7) (1. (3.5 (30.0) (109.3)
Charged/(Credited) to the ReEEBaERIR/
consolidated statement GON
of profit or loss 36.0 5.8 (9.0) 0.4 (27.0) 6.2
Credited to the consolidated REGEMZEWER
statement of other A
comprehensive income - - - - (0.4) 0.4
Currency translation differences ~ ERZE 22 02) 12) - (33) 6.9
As at 31 December 2020 RIZZZF+ZAE
=+-A (16.2) 9.1) 213) (3.1) (60.7) (110.4)
Charged/(Credited) to the RireEERNR/
consolidated statement GtA)
of profit or loss 16.5 0.2 9.2 1.5 (10.1) 17.3
Charged to the consolidated REaEM2ENER
statement of other 0k
comprehensive income - - - - 3.7 3.7
Transfer to assets held for sale BERHEEE
(Note 24) (Mizx24) - - - - 6.4 6.4
Currency translation differences ~ ERZE (0.3) (0.3) - - 4.7 4.1
As at 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F+ZAH
=+-H - (9.2) (12.1) (1.6) (56.0) (78.9)

The Company controls the dividend policy of its subsidiaries and

the Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained

earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax
liabilities of HK$237.8 million (2020: HK$126.9 million) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes

that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings amounted to HK$1,069.0

million (2020: HK$634.4 million) as at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B REIREME
DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 EERIA (B)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried KRB EEE 2 MIBEIEESR
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax FiT 3%&,@%"@@%@%@1@&5%
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did EEEBHBZEENEMNERES
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$409.0 million R o REE T MR iR IER5151,869.88
(2020: HK$510.8 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to BAT (ZTEEF :12,2983788%E
HK$1,869.8 million (2020: HK$2,298.3 million). Unrecognised 7T) BB IRIE S I B E409.0B BB T
tax losses of HK$1,657.6 million (2020: HK$1,913.5 million) have (ZEZZF :510.8AEBT)  KE
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expire at various RIRIEER1,657.688 BT (CEE
dates up to and including 2028 (2020: 2025). F11,913588%8m uEERBH
MR TREBEBEEBENR _Z-N\E (CE
“E2EICECHRS) (BEES H2
Al 2 R[E H & o
INVENTORIES 22 #8
2021 2020
—E-—f BT
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Raw materials [RA#E 190.1 339.3
Finished goods B pY 1,377.7 830.0
1,567.8 1,169.3

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$17,590.9 million (2020: HK$10,174.7
million), which included a net provision for impairments on
inventory of HK$31.3 million (2020: HK$18.5 million) (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged inventories with
a net book value of HK$1,065.3 million (2020: HK$837.4 million)
to secure certain borrowings and general facilities to the Group
(Note 35).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, inventories with a net
book value of HK$31.3 million were transferred to assets held for
sale (Note 24).

BRARIZ W ABEREANEFEE
AKAE17,59095 8B (CEEHF .
10,1747 88T SEEERER
HEFBEIIEEET (2T EF .
18.5EE BT (fisk8) o

RoEsE-—#+-"A=+—H  &x&
EAREFEA1,0653F8 8T (T2
TEF 837488 ZERFEE
5 LUERAEEERNE TERK
—MRRE (FYEE35) ©

RBE_E_FE+_A=+—HI1t
FEREFERI IEBAETNES
BERFEHEEE (F5324) ©
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RERIES IR

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23 B -EERHE

fthFE U TR IE

2021 2020
—B_—% —ETEH
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Trade receivables B 5 EINRIE 1,827.1 1,336.6
Less: loss allowance B EIEEE (55.4) (50.0)
Trade receivables, net B EWRIEFEE 1.771.7 1,286.6
Bills receivables FE W 2= 5% 3.2 15.4
Deposits and prepayments & &AM RIE 191.2 165.8
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials FEERMEZ B4#%E 49.4 40.6
VAT recoverable AR [EIIEET 128.2 99.4
Other receivables (Note) HpEahig (st 98.0 105.4
2,241.7 1,713.2

Less: non-current portion o IERENER D
Other deposits and receivables Hitiz s & EWRRIE (14.8) (4.2)
2,226.9 1,709.0

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the balance includes a receivable of HK$46.7
million (2020: HK$45.2 million) from the Taizhou Bay Committee, a
government authority in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged trade
receivables with a net book value of HK$1,448.7 million (2020:
HK$1,277.9 million) to secure certain borrowings and general
banking facilities to the Group (Note 35).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, trade and other
receivable with a net book value of HK$28.7 million were
transferred to assets held for sale (Note 24).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR
23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B5 -EERHEMERKRIE
(continued) =)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the
gross trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

RIE I —FE_E-_ZTF+_H
—t+—H BESERWRIBEELREE

BEAREREC AR T ¢
2021 2020
—B_—F —ETEH
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 1,729.3 1,230.7
91 — 180 days 912 180H 28.0 41.7
Over 180 days BiB180H 69.8 64.2
1,827.1 1,336.6

(a) Fair values of trade receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,

their carrying amount is considered to approximate their

fair values.

() EBZEBWHRELATE
B AR EN FEWGRRIE R SR A B
HIEEERESBEQATEM
o
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RERIES IR

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23
(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure

The Group measures the expected credit losses on the
trade and bills receivables by grouping them based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The Group has divided the trade and bills receivables into
three groups shared with similar credit risk characteristics
based on geographical locations which are Asia, Europe
and North America. The expected loss rates are estimated
based on the historical credit losses experienced, adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of forward-looking
economic conditions. On that basis, the loss allowances
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were determined as

B 5« RiE R H thEUTRIE

(ll‘g

(b)

)
B e R B A 4
FEERBEHEEERRTER
AR BB 5 K B R WEIE
WIERREEEIBET D ME 2
AEEDRBEMN BUNKIEE
A IR (U B i B 5 S IR R UL
MED R EBARLUEERREH
=4 TEREEXRETEES
BB A B 51 M A A B M e Bk
Y £E FE S0 KL HA RS 2 O AR
IR R AR U0 s s [ i B 1 AR IR
MRBZEE -REIBILEE
SR -ERIEISFETCA
=T —HAEBEREETNT

follows:
Gross carrying
amount
Expected - trade and bills Loss
credit loss rate receivables allowances
BERTEE
RHEE —-BoRER
ESiEE FEUk A ESiERE
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT
As at 31 December 2021 RNZE-—F+°H8
=+—H
Active accounts TEEBRRP
Current BIEA 0.7% 1,274.0 9.0
Past due 1 - 30 days BEAE30K 3.6% 299.7 10.6
Past due 31 - 90 days BEA31E90K 2.5% 110.5 2.7
Past due over 90 days BERBEI0K 13.0% 126.2 16.4
Terminated accounts KIEERA 100% 16.7 16.7
Total #azt 1,827.1 55.4
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BREHB RN

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B5 - EBRKRHMEKRIE
(continued) =)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) AERREEE (@)
Gross carrying
amount
Expected — trade and bills
credit loss rate receivables Loss allowances
BEREE
—BAREE
BEEERIBE e FRIE agite ]
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+ZAH
=+—H
Active accounts THERRR P
Current BIHR 0.4% 918.9 32
Past due 1 - 30 days BRI E30K 3.4% 240.0 8.2
Past due 31 - 90 days BEA31 90K 3.2% 70.2 22
Past due over 90 days B HRBIB0K 17.3% 104.6 18.1
Terminated accounts KIFERE 100% 18.3 18.3
Total #act 1,352.0 50.0

Loss allowances on terminated accounts are mostly from

the Asia region and majority of the loss allowances on

active accounts are from the Europe and North America

regions.

Movements on the Group’s loss allowance of trade

RIEBRAREIEREBEAREDRE
DM > IR ERAR P AR R

=]
oo ©

1 K B0 3 3R B BN A J6 550 3th

FERE SRR BIREE

receivables are as follows: ZEHBERWOT
2021 2020
—E—fF e S
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
As at 1 January w—B—H 50.0 39.9
Increase in loss allowance recognised & HEa23BYJES 18 55 5 18 0 8.3 10.0

Receivables written off during FAMEEER R E 2

the year as uncollectable fEU TR I8 (0.1) (2.8)
Currency translation differences BER =4E (2.8) 2.9
As at 31 December R+=H =4 =l 55.4 50.0

ERIRREEFRAR
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RERIES IR

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23
(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, provision for impairments
on other receivables and prepayments amounted to
approximately HK$18.8 million (2020: HK$9.9 million).

The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables, net
of provision, are denominated in the following currencies:

B 5« RiE R H thEUTRIE

(ll‘g

(b)

)

AR B P AIE (48)

A B —F+_H=1+—8"
EHANE W B K TR s I8 R E
HBANISSEREBT (ZEE
FI99EEBRTT

B85 RERHEMEURERNH
MEBRTFAEESEREBEE &
EEIESE E AT REE
fRe

FEHZ B S EURIA (0bRE
#) ZBREED U TGS HE:

2021 2020

T & “EIEF

HK$M HK$M

BEATT BEBTT

RMB AR 85.0 95.6
EUR Bt 1,273.5 869.6
us$ E7T 265.1 225.4
Other currencies HEME 148.1 96.0
1,771.7 1,286.6

The carrying amounts of the Group's other receivables are
mainly denominated in RMB, EUR, US$ and Polish Zloty
("PLN") (2020: RMB, EUR and US$) as at 31 December
2021.
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AR B REIREME
24 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24 FHEHEEE
2021 2020
& —EEEF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEERAETT
Property, plant and equipment (Note (i) MR B R (MIEEG) 90.5 168.2
Right-of-use assets (Note (ii)) FREEE GIsEi) 59.2 62.0
Investment properties (Note (ii) wEYE FEEG)) 17.3 19.8
Disposal yards in US (Note (iii)) HEER TS (i) - 1.0
Disposal yards in Europe (Note (iii)) HERUN T35 (B s£ii) - 14.3
167.0 265.3
Representing: ¥5 !
Assets held for sale FIEHEEE 167.0 428.7
Liabilities directly associated with assets held BAF5{EHHEE EEZAREHN
for sale =K - (163.4)
167.0 265.3
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AR SIS IR
24 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 24 FHIEHEEE (@)
Movements on the Group’s assets and liabilities held for sales are AEBRRELEEERABZEDE
as follows: T
2021 2020
s % —EIEHF
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEETT
As at 1 January w—RB—H 265.3 -
Transfers from: #y .
— Property, plant and equipment, e/ EN N E TR
net of impairments (Note 14) MRE (ME14) 83.0 207.9
- Right-of-use assets, —fERREE NRRE
net of impairments (Note 15) (FF5E15) 26.0 126.7
— Deferred income tax assets —IREFRSMEE
(Note 21) (MF5E21) 6.4 -
— Investment properties (Note 16) —EREYE (Hsx16) - 19.0
— Inventories (Note 22) —FE (Mi5E22) = 31.3
— Trade and other receivables (Note 23) —BEREMERRIE
(M$5%23) - 28.7
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) —RERAEEEIER
(MyzE26) - 1.7
— Borrowings (Note 30) — &k (15E30) - (8.5)
— Lease liabilities (Note 31) —MAEaE (HsE31) (33.2) (97.7)
— Trade and other payables (Note 33) —BEREMEMRIE
(M95E33) - (51.0)
Disposals HE (181.0) -
Currency translation differences bE 2 =28 0.5 7.2
167.0 265.3
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BREHB RN

24 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 24 FHIEHESE 8)

Notes: PEE
(i) The balance represented certain land, building, plant and equipment located (i) HERIEREFENRATI 4AEBET (&
in Asia and Europe with a net book value of HK$71.4 million (2020: HK$70.9 TTRE 70988 BT K19 1EEET
million) and HK$19.1 million (2020: HK$97.3 million), respectively. (2225 197388 B VRN
R BUMBOE T L3 BT R R R o
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of certain RBE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HLLHF
land, building, plant and equipment located in Asia and Europe with a net B> AEESHE MR EMNREBUNNE T
book value of HK$2.1 million and HK$82.6 million respectively (2020: Nil). The THEF BRERSE REFED D
Group is actively looking for potential buyers for the remaining property, plant BZ2IEEATKS26EEBT (ZEE
and equipment which are held for sales in the market. F ) AEREAMFIEEEZEGRTY
X -BERREBEBSHHIS LNETE
xo
(i) The balance represented certain leased lands and investment properties with (i) HEERIEIREFED R A9 2BEE T (T

(iii)

(iv)

a net book value of HK$59.2 million (2020: HK$62.0 million) and HK$17.3
million (2020: HK$19.8 million), respectively, located in Asia.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of certain
leased lands and investment properties located in Asia with a net book value
of HK$4.8 million and HK$3.0 million respectively (2020: Nil). The Group is
actively looking for potential buyers for the remaining right-of-use assets and
investment properties which are held for sales in the market.

The balance represented the assets and liabilities related to certain yards
located in the US and in Europe. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group further reclassified certain yards located in the US as assets and
liabilities held for sale and all these yards had been disposed of.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised a gain an
disposals of assets held for sales of HK$113.1 million (2020: Nil) in “other
gain/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 7).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised impairments
on assets held for sale of HK$91.3 million in “impairments on non-financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 7).

As at 31 December 2020, an investment property which was classified as
assets held for sale with a net book value of HK$3.0 million was pledged to
secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities to the Group (Note
35).

(iii)

(iv)

ERIRREEFRAR

TF 62088 R73EEETT
(ZEZZHF 0 19.88 8 BT AN
WETHE T REEYE-

RBE_Z_—F+_-_R=+HLFE"
FEBBHEURTENNETHEL MK
REVE REFEDHRISEEBTRK
30EBET (CEZF I H) AEHE
ERFEREZH T ERAEEERKREY
ERBSHHIH LEREEER

EERERUN EBEREUNNE T I5ERM
NEEKRBEBE - RBE_Z-_—F+°8
=THILEFE AEBE-DRUREE
NEFIRERDEARFHEEERE
& BFfEZETHEEH-

BE_BE_—F+-A=+—HLEE>
FERRGREBEER Hitls / (518)
P PHERHERFHEEERE1131
BEET(CEIERE 8 (F&=7) -

HE_Z-_EHF+_A=+—HILEEE"
AEARGEERRFFEREERE] R

REEHEEERBEI 3EE BT (M
5t7) °

RIZTEF+-A=+—H> REFE
AIVEBBTHBARFHEEENS
EYECERE > UAREBERE TE
BR—MRTRE (f{z35) °
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RERIES IR

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 TEEMTA
2021 2020
—EZ—% —ETER
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Derivative financial assets TEERMEE
Hedging derivatives — metal commodities  #HHTE T E—BE &
future contracts (Note (i)) HEa4 (i) 29.2 -
Trading derivatives — metal commodities RENMETE-—=BE®
future contracts (Note (ii) BE &4 (MIEE)) - 9.9
Trading derivatives — foreign currency RHTETB—IMNE=ER
forward contracts (Note (iii)) &4 (M%) 1.9 4.4
31.1 14.3
Derivative financial liabilities TTEEmas
Hedging derivatives — metal commodities ¥ HHTETE—BE &
future contracts (Note (i) HE&H (i) (34.1) -
Trading derivatives — metal commodities RENMETE-—=BEM®
future contracts (Note (ii) BRAE &4 (MI5E)) - (59.4)
Trading derivatives — foreign currency RRITETIB—INEEE
forward contracts (Note (iii)) B4 (T EI)) (5.3) (0.3)
(39.4) (59.7)

Notes:

(i) Hedging derivatives - metal commodities future contracts

The Group enters into copper and other metal future contracts in order

to manage its exposure to the price risk of inventories. All these metal
commodities future contracts are designated as hedges of the fair values of
the commodities held by the Group (fair value hedges). These contracts are

actively traded in an active market and are measured at fair values based

on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain or loss recognised directly in
consolidated statement of profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair
value of the hedged commodities that are attributable to the hedged risk.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding metal commodities future
contracts was approximately HK$1,666.5 million as at 31 December 2021.
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BREHB RN

gs= = ==
25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 TTEERMTIA @)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) MisE @ (48)

(i) Hedging derivatives — metal commodities future contracts (continued) (i) HATETA-sEBERBEESH (@
The following table contains details of the hedging instrument used in the TREEVR_BI—F+A=+—8%K
Group's hedging strategy as at 31 December 2021: EEE PRI ANE AT EFS

Carrying Hedging
amount of gain Hedge
hedging adjusted  ineffectiveness
instrument, against recognised in
Term net inventories profit or loss
HHTA REEREN BT
FH AREFE Eapill 6 EapuiP S E
As at 31 December 2021 HK$M HK$M HK$M
WZE-—-%+-A=+—H BERET BEET BEET
Fair value hedges NEEHA 3 months (4.9) 4.6 =
=R
The following table contains details of the hedged items under the Group's TREENR_B—F+A=+—8=%K
hedging strategy as at 31 December 2021: EEEPERIE TR EHAIEEFIE
2021
HK$SM
BREAT
Carrying amount of the hedged item EHHIER ZREE
Accumulated amount of fair value hedge adjustments EHAHPEEATFEHTREN RS
on the hedged item included in the carrying amount of (T AR HIEE REE)
the hedged item 4.6
Net carrying amount of the hedged item included in STATFENER FIEEREFE
the inventories as recognised in the consolidated (RizEBEESEBERPER)
balance sheet 726.4
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RERIES IR

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(i) Trading derivatives - metal commodities future contracts

The Group only applied hedge accounting starting 1 January 2021. All
the metal commodities future contracts were not designated as hedging
instruments as at 31 December 2020. These contracts were actively traded in
an active market and were measured at fair values based on quoted price as
at reporting date. Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other gains/(losses), net’.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding metal commodities future
contracts was approximately HK$888.3 million as at 31 December 2020.

(iii)  Trading derivatives - foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss within ‘other gains/(losses), net'".

The notional principal amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts were approximately HK$332.8 million (2020: HK$621.7 million).

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$125.4 million (2020: HK$122.7 million) have
been pledged to secure bank borrowings, and are therefore
classified as current assets (Note 35).

Restricted bank deposits represent the restricted cash of HK$17.0
million (2020: Nil) placed in escrow bank accounts for the
Paycheck Protection Program in the US.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, cash and cash
equivalents of HK$1.7 million were transferred to assets held for
sales (Note 24).
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(i) XBENETR-EEERHEEEY

FEBR-E-—F—FB—HHMNERR
HAgst-FAEZERRRAESON T
TEE+ B =+ —HERRIEERE T
TR-ZEANNERTIBTRERILR
BREAMRZRERATEE ILFDT
ETRAZRATENEES RAGRES
BaRMEMEE (B518) F 5 hRER -

N TECEFF_A=+—H FxEHEE
BERPESHANREATEER4888.3
BEAET

(i) RBTEIASMNEEREY

A E BT 3L 5N S B A & A9 DURLE 51 EE =
BoZERNNREMAEAENRREE
RN FEFE BB EENGREE
mRIEMRE (8518) BHIFHET

REHIBERBEEANAEARSENS
3328EEAET(CTITF 6217888

7o) °

BIEHIR1TENR  ZPRHIER
TEARRAERREEEE
=
BIRFIRTERIEABITIREUA R
EEERN—RIBTEEFEERNE
Mo ERI25458E T (CEZF .
122,788 E7T) BIRFERITHERN

ER RS EARSHEE
35) ¢

SRARITERIEEAEZERHFERE
FEERTERPONZRHES
170888 (CEZF |\ o
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BREHB RN

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 26 BIERIBITEN  ZIRHIR

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

B (@)

TERRREERREEFEE

RERFEEFERERRIBER=
88 LT BIIRE KRB HRIRIT R

2021 2020
—B_—% -

HKS$M HK$M

BEET BEET

Cash at bank and on hands RITRFHERE 777.7 905.5

Security deposit (Note) ReEE (WD) 4.6 8.3
Total cash and cash equivalents as per FeReRERZRER

consolidated statement of cash flows HEeEEBEHEE 782.3 913.8

Note: The balance represents deposits placed with financial institutions as security P5E
for open metal commodity future contracts. The security deposits are non-

interest bearing.

ERIEFATRBBEAREHEEBR M
BESHNERNEE -RESABTHR

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BRZ
Authorised share capital EE RS
Numbers
of shares Share capital
A& E fig 7
(Thousands) HK$M
(F52) BEATT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as at A ZEZBF—A—B-
1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, “E2EF+ZA=+—A>
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 “E—-F—-A—-HK
=== {5 Al HEd
SREE0.01ETZEBER 5,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid ERITRERE
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-E_ZEHF—HF—Q-
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 TBEIEE+HA=+—H"
ZEZ—E—E—E&
T —F+ZRA=t—H 1,605,152 16.1

ERIRREEFRAR
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RERIES IR

28 OTHER RESERVES

28 HthfzkE

Foreign
Capital Statutory Enterprise  Remeasurement ~ Remeasurement currency
Share redemption Capital general expansion on financial of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve fund assets plans reserve Total
) ) Efiit8 EfiE )
RiER  RAREHE Ratih  EE-REE  CEIRES EHEE Bl NRERGER @t
HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM HKM HK$M HKSM HKSM HKM
BE%R BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
(Note {i) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(H3) eI (H3))
Asat 1 January 2020 RZ2Z%5-F-8 59119 03 2109 107.1 107.1 (6.1) (6.1) 2898 6,6149
Currency translation differences on  ESNEBZ EREB
foreign operations - - - - - - - 3874 3874
Change n fair value of RATEFARMEEREZ
financial assets at fai value SHEEZATERD
through other comprehensive MeHE
income, net of tax - - - - - (09) - - (09
Remeasurement of post-employment  E:tEESLFRHHZ
benefit obligations, net of tax BHEE NBRE - - - - - - (08 - (08)
Share of other comprehensive loss of EfE&ER% 2 E2EHE
joint ventures - - - - - - (13 - (13)
Deregistration of  subsidiary HHEFAT - - 105 - - - - - 105
As at 31 December 2020 RIEZEE+ZR=+-H 59119 03 04 1071 1071 (1.0 82) 677.2 7,09.8
Asat 1 January 2021 RZ®Z-5-F-8 59119 03 m4 107.1 107.1 (7.0) (8.2) 677.2 7,009.8
Currency translation differences BB ZERER
on foreign operations - - - - - - - (315.7) (315.7)
Change n fair value of BATEFARMEEREZ
financial assets at fai value tHEEZATEEY
through other comprehensive M
income, net of tax - - - - - 31 - - 31
Remeasurement of post-employment EX 3t BEEERRHKE
benefit obligations, net of tax BHEE NHRE - - - - - - 55 - 55
Share of other comprehensive loss of & E A2 2 EM2 AR
joint ventures - - - - - - 14 - 14
As at 31 December 2021 RZBZ-£+2AZ+-A 59119 03 n4 1071 1071 (39 (13) 3615 6,704.1
Notes: PEE
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BAEEIEQFIRABN ST \FERE
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries AP FARRA KRR M HEEBE L
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the EEEAA B R EFTEITRM 2 EE
nominal value of the Company’'s shares issued in exchange and (b) a NEBERDOD _-Z—ZFENERRERZ
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. 4R o
(i) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the (i) RABHREFRABNEBERMANRE

appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.
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BREHB RN

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

30

29

FEIER

Share of net liabilities of
subsidiaries

Bl FARERFE

2021 2020
T —fF 2R
HK$M HK$M
BEHBT BEEAT
As at 1 January w—B—H (13.4) (10.3)
Transactions with non-controlling interests B2 JEIERR TR EITT 25 6.6 10.9
Share of loss for the year, net FREGEEREE (10.0) (16.1)
Share of other comprehensive income, net &5 ELfth 2 [ UK &5 28 2.4 2.1
As at 31 December R+-B=+—H (14.4) (13.4)
BORROWINGS 30 f&FK
2021 2020
T —F TEITE
HK$M HK$M
BHEST BEERAT
Non-current JETRED
Bank borrowings IRITE™R 50.8 178.3
Current RE
Bank borrowings IRITER 493.9 604.8
Other borrowings HihEmR 1,117.2 1)515.3
1,611.1 2,120,
Total borrowings fETRAE%E 1,661.9 2,298.4

ERIRREEFRAR
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RERIES IR

30 BORROWINGS (continued) 30 &k (&)

RTERNRAREBIE EE T
TREALE(CEZEF: ZE A
F)  FHEREFENF0.9%E8.0%
(CEZZF FFZFEI0%ETS5%) ©

Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2026 (2020:
2029) and bear average coupons ranging from 0.9% to 8.0% per
annum (2020: 1.0% to 7.5% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s bank and other A BRI FRIZEZIEF+TZA
=+ B> AEERTREMMERZ
BRIERIOT

borrowings were repayable as follows:

Bank borrowings Other borrowings Total

BITER Hitifig R st
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEZ-& CZZTZ%fF - ZEITE ZFZ-& CZTI%H
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT EBBEr BEEx BEBEn  BEBERT BEERD
Within 1 year —FR 493.9 604.8 1,117.2 1,515.3 1,611.1 2,120.1
Between 1 and 2 years —EmF 13,5 147 4 - - 13.5 147 4
Between 2 and 5 years MERF 373 284 - - 37.3 28.4
Over 5 years RENE - 2.5 - - - 2.5
50.8 178.3 - - 50.8 178.3
544.7 783.1 1,117.2 1,515.3 1,661.9 2,298.4

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are RITREMERZREBAILUTINE

denominated in the following currencies: HESHE
2021 2020
—E_—& TECEE
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BBET
EUR Bl7T 111.2 253.9
Us$ ETT 1,222.2 1,746.9
RMB AR 126.5 164.6
Czech Koruna (“CzK") Rl (ERRE) 174.9 122.3
PLN LR 27.1 10.7
1,661.9 2,298.4
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30 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had aggregate facilities of
approximately HK$4,067.2 million (2020: HK$5,182.4 million)
for loans, factoring and guarantees. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$818.3 million (2020:
HK$1,604.1 million) which were uncommitted facilities. These
facilities are secured/guaranteed by certain properties, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, inventories,
trade receivables, assets held for sale and bank deposits with an
aggregate amount of HK$4,330.7 million (2020: HK$4,337.0
million) (Note 35).

Included in other borrowings was a Syndicated Term Loan
drawn down in 2018 with a balance of US$140.0 million as at
31 December 2021. The loan matured on 3 January 2022 and
its maturity date has been further extended to March 2023
subsequent to the year-end, with some terms, amongst collaterals
and interest rate, were revised (Note 2.1.1).

As at 31 December 2021, current bank borrowings of HK$175.2
million could not meet certain restrictive financial undertakings
and might be immediately repayable should the relevant bank
exercise their right of demand. Subsequent to year-end, the
Group has obtained waiver letters from relevant banks confirming
that such non-compliance would not trigger their immediate
demand for repayment of these loan balances.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, borrowings of HK$8.5
million were transferred to liabilities directly associated with assets
held for sale (Note 24).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values.

BREHB RN

30 f&=R (&)

A B —FE+"A=Z+—H K&
EmER RERERZEEMHRE
HWAL0672EEBT (CE2EF
5182458 ET) -FHARBHEE
HWAHSI8IEEBT(ZE_ZTHF .
1,604 188 BT HARKHEEE-
ZEEETTHETYE BMERRE
FREEE REYE - FE B3
BB - FIEREBERIETER
R4, 330.7TEE BT (CEEF
4,337.05 887 (EIRE R (s
35) ¢

A —F+_HA=+—HZHEM
%#@%é:%—AE%WMﬁ@E
HER HEREA14008EET &
éiﬁh_g::i—ﬁ:aﬂ%&
HIHBEE P LEBREFERE T
Z=F=F> EPRBAER (BIEEFT
FR R A EE) BAREET (M35E2.1.1) ©

R_B_—F+_RA=+—H
RITERI7S2EEBTEEREST
PR Il 14 4 %5 7K 56 B T AR ABRA SR 1T 1T
EERNEREBERFAMNFERZ -1
FR AEECERMERRITHES
FER EWE%TAﬁﬁﬁTﬁﬁﬁ
HENRZEREBEZ T EMMEERo

RBEE_EZ_EF+_A=+—HL
FE ERSSABETHEA M N
EBEEEEAEMNERE ([H5E24) -

ERIREERE AT ERE

FABRREMERAT "B-—FFR
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RERIES IR

31 LEASE LIABILITIES 31

The Group leases various land and land use rights, property,
plant and equipment (Note 15). Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 62 years but may have extension
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group's lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

HEEE

rEBRAERA LR T MERE-
M B fs Rt (HT5E15) - HE XY
BEIJE-ERT_ENEEMHR
VB B] B A L BRI A o M B IR RUR(E
MEEETER 32 ETRRK
TR A o 7 B 19 5% 3 4 I 0 A ) 22

ik

hHeo

TRIRAEBHEEGER T —
FERIBE-FFE+_B=Z+—HZEH
TENEIERIBR

2021 2020
T —fF —Z2TERF
HKS$M HK$M
BEEAT BEEAT
Gross lease liabilities HEaEMLE
— minimum lease payments —REREMR
No later than 1 year TR —5 186.6 221.9
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ER—EBTNERAE 173.5 322.9
Later than 5 years BRAF 51.4 59.5
411.5 604.3
Future finance charges on leases HENRKMESH (44.3) (59.8)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaENRE 367.2 544.5
The present value of lease HEAENREWNT :
liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year TEBR—%F 177.1 202.2
Later than 1 year BR—F 190.1 3423
367.2 544.5
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AR B REIREME

31 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 31 HEARE @)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities of HK$18.6 million (2020: HEaGZMEMZI1s6EEET
HK$29.7 million) was charged to finance cost for the year ended ZTRF 29788 ET) BAAAEE
31 December 2021 (Note 10). E—F+ZHA=+—HIFEZ

R (MI5E10) ©

The total cash outflow for leases was HK$226.1 million (2020: BEZE-—+"B=+—HItHF
HK$283.0 million) for the year ended 31 December 2021. EZHERESRHEEA226158E

TT(CE-ZH :283.0HBETT) °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of REBE_ZE-_—F+"“HA=+—H1t
HK$33.2 million (2020: HK$97.7 million) were transferred to FE - HEEaE33 2888t (T2
liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale (Note 24). TEI977EE BT BARBIELE

BEEERBRNEE (524) -

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 32 RUkEFEE
The table below outlines where the Group's post-employment TR ANEFEFAGZEMBTRERZ
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial BEAERBBEZ EERET -
statements.
2021 2020
& ZEITE
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET

Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: 425 B ESBERMLUT

RBEZEFE:

Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) REBHTE FfsEb)) 18.9 29.7
Consolidated statement of profit or loss FEBmRMUT

charges included in operating profit for: FIEGFTALE RA 22 !

Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) REMPRETE (HF5E@)) (71.9) (65.7)

Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FEBFIFTE FzEb)) (0.4) (0.5)

(72.3) (66.2)

Remeasurements for: MU TRIEBEZEMFE .

Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) RERATE (FT5EDb)) 8.0 G2)
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RERIES IR

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(@) Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a couple of defined contribution plans
which receive fixed contributions from group companies.
The Group's legal or constructive obligation for these plans
is limited to the contributions. The expense recognised
in the current year in relation to these contributions was
HK$71.9 million (2020: HK$65.7 million).

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Group operates several defined benefit pension plans
for selected former and active employees of the Group's
certain subsidiaries in Germany. The plans provide benefits
in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for
life. The plans are mostly financed by the Group’s internal
resources. A part of the plans is covered by plans assets in
the form of reinsurance policies.

The Group's major plans are valued by qualified actuaries
annually using the projected unit credit method. The
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are

(a) ﬁmf,\ﬂ\rd'gll

SEEREZEREHANE
HEEBADWEEEIR &
EEMZSHE ZACNERT
EEURRAR AEEFZSE
HRER AT A7I0OBB BT
(CEZEFSTEEBTT °

(b) FREEFIFE

FEERAERRERNETF
NS E’\Jﬁ‘“%EHUE&TEEEL
FETRERMBAEEE -
%%%‘H%ﬁ%ﬁf%ﬁ%Z%%%%%%
R ZEFEABOHEER
RNEPE R E - M F 5t 818D
MU BRERETL AN EE
(=X

FEFEZETBHEEFRTER
BEHEMERBEREULRAR
BE-REaEEEBRAERZ

determined as follows: SREIEUTNARETE -
2021 2020
—EZ—%F ECBF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEEBTT
Present value of funded obligations B@EMEENIREE 12.1 16.6
Present value of unfunded obligations E B EERIRE 14.1 20.3
Fair value of plan assets HEIEEMATE (7.3) (7.2)

Liabilities in the consolidated balance 4FEEEEBEXRNE

sheet 18.9 29.7
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 32 BRAREFEE @)

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REEFEE @
The movement in the present values of defined benefit FARERNEENIREHAZ
obligations and fair value of plan assets over the year is as BENATFEZBHNOT -
follows:
2021
—ET-fF
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERH HEIEEN
BEREMRE ATE 4t
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEAT BEAT
As at 1 January K—B—H 36.9 (7.2) 29.7
Current service cost SBHRBMAE 0.4 - 0.4
Interest expense FEHZ 0.1 - 0.1
Interest income FIEWA - (0.2) (0.2)
37.4 (7.4) 30.0
Remeasurements: BiTEHE !
Effects from change in EREEHNTE
discount rates (1.0) - (1.0)
Effect from other experienced HitngE B AN 2
based adjustments (6.9) - (6.9)
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ StE|EEMNER: FLE
amounts included in interest AR BRMANEEE
income - (0.1) (0.1)
(7.9) (0.1) (8.0)
Currency translation EREHR
differences (2.0) 0.5 (1.5)
Contributions s
- Employers —EF - (0.3) (0.3)
Payments from plans: SIS
- Benefit payments —RBAIIH (1.3) = (1.3)
As at 31 December K+=R=+—~H 26.2 (7.3) 18.9
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 32 EAREFEE (@)

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) RERFE @)
2020
“ZT2F
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERT HEEEMN
BEANRE NFE fast
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEHET BEET
As at 1 January K—B—H 335 (6.2) 273
Current service cost SHRB A 0.5 - 05
Interest expense FEHEZ 0.2 - 0.2
Interest income FIEWA - 0.1) 0.1)
34.2 (6.3) 27.9
Remeasurements: BiEHE
Effects from change in financial BB RBREFNTE
assumptions 1.2 - 1.2
Effect from change in AOBRRETHNTE
demographic assumptions 0.1 - 0.1
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ stEIEEMNEIR > FE1E
amounts included in interest FAFEMANEEE
income - 0.1) (0.1)
1.3 (0.1) 1.2
Currency translation EREHE
differences 2.6 (0.5) 2.1
Contributions s
- Employers —EF (0.3) - (0.3)
Payments from plans: HEITR
— Benefit payments — @AM (0.9 (0.3) 1.2)
As at 31 December ®+=ZA=+—-H 36.9 (7.2) 29.7
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

32

(b)

BREHB RN

BIAEFIEE ()

REBFEE (B
FIRBMNEERERRNOT

2021 2020

T —F TEITE

HK$M HK$M

BEHBT BEEAT

Discount rate AEIR = 0.70% 0.38%
Future pension increase rate RAGRAREIE ML 1% - 2% 1% — 2%
Future salary increase rate FRERMFLLE - 0% - 3%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in
the weighted principal assumptions is:

RERHFEHMETEZRRE
B BRENT

Impact on defined benefit liabilities

HATRHNEANRE
2021 2020
“E- & a3

Change in Increase in Decrease in  Changein  Increase in  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption
meees  R|EM  BRAEL  BREH 0 RRED G&RED
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BRAT HEAT BEAT BEAER
Discount rate BhIRE 0.50% decrease increase 0.50% decrease increase
by 1.5 by 1.6 by 2.3 by 2.5
1.5 18m1.6 w23 1B1n2.5
Pension increase rate  BIREIZMELE 0.25% increase  decrease 0.25% increase decrease
by 0.7 by 0.7 by 1.1 by 1.1
#hoe.7 0.7 w1 R

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated balance sheet.

TR
A

BRMAEEFRAHR

FREREDHTHER —BRR
HIREB M A E M RERAER
BoBR L BEARAIEHE B
ETERRNEHIETHRE
SAEAERMEEHERNFER
RZBRER > CERBEAELRS
EESEREEIZERNREE
EHRRZ 75 7%  BNATRH BB AL 50
RASHER ISR Z R EREF
BERE

TR —FER
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B HREIREH
33 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33 B5 RERHMEMGRIE
2021 2020
T —F “EBECBF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT ENE
Trade payables B EMRIE 1,801.3 1,377.2
Contract liabilities (Note (i) BHEMRE (EI) 40.0 18.1
Other taxes payable HihfELRIE 53.8 49.0
Accrued salaries and employee benefits EstF S REEREF 164.6 125.9
Provision for claims and contingencies RERNAEIEERE 3.4 12.1
Accrued professional expenses FESH R 31.2 20.6
Asset retirement obligations BERESE 69.5 79.7
Other payables and accruals HMENHRIEREST &R
(Note (i) (B EE(GiN)) 183.1 109.5
2,346.9 1,792.1
Less: non-current portion B IERBEE D
Asset retirement obligations EERESE (69.5) (79.7)
Other payables HAhrE A =IE (37.3) (22.9)
2,240.1 1,689.5
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BREHB RN

33 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes:
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current

E5  RiE R E MG TRIE

(ll‘g)

Fy5E -

0] e E BRI

TRATHARSHEAEINEEHS

reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. HBeEERAN W -
2021 2020
& TERITE
HK$SM HK$M
BEET BEET
Revenue recognised that was included in the BEAFYENEEEGRAN
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of B
the year 18.1 40.0
(ii) As at 31 December 2021, the balance includes a receipt in advance of (ii) RIB—HF+A=+—B EHB8E

HK$44.3 million for disposals of certain assets held for sales in the PRC.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date
was as follows:

R EI S TR 2 RS

443BBBTTe

B RMNRERBEZERAZRED

T

2021 2020

—E- % “BIEF

HK$M HK$M

BHEBT BEERAT

0 - 90 days 0£E90H 1,747.6 1,351.7
91 - 180 days 91Z180H 11.9 4.9
Over 180 days #B48180H 41.8 20.6
1,801.3 1,377.2

The carrying amounts of the trade, bills and other payables
approximate their fair values.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, trade and other
payables of HK$51.0 million were transferred to liabilities
associated with assets held for sale (Note 24).

B5BHREMETRERAEG
S

BENTERE

REBEE_ZE_TF+"A=+—HIt
FE> B REMEMNRIESN .05 8E
TEASAFEHEEERRNER (¢
££24) o
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 REREDZEMTA
Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through  comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATEHA
REHERE  BATEHA Hit2E
FIlRZEE BaZEE KEzEE o
HKSM HKSM HK$SM HKSM
BREET BEAT BEAT BEAT
31 December 2021 —E--f+-A=+-H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ AGEBEEARBRIEE
Trade, bills and other receivables B% ERREMBKTRIE
excluding non-financial assets TEEFERERE 1,877.3 - - 1,877.3
Amounts due from related parties FE W RRE A 0B 66.8 - - 66.8
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA - 31.1 - 31.1
Pledged bank deposits and BIERRTERK
restricted bank deposits ZRERITER 1424 - - 1424
Cash and cash equivalents RERELEEER 7823 - - 782.3
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABRZ
profit or loss EHEE - 0.8 - 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFAEMZAREZ
other comprehensive income EREE - - 913 91.3
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 8.9 - - 8.9
Total s 2,877.7 31.9 91.3 3,000.9
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 #HERSSZ2EMIA (@)
(continued)
Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATESA
REHERA  RATESA Hi2E
FIiRzEE BazEE WamzEE a5t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET BEET BEET
31 December 2020 ZZZEFE+ZR=1t—H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ HABEEEXRZEE
Trade, bills and other receivables B -EBREMERFIE,
excluding non-financial assets TEEFEREE 1,403.5 - - 1,403.5
Amounts due from related parties FE W RRE: 5 0B 1293 - - 1293
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA - 143 - 143
Pledged bank deposits BEMETER 122.7 - - 122.7
Cash and cash equivalents ReERELEEER 913.8 - - 913.8
Financial assets at fair value through BATEHABRZ
profit or loss EHEE - 09 - 0.9
Financial assets at fair value through BATESFAEMZARZZ
other comprehensive income SHEE - - 104.6 104.6
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 3.4 - - 3.4
Total st 2,572.7 15.2 104.6 2,692.5

ERIRREEFRAR
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

34 BENBSZEMIA (B

(continued)
Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through
amortised profit or
cost loss Total
F 18 88 pY 2 BATE
FERz  EtABEZ
Hittma®s =i st
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BE&ATT BE&ET BEET
31 December 2021 —E-_—#+ZB=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated xS EEEBBXRZEE
balance sheet
Borrowings EEN 1,661.9 - 1,661.9
Lease liabilities HEaR 367.2 - 367.2
Derivative financial instruments #T4£ &R T A - 39.4 39.4
Trade, bills and other payables, 25« ZE & Hith
excluding non-financial FE(IT RIS RELIE
liabilities FEman 1,938.9 - 1,938.9
Amounts due to related parties FE{T B H% 75 R IB 104.9 - 104.9
Total 4Bt 4,072.9 39.4 4,112.3
31 December 2020 TETEF+"H=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated #EaEEEEXRZ AR
balance sheet
Borrowings EEN 2,298.4 - 2,298.4
Lease liabilities HE&aE 544.5 - 544.5
Derivative financial instruments #T4 £/ TE - 59.7 59.7
Trade, bills and other payables, &5 « 24 & H 1t
excluding non-financial FE(TFRIE > NELIE
liabilities JEEREE 2,833.0 - 2,833.0
Amounts due to related parties  F&{J BB 75 =B 63.4 - 63.4
Total 4Bt 5,739.3 59.7 5,799.0
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35 PLEDGES OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged
the following assets to secure certain borrowings and general

36

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

35 HERHE

RESHER *EECRFUTEE
DERRTHAERZETERR—R

banking facilities granted to the Group: RITRE -
2021 2020
—g——K TEITE
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB REE 1,519.8 1,888.2
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 145.3 187.1
Investment properties KEYE 26.2 20.7
Inventories =5 1,065.3 837.4
Trade receivables B 5 EWERIE 1,448.7 1,277.9
Assets held for sale FIEHEEE - 3.0
Pledged bank deposits BIEFRITER 125.4 122.7
4,330.7 4,337.0
COMMITMENTS 36 ik
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAKIE

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, significant capital
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as

N_E_—FR_BZEF+Z
B=1+—H'EBiINEBRELZ

follows: BEABAEZOT :
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETH
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
Capital expenditure contracted for BEIAERR
but not provided in the REMBRERPEEN
consolidated financial statements BAMY
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and ~ —UXEEYI % B R ks
equipment 88.6 14.7
— additions in construction in —ANEEREIR
progress 14.4 1.8
103.0 16.3
Authorised but not contracted for: BEEEERKRTL
— additions of property, —REVE BEKREZE
plant and equipment 9.6 28]
— additions in construction in —ANEEEIR
progress 2.1 0.6

ERIRREEFRAR
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36 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

36 KiE (@)

(b)

REHERIE-(FRAEEA
R IR ERE 2 KRR IE
WEEEEMREERNT

2021 2020

—EZ—%F ECBF

HK$M HK$M

BEET BE&AT

No later than 1 year TEBR—%F 15.9 17.9
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FEEFRERASE

than 5 years 24.2 43.3

Later than 5 years BRAF 18.9 216

59.0 82.8

37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 60.95% of
the Company’s shares. The remaining 39.05% of the shares
are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate
controlling party of the Group is Mr. Tu.

(a) Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties which mainly comprises
of joint ventures, associates, Loncin International Limited,
USUMHK and their subsidiaries during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BN T)60.95% 8815 o ELFR39.05% k%
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o

(a)

ot

X

X 57
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BEEN AEBRBEE_T_—
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BREHB RN

37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) Transactions (continued)

All of the transactions were carried out in the normal
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as

follows:

37 FAMAERS @)

() =% @)

FIERZHARNEEBREERR
R 5 &7 PG ERIIRE

7> BT

2021 2020
& TEITE
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Sales of goods to MU TEHHEE R
- Joint ventures —aEhE 454.2 306.8
— Related parties — RS 92.8 85.9
Purchases of goods from TUTE L HER D
— An associate /NS (0.5) (20.0)
— Joint ventures —5E ¥ (598.5) (222.7)
— Related parties —FABA (213.3) (84.5)
Purchase of property, plant and TUTEFERBEYZE
equipment from M5 K s& 1
— A related party —FA¥ S (0.3) =
Interest income from KEUTEAZREWA
- Joint ventures —aghE 0.8 0.9
— Related parties — RS 0.8 0.9
Interest expense to TRFUTEHZHERE
— Related parties — A (0.7) (0.7)

ERIRREBERAR
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37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37 FEARS (&)
(continued)
(a) Transactions (continued) @ X5 @
2021 2020
—E- “BIEHF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEERATT
Other income from (Note (i) REBUTEF ZEMKRA
(B 5EG))
- Joint ventures —aghE 2.3 4.6
— Related parties — RS 3.9 3.9
Administrative expenses to (Note (i) I FUTEHZTEEX
(D))
— Joint ventures —agh¥ (0.1) (0.1)
— Related parties — RS (3.9) (2.7)
Notes: Mt
[0) Other income mainly comprised management fee income, rental (i) HMBAFZEEEEERA A
income, service income and commission income. FWA RFBBMATRAEUA ©
(ii) Administrative expenses mainly comprised management fee, lease (ii) THRZFEZEEEEE HER

expense and service fee.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37
(continued)

(b) Key management compensation

(0

Key management includes chairman of the Company, all
directors, chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
chief operating officer, chief investment officer and chief

trading officer. The compensations paid or payable to key

management for employee services are shown below:

BREMBIRRMNE
Rl A5 (48
(b) FEEZEEHM

EEEEOEARTIRE 2
RBES THRH BREVHBE-
EREEE BEEREBRER
HRE pitERERZMEN

HIEN T EERE RN R

o
2021 2020
—EZ—% = <= 5
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
Wages and salaries, including TERH OFEHEMRER
restructuring costs and other H#& \EHEEER
termination benefits 33.0 35.1
Pension costs — defined contribution :E{REiA—F E(HENET2E)
plans 0.1 0.1
Other employee benefits HitEEEF 0.1 0.3
Total 4a=t 33.2 35.5
Year-end balances () EFEREERR
2021 2020
T —F —E2TEF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
Receivables from: FEWML & AR .
- Joint ventures (Note (i) —&aEhE M) 56.7 100.5
— Related parties (Note (i) —RA S (REEG)) 10.1 28.8
66.8 129.3
Payables to: FEM AT & ARIE -
— Joint ventures (Note (ii)) —&E M (Fsk)) (53.8) (28.6)
— Related parties (Note (ii) —RA S (B EEG)) (51.1) (34.8)
(104.9) (63.4)

ERIRREEFRAR
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37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37 RAEARZ (@)
(continued)
() Year-end balances (continued) () 4R
Notes: B 5
(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) W EECERBEARIBECE
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable B o RWRIER M ER RIS &E
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both ZFEWFRIEZAR60H MEE » HAth
are unsecured and non-interest bearing. FEWGRIER /B ZREIR - ZMEE
RIEH R EILIR R AR o
(i) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade (ii) fEREErERMEARIBERE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 BEEARIEREMENRIE &Z
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both are unsecured SFEFRIEAR60H AEE  Hith
and non-interest bearing. FES IR B ZRE IR - ZMEE
RIEH R EILIR R AR o
38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 ERENKAER
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EZFME
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 BHEZ_ZZ—FRZIZZEHR
December 2021 and 2020 is set out below: +ZB=+—HIFEZEEH
BB :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RIKAER
Year ended 31 December 2021 e HEkEl RREA HERE HitiiRH EH
HECSZ-F+ZB=1+-HLEE HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEET BEAET
Executive directors: wirES:
Mr. Tu Jianhua RRELE - 4.0 35 - - 75
Mr. Li Linhui (Note (i) FHERE () - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mr. Miao Yu (Note (i) EREE (i) - 0.6 0.2 - - 0.8
Mr. Yao Jietian (Note (i) PRI (ki) - - - - - -
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Note (iv)) ~ Rafael Heinrich Suchan?t 4
(RizE () - 6.5 - - - 6.5
Mr. Martin Simon (Note (v)) Martin Simon%t % (fff35(v)) - 3.7 14 - = 5.1
Mr. Chen Chunguo (Note (vi)) REELE (i) - 12 - - - 12
Mr. Ding Zhiyi (Note (vii) THESBLE (i) - 0.9 - - - 0.9
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Prof. Li Zhiguo (Note (vii) FEEHIE (i) 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Dr. Loke Yu (Note (ix)) BEEMEL () 02 - - - - 0.2
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Note (x) BEERE () 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Ms. Yang Yali (Note (xi) HREmR T (fERK) 0.05 - - - - 0.05
Mr. Wang Qiwei (Note (xi)) TEHHEE (X)) 0.05 - - = = 0.05
0.7 17.0 5.1 - - 228
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38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

BREHB RN

EEEMRED (B

(@) E=EM=E @

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RER
Year ended 31 December 2020 e FehEl RREL BEE HtER st
BECE_EE+_BSt-HILEE HKSM HK$M HK§M HKSM HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEET BEET BBAT BEET BEET
Executive directors: BITEE:
Mr. Tu Jianhua RRERE - 40 28 - - 6.8
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Note iv)) ~ Rafael Heinrich Suchan?t 4
(s () - 58 30 - - 88
Mr. Martin Simon (Note (v)) Martin Simon%t 4% (fit35(v)) - 1.9 06 - - 25
Mr. Miao Yu (Note (i) EREE (H3Hi) - - - - - -
Mr. Qin Yongming (Note (xii)) ZXBEE (i 5H D) - 8.6 0.1 - 02 89
Mr. Chen Chunguo (Note (vi)) RERLE () - 03 - - - 03
Mr. Ding Zhiyi (Note (vii) TEEEE (ki) - - - - - _
Non-executive directors: FRGTEE:
Dr. Loke Yu (Note (ix)) BEEMEL (5Ex) 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Note (x)) Bkt () 02 - = = - 02
Ms. Yang Yali (Note () HREmL T (i 3RK) - - - - - _
Mr. Wang Qiwei (Note (xi)) TEERE (f5HK0) - - - - 4 a
Ms. Qian Liping (Note (xiif) BES LT (F 5 i) 03 - - = = 03
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (xiv)) SRBRE () 0.1 - N - . 01
0.9 20.6 6.5 - 0.2 282
Notes: FdsE
(i) Mr. Li Linhui was appointed as an executive director of the Company (i) EMBEEESEAEARTNIT

and the chairman of the board of director of the Company with effect
from 13 December 2021.

(ii) Mr. Miao Yu was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 29 December 2020.

(iii) Mr. Yao Jietian was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 13 December 2021.

EEhANREFEIRE B-F
——F+"A+t=BE4EN-

(ii) HREEEZERERBNTE
= B-B-FF+_HA-1+NH
LR

(i) AR ELEEBZERERTNT

B BT _—F+=-RA+=H
REER

BABREASRAT —ZE-—&&% 273



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as an executive director
and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") of the Company with effect
from 1 March 2020 and was removed as an executive director by an
ordinary resolution duly passed in the extraordinary general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company on 7 January 2022. He was also
ceased to be the CEO of the Company with effect from 7 January
2022. His emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO of the Company.

Mr. Martin Simon was appointed as an executive director and the
Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") of the Company with effect from 23
June 2020. He also acted as the CFO of one of the major operation
groups of the Group.

With effect from 14 December 2021, he resigned as an executive
director and the CFO of the Company.

His emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the CFOs.

Mr. Chen Chunguo was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 16 December 2020 and resigned with
effect from 3 March 2021.

Mr. Ding Zhiyi was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 29 December 2020 and resigned with effect from 5
March 2021.

Prof. Li Zhiguo was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 24 May 2021.

Dr. Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 6 December 2021.

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020
and resigned with effect from 29 December 2020.

He was re-appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 5 March 2021 and resigned again with
effect from 6 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xi) Ms. Yang Yali and Mr. Wang Qiwei were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors of the Company with effect from
29 December 2020 and resigned with effect from 5 March 2021.

(xii) Mr. Qin Yongming resigned as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 16 December 2020. He was also the CEO of
the Company until 1 March 2020 and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as the CEO of the
Company.

(xiii) ~ Ms. Qian Liping resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 29 December 2020.

(xiv) Mr. Zhu HongChao resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020.

(xv) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Miao Yu, Mr. Yao
Jietian, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan, Mr. Chen Chunguo and
Mr. Ding Zhiyi in the amount of HK$18,000, HK$19,500,
HK$1,500, HK$18,000, HK$6,000 and HK$6,000
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin Yongming and
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan in the amount of HK$18,000,
HK$18,000 and HK$15,000, respectively.

BREHB RN

38 EFEMRER (B

(a)

(b)

ERIRREBERAR

EEiE @

MisE © ()

(i) MM ETREFELLEESE
AERRNFBUFRITES BT
ZEE+_AZtThBREN K
RIE_—FE=FAHEFE-

(xii)  EKBALERERATNTES
BEIZ-EE+"B+B4EHKe
BEEZEZEEF=A—B EBITA
RABITEARE B EXPIIRE
2 EEREREAQATITH
MEPTIRERB MM 2 &

(xii) HEBYZITHELRRITEILIE
HNITEE BH_T_TF+_-8
Zt+hBkENK-

(xiv)  FHBEEREAATBIER
TEE BT THE"_A+AH
B -

(xv)  RREFE AEBEBRAEAE
EHhLREFATZAMEE
#5100 A SR N A 7 & B B R

RENEAERBE - MEEER
B F E TR AR RN S o

HHEERARERN
REE_ZE_—F+HF=+—
BIEFEE AREDHARESE
TEHERAE AR E
Rafael Heinrich Suchan?c4E ~ BR&EE
FERTERLERE BRI
NIEEFEMEH 18,0007 7T
19,5007 7T ~ 1,50078 7T ~ 18,00078
7T 6,00078 7T 56,0007 7T ©

REEZZE_ZF+B=+—
BIEEE XABDBNAERE
FE 4 s ROKBR St 4 RRafael
Heinrich Suchanst4 )& A 5a |
MAFEE ST EIE M FR18,00058
75~ 18,0007 7552 15,00078 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERIES IR

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREHB RN

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 39 KEFRSHE
Reconciliation from profit/(loss) before income tax to cash BREFISIANEF] (F518) B EFT1S
generated from operations: REHER -
2021 2020
% “TT2HF
HK$M HK$M
HEAT BEATT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEEMBRER
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BREFSRBNER (B518) 883.7 (809.8)
Adjustments for: UTRIERE .
Finance costs (Note 10) B AE (5210) 2433 2435
Finance income (Note 10) BB (H1EE10) (9.5) (11.0)
Dividend income (Note 6) R U A (Mizt6) (5.0 (2.5)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8) TE R (Fi5E8) 406.7 450.8
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial TEEMIAEZATE
instruments, net (Note 7) (W) /E51873 %8 (MisE7) (3.2) 68.1
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BRATESABRZ S/
through profit or loss (Note 7) BEZATEHE (:F7) 0.5 2.5
Loss/(Gain) on disposals of property, HEME BERZE
plant and equipment and UREREEEZER/
right-of-use assets (Note 7) (Uezs) (BEsE7) 32.9 (23.4)
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale HEREHEBEZ WA
(Note 7) (P95E7) (113.1) -
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness TEREFHEETRR
(Note 7) (P5E7) (40.2) -
Impairments/(Reversal of impairments) SRMEERE CRERD)
on financial assets, net =t 32.9 (7.4)
Provision for impairments on inventories, net FEREEETE ([58)
(Note 8) 31.3 18.5
Provision for impairments on property, plant, ME-BRERREZ
and equipment (Note 7) HEEE (HE7) 1.3 150.0
Provision for impairments on FREEEZRERE
right-of-use assets (Note 7) (Mi5%7) - 72.8
Provision for impairment on investments REAEEZHERRE
in joint ventures (Note 7) (HI5%7) 7.3 -
Impairments on intangible assets (Note 7) B EEZRE (H537) 21.0 205.1
Impairments on assets held for sale (Note 7) BIEHEBEZRE ([5E7) - 91.3
(Gain)/Loss on disposal and deregistration of HERFHEFATR
subsidiaries or joint ventures (Note 7) GELEY WH)
518 (f5E7) (11.0) 4.5
Share of post-tax (profit)/loss of an associate FEfL B & A B BRI E (RH)
/B8 (0.8) 0.1
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures FEML &= b ERRR B R (288.2) (66.9)
Non-cash post-employment benefit expenses FREEEBERRBEZ
BAIEX (1.3) (0.9)
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) SNEESIR (W) FE8 6.6 (19.3)
1,195.2 366.0
Changes in working capital EEESEE)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories =5 g R (495.6) 344.8
Increase in trade, bills and other receivables B 5 ERREMERGRIE
= (625.3) (424.7)
Change in derivative financial instruments TEEmI A (32.2) (27.0)
Increase in trade, bills and other payables B85 B REMEIHRIEE
m 610.9 694.6
653.0 958w/
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RERIES IR

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 39 KEMFHE @)
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RiEeRERER HEVME -BEK
disposals of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REBURGERAEEE ZMERIBESE:
comprise:
2021 2020
T —EIEHF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEERAT
Net book amount of property, ME - -BERZEZREZE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (fF%14) 56.0 97.6
Net book amount of right-of-use assets FRESEZIRMEFE
(Note 15) (P95E15) 30.8 81.2
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, plant  HEYE -HERRHE UK
and equipment and right-of-use assets FREEEY (B8)
(Note 7) Weas (BHsE7) (32.9) 23.4
Decrease/(Increase) in proceeds receivable — FEURFTSERIER /L (12 /0) 17.7 (17.3)
Reduction in lease liabilities mEssER (5.1) (7.0)

Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE -BERREUR

plant and equipment and FRHEEEZFSHIE
right-of-use assets 66.5 177.9
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RiFaRERER LEREHESE
disposals of assets held for sales comprise: EZPTSRIEEE .
2021 2020
s % —Z2TEHF
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BE&ET
Net book amount of assets held for sales  FEHEEZEEZREFE
(Note 24) (M$5E24) 181.0 -
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale HEREHEEEZ G
(Note 7) (MI5E7) 113.1 -
Decrease in proceeds receivables FEUL T 19 =R I8 Rk 2 - 21.6
Receipt in advance (Note 33(ii)) FE R IE (T 5E33(i)) 44.3 -
Related tax expenses refunded by buyers B 53R [0] 2 HHEAFRIER 4.9 -
Proceeds from disposals of assets HEFEHEEEZ
held for sale FRiS™RIA 343.3 21.6
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BREHB RN

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)

39 KEMRFHRE @

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements
in net debt for each of the years presented.

KNI EBFEIM K2 EE
BRSSP EREE -

Liabilities from financing activities

REEHEENER
Lease liabilities Bank Bank Other
due Lease liabilities borrowings Borrowing borrowings
within due due within due after due within
1 year after 1 year 1 year 1year 1year Total
R—EREHAN R-FRIEN R-FANEN R-E23EN R-FRIHN
HEaR HEAR RITRER RITER Hithfg Eoh
Net debt as at 1 January 2020 RZB-_F-A—ANAEKIE 1917 569.4 547.3 2264 2,0217 3,556.5
Proceeds/additions FigsE,/ HE 386 55.4 416.0 121.6 - 631.6
Reversals Rl (2.9) (4.1) - - = (7.0)
Repayments BERE (180.8) (61.5) (379.7) (173.2) (488.1) (1,283.3)
Other non-cash movement HEthFREEH 143.8 (237.0) (16.0) (7.8) 28 (119.8)
Currency translation differences ERER 11.8 20.1 372 1.3 (15.5) 64.9
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 KZEZB+ZA=+—A®
HHFE 202.2 3423 604.8 1783 1,515.3 2,842.9
Proceeds/additions FIiSHIE/HE 62.7 341 410.2 49.3 - 556.3
Reversals e (3.0) 2.1) - - = (5.1)
Repayments HEME (116.4) (82.3) (466.6) (181.1) (429.1) (1,275.5)
Other non-cash movement HEthFReEH 51.5 (85.9) (52.8) 12.6 24.1 (44.5)
Currency translation differences ERER (25.9) (16.0) (1.7) (83) 6.9 (45.0)
Net debt as at 31 December 2021 RIZEZ-F+ZA=+—-HKN
HHFE 1771 190.1 493.9 50.8 1,117.2 2,029.1

ERIRREEFRAR
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RERIES IR

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

40 BEERBRRRHEES

Balance sheet of the Company TREIZEEEER
2021 2020
T —F “EBECRF
Note HK$M HK$M
Mok BHEBT BEERET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERENE &
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted #&FAF > JEET 3,500.4 3,500.4
Investment in a joint venture, KRE—HEaEh%E
unlisted JEETS - 4.1
Right-of-use assets BRAEEE 8.9 19.2
Other deposit Hitz® 2.7 2.7
3,512.0 3,526.4
Current assets TRENE E
Other receivables H e R IE 18.0 13.1
Amounts due from subsidiaries W T ABIE 1,724.6 2,155.6
Amount due from a related party  FEURREAHE /5 7B - 1.7
Loan receivables from a subsidiary EWF AT E™ - 89.1
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEEE 22.3 0.8
1,764.9 2,260.3
Total assets BEEMAE 5,276.9 5,786.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BHERkEE
Equity attributable to TATIRREEE DS
shareholders of the Company
Share capital & 27 16.1 16.1
Reserves (G 3,401.9 3,612.8
Total equity Wt 3,418.0 3,628.9
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BREHB RN

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 40 BE&EXRKLEEHEE (@)

(continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TR ZEEGER (@)
2021 2020
—E- % “BIEHF
Note HK$M HK$M
M 5E BEAT BEET
LIABILITIES =R E
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAa®E - 8.8
Other payables HhpEIE - 3.0
- 11.8
Current liabilities wREaE
Accruals and other payables e & B R HMME I 32.7 21.6
Amounts due to subsidiaries B FABIE 704.6 606.4
Lease liabilities HEaR 8.8 9.3
Other borrowings HEmR 1,112.8 1,508.7
1,858.9 2,146.0
Total liabilities BEMAE 1,858.9 2,157.8
Total equity and liabilities Rk aEREE 5,276.9 5,786.7

FRBZEERBRRCEEFEN _T_—
FARAT=ZHHETHNTESARE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 13 June 2022 and was signed on its behalf:

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Li Linhui
REERE EMERE
Director Director
EZE EZE
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RERIES IR

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 40 BE&ERKLEEHEEE (8

(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company AT ZHEES
Capital
Share  redemption Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B A HE D]
B mE HE NG RETE1E Kt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEET BEET BEETT BEAET
(Note (i)
(P EEG))
As at 1 January 2020 RIZZEF
—R—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,343.4) 3,785.0
Loss for the year FREIE - - - (172.2) (172.2)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEEBEE
for the year - - - (172.2) (172.2)
As at 31 December 2020 RIZZEF
+—-B=+—H 59119 0.3 216.2 (2,515.6) 3,612.8
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BREHB RN

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 40 BE&EXRKLEEHEE (@)

(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company (continued) AT Z#EES @)
Capita
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
g 2~ B8 5]
A7 B s REHE - RBEHE st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBET BEBR
(Note (i)
(PFEE(i))
As at 1 January 2021 AT fF
—A—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,515.6) 3,612.8
Profit for the year FEREF = = - (210.9) (210.9)
Total comprehensive loss ERREERELE
for the year - - - (210.9) (210.9)
As at 31 December 2021 R
+-B=+—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,726.5) 3,401.9
Note: P5E
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) KRAFEEEQEFRDNR BB NFERE
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries ERFPTEF AR R A KRR D B EBREZ
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the EEEARAB BB EMEITRM ZEE
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a NELERO -E—ZSFERREERZ
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. 48R0
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RERIES IR

= == E
41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41 BRATZFREFIE
COMPANY
(@) General information of principal subsidiaries () FEFATMN—KEH
The table below shows the subsidiaries as at 31 December TRITESIRN-E_—F
2021, which in the opinion of the Directors, principally +TZR=+—BHXEEKA
affect the revenue, net assets or business aspects of the FEERERETEFEZFA
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the Bl EERA REMBETFTRE
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive ZHBEHETREBENR AR
length.
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
BEATRBRRES/ FEAFEREMERE
FARSRHE g AWML/ M RS EEREFE TEEH
2021 2020
- CZ°TE
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
BaXM (&8 BRAF BE B &1 Group and providing
services 1o group
companies
FEERBAER
RERBTERLA
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
EAGBERRERAR i B 10,000%7T metal scrap and WEEE
MIKHEBLEER
BEREFEM
Chiho Environmental Recycling Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$80,000,000 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
Industry Limited &4 B 80,000,000%7T Group and wholesales
EaRFBETIZERAT of metal scrap without
processing
FERRBAERRERE
MIZBE%E
Chiho Environmental (Beijing) The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
Company Limited** HE HE K 50,000,000 companies
EaRR R BRAF! RUERBTERLE
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC The PRC 1S$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Company Limited** HE HE 108,000,000% 7T metal scrap
aMEARYEBERAR! MIKHEBLELE
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** HE HE 40,000,000% 7T metal scrap
EaXi (B8 BEERERAF MIKHEBLELE
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection  The PRC The PRC RMBS5,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Company Limited** HE HE A #55,150,0007T |ubricating il
ERUBRARREERAR: MIRHERER
& All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company b FAZETRAREHAATMERNS
*  For identification purpose only o BB
+  Limited liability company * BAREEAT
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BREHB RN

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

41 FKABZFATHE @)

(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (@) FEFARN—KER (@)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
BRITRERRS/ FEBAFEGRE
FRTLHE =Pk BT AT R 7S BaREEE TEEH
2021 2020
—$_-F CETC®ERF
Yantai Qisheng Petrochemical The PRC The PRC RMBS50,000,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Co., Ltd.* HE HE AR 50,000,0007 lubricating ol
ERERERIEIERAR! MIRHERRR
Dalian New Green Recycle & The PRC The PRC JPY 8,566,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Resources Corporation** el HE 8,566,011,000H metal scrap
AEHGBEEERMIERAG MIKHEBLLE
Scholz Recycling (Beijing) Co., Ltd** The PRC The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - Providing services to group
|EBFER b R) BRAR! HE HE 5,000,007 companies
RERBTERLA
Heng Hup Chiho Recycling Malaysia Malaysia RIM5,000,000 51% 51%  Processing of metal scrap
(Malaysia) SDN. BND. BRAET BRAES 5,000,0006RBEELE MIBE%E
Hidaka-Chiho Metal Recycling (Thailand)  Thailand Thailand Baht298,451,250 45.7% 45.7%  Processing and sales of
Company Limited® %E i 298,451,250% metal scrap
MIKHEBLLE
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
i T 18,151817¢ Group
FEEZREAR
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
= (] 84,0081 7 metal scrap
MIRBEBLEE
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
(el e 50,0008%7 logistic services
R TE R
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
=@ ZE 100,000,0008% 7T metal scrap
MIRHEELER
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
6 26 25,0008% 7T of real estate

G All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company
*  For identification purpose only

+  Limited liability company

i The Group controls the board of directors

BEREERIE
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= =12 E (42
41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41 KRB Z2FREFE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (@) FEFARN—KER (@)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
BETRERRS,/ FEBFREGRE
ER G gy R/ RIEE R BERREE TEEH
2021 2020
ZEZ-F CZI3F
Scholz Management Service GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
=6 (e 25,0001 7 companies
RUERBETERLA
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
=6 ZE 1,000,00080 7 metal scrap
MIKHEBLELE
Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. us us US$3,100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
e Eei EALESH metal scrap
MIKHEBLELE
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
it it 88,501,000%4 12 metal scrap
MIKHEBLELE
Scholz Austria Holding Gmbh Republic of Austria Republic of Austria EUR35,000 100% 100%  Holding company
BRI AR BRI A 35,0008 7 ERAE
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.0. Czech Republic Czech Republic (CZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
ERENE ERENE 499,834,004 52 72 metal scrap
MIRHEBLLRE
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic Czech Republic CZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
ERENE ERENE 61,217,008 %525 metal scrap
MIRHEBLERE
DINOS d.d. Republic of Slovenia Republic of Slovenia EUR2,279,700 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
AN EBEAE HANERENE  2,279,70087T metal scrap
MIRHEBLERE
4 All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company b FIBAZEFRREHAABMERS
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BREHB RN

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Significant restrictions

(c)

Cash and short-term deposits held in the PRC are subject
to local exchange control regulations. These regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividend.

The carrying amount of the assets included within the
consolidated balance sheet to which these restrictions apply
is HK$274.0 million (2020: HK$389.1 million).

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned
subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

42 CONTINGENCIES

(a)

The Company is one of the defendants to a legal claim
by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) regarding an alleged
non-payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco
Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the
Company, amounting to approximately HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. Delco alleged that it
acquired the assets and liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011.
Delco Asia was dissolved by deregistration in 2012. Each
of Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”), a former director of the
Company, and HWH Holdings Limited ("HWH") undertook
to the Company to indemnify and hold the Company
harmless on demand against all losses arising out of, inter
alia, this claim in accordance with the terms of a letter of
indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of the
Company on 17 December 2015 (the “Indemnity”). The
exact scope of the indemnity is yet to be determined.
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42 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

The court case is still in progress, with the parties filing
amended pleadings and evidence. On Delco’s application,
the Court granted leave to Delco to discontinue its claim
against the Company for the HK$57.8 million, with certain
issues still to be decided by the High Court of Hong Kong.
The directors of the Company, after taking legal advice
from its legal advisers and in review of the Indemnity, are
of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision for this claim has
been made.

The Company and Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are two of the
defendants to another legal claim by Delco regarding an
alleged breach of a letter of undertaking in relation to a
convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed for
by Delco. Delco further claimed against CTHK for a sum of
US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK.
Delco further claimed interests, costs and further or other
relief of approximately HK$6.3 million.

The parties subsequently filed amended pleadings and
gave evidence at the trial in July 2021. The case is still in
progress, with the parties having made closing submissions,
and the parties are awaiting judgment from the Court. The
directors of the Company, after taking legal advice from its
legal advisers, are of the opinion that it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision for
this claim has been made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(0

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has provided financial
guarantees to certain related parties and joint ventures
of HK$19.5 million and HK$53.7 million (2020: HK$14.9
million and HK$38.0 million), respectively. As the risk of
default is very remote and there is no history of default, no
financial guarantee liability was recognised.

BREHB RN
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5-Year Financial Summary

D FHHHE

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of HA&EEFRETHEEME
profit and loss

For the year ended 31 December

BET-AZt-ALEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEI-F TR ZT-NE ZE-0\F ZEtF
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BERERT FBEAn  BEET  BHEER  BEER

Revenue & 21,950.4 13,368.1 15,363.4 20,912.8 18,491.0
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETIGIATEF, (B538) 883.7 (809.8) (99.5) 469.4 546.2
Income tax expense FriSiRR = (191.7) (54.4) (34.3) (70.4) (110.6)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to: UTE&HEEER, (B8 :
Shareholders of the Company KATREER 702.0 (848.1) (128.7) 401.2 426.8
Non-controlling interests JEIEpGE R (10.0) (16.1) (5.1) 2.2) 8.8
692.0 (864.2) (133.8) 399.0 435.6

Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet “EEERERETHEME

As at 31 December

R+ZA=1+—8H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEZ-F “E°TF “T-hE T\ EF—tF
HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT HEBT B8%8r ©EAT BEBETR

Assets BE
Current assets RBEE 5,001.6 4,510.1 4,039.4 5,329.5 6,022.2
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,956.9 5,362.8 6,150.6 6,058.0 6,071.5
Total assets BEMRE 9,958.5 9,872.9 10,190.0 11,3875 12,093.7

Liabilities =L
Current liabilities TEaE 4,426.6 4,392.0 3,996.5 3,298.0 5,365.2
Non-current liabilities ERBER 672.4 1,016.7 1,262.5 2,943.6 1,681.4
Total liabilities SEEE 5,099.0 5,408.7 5,259.0 6,241.6 7,046.6
4,859.5 4,464.2 4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1

Equity attributable to: U FEEER

Shareholders of the Company /N8 4,873.9 4,477.6 49413 5,175.3 5,073.1
Non-controlling interests RS (14.4) (13.4) (10.3) (29.4) (26.0)

4,859.5 4,464.2 4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu
Mr. Yao Jietian
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022)
Mr. Martin Simon
(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Chunguo
(resigned on 3 March 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Prof. Li Zhiguo

(appointed on 24 May 2021)
Prof. Yan Guowan

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Dr. Loke Yu

(resigned on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew

(appointed on 5 March 2021

and resigned on 6 December 2021)
Ms. Yang Yali

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei

(resigned on 5 March 2021)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu
Mr. Yao Jietian
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022)
Mr. Martin Simon
(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Chunguo
(resigned on 3 March 2021)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Prof. Yan Guowan (Chairman)

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Prof. Li Zhiguo

(appointed on 24 May 2021)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Dr. Loke Yu

(resigned on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew

(appointed on 5 March 2021

and resigned on 6 December 2021)
Ms. Yang Yali

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei

(resigned on 5 March 2021)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)

(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Prof. Li Zhiguo

(appointed on 24 May 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu

(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Prof. Yan Guowan

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Dr. Loke Yu

(resigned on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew

(appointed on 5 March 2021

and resigned on 6 December 2021)
Ms. Yang Yali

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Chunguo

(resigned on 3 March 2021)

292 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

B%ZEZEE
SETEHR (FE)
(R-E= — = FIIAESIE)
=EEHE
R —F A H I EZEE)
BIfESIE L
(R-E= — = A ESE)
EEEmig L
R == —F -+ HNHEHE)
Sinsadct
R-E-—F=FHAESHER
R B — A~ FNHEET)
MHmL L
(R ——F=F 7 HEHE)
TEHEE
(R ——F=F 7 HEHE)

RHZEEY
EMIBLEE (F/E)

(R —E——F+_—F+=[AESE)
FEEHE

R —E_—FHZF 1 IIHEZT)
ERiE

(R —E——F+_F+=[AESE)
SETEHIR

(R —E - = FUIHEZT)
BIESIE A

(R —E - = FUIHEZT)
YN

(R ZEZ—F+ZHNHFFE)
SR e

R —E-Z—F=HHHEZTER
KR ZEZ—F+_HHEF

BEmMZ+

(R —E_—F=H 7 HEFT)
FHEFRE

(R —E_—F=H 7 HEFT)
REELE

(R —E_—F=H=HEFT)



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (Chairman)

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Prof. Li Zhiguo

(appointed on 24 May 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu

(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Prof. Yan Guowan

(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Dr. Loke Yu

(resigned on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew

(appointed on 5 March 2021

and resigned on 6 December 2021)
Ms. Yang Yali

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei

(resigned on 5 March 2021)

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu
Mr. Yao Jietian
(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022)
Mr. Martin Simon
(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed on 5 March 2021
and resigned on 6 December 2021)
Mr. Goh Kian Guan
(resigned on 30 April 2021)
Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Chunguo
(resigned on 3 March 2021)
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PRICING COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)

(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu
Mr. Yao Jietian

(appointed on 13 December 2021)
Mr. Udo Langhans
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(removed on 7 January 2022)
Mr. Marc Breidenbach

(resigned on 21 December 2021)
Mr. Huang Ting

(appointed on 30 April 2021

and resigned on 16 December 2021)
Mr. Martin Simon

(resigned on 14 December 2021)
Mr. William Thomas Bird

(appointed on 1 July 2021

and resigned on 14 December 2021)
Dr. Haehne Gerd

(resigned on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Maier Tobias

(appointed on 1 January 2021

and resigned on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Goh Kian Guan

(resigned on 30 April 2021)
Mr. Ding Zhiyi

(resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Chunguo

(resigned on 3 March 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty
(appointed on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Lam Pui Sea
(resigned on 5 March 2021)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Martin Simon
(resigned on 14 December 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty
(appointed on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Lam Pui Sea
(resigned on 5 March 2021)
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
Bird & Bird (Hong Kong)

DLA Piper (Hong Kong)

Deacons (Hong Kong)

Dechert (Hong Kong)

LC Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong)
H.Y.Leung & Co. LLP (Hong Kong)
Aber-Law (Thailand)

Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)
CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)
Menold Bezler (Germany)

Gleiss Lutz (Germany)

Acuminis (US)

Withers Worldwide

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China
Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg (LBBW)
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

The PRC

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

23/F, Infinitus Plaza

199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

The PRC
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Corporate Information
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HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

Floor 25, Block A, Building no.1
No. 18, Xiaguangli

East 3rd Ring Road North
Chaoyang District

Beijing

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE
Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str.1

73457 Essingen
Germany

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AMERICA

1515 East Avenue
Erie, PA 16503
USA

* For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website.

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

WEBSITE

www.chihogroup.com

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 976
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P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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48 Wang Lok Street,
Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Hong Kong
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